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5 F;hotp of 8th Street at Kerlin
- 'and Upland Avenue, circa 1927

Mighty Muffler & Performance, a
family owned business on the corner
of Route 452 and Bethel Avenue,
Delaware County, has expanded
their business in response to industry
trends and customer demands.
Through financing by First Keystone,
this father and son team have
expanded their auto repair business
to include a speed shop featuring
custom exhausts and the latest in
rim designs.

First Keystone Financial, Inc.

The mission of First Keystone Financial, Inc. is to deliver value-added
financial services that will produce a superior long-term return on
investments, thereby meeting the interdependent needs of the shareholders,

customers, employees and the communities it serves.

First Keystone Financial, Inc. is a registered unitary savings and loan holding

company conducting business through its wholly-owned subsidiary First
Keystone Bank . The Bank is a federally chartered SAIF-insured savings
institution operating through eight full-service offices located in Delaware and
Chester Counties, Pennsylvania. The Company’s headquarters is located at 22

West State Street, Media, PA 19063.
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Selected TFinancial Data

At or For the Year Ended September 30,

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Selected Financial Data:
Total assets

Loans receivable, net

Mortgage-related securities available for sale
Mortgage-related securities held to maturity
Investment securities available for sale
Deposits

Borrowings

Stockholders' equity

Selected Operations Data:
Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Non-interest income

Non-interest expenses

Income tax expense

Net income

Selected Operating Ratios:
Return on average assets

Return on average equity

Net interest margin

Alowance for [oan losses as a

percent of non-performing loans
Ratio of average equity to average assets
Diluted earnings per share
(ash dividends per share

(losing market price per share

2004

$571,919
304,248
97,620
37,363
63,615
344,880
171,149

29,698

$ 11,431
300
3,899
12,501
326

$ 2,203

0.39%
7.13
2.23

100.29
5.50
$ 114
$ 044
$ 2225

2003

$559,612
286,421
124,656
3,487
77,700
362,605
136,272

32,388

$ 11,200
715
3,286
10,400
632

5 2,739

0.51%
8.39
2.30

127.63

6.12
$ 135
§ 040
§ 2650

2002

$519,259
288,776
85,674
8,855
80,624
330,765
126,237

32,795

$ 11,871
540
2,263
10,441
427

§ 2726

0.54%
8.77
2.59

45.89

6.17
$ 134
$ 036
§ 15.50




A Message to our Shareholders

Just a few years ago, our Bank was primarily a savings bank and residential lender.
Today, we have expanded our services well beyond vistas envisioned a generation ago,
aggressively pursuing commercial banking opportunities, as well as creating affiliations
with insurance and investment brokers. In fiscal year 2004 alone, the outstanding bal-
ance in construction lending has increased by more than 31%, and home equity loans
and lines of credit increased by more than 30%. Core deposits remain a strong source
of funding for the Bank’s growth and amounted to 52% of the Banks total deposits at
fiscal year end.

When our Bank first opened its doors as a building and loan association in the

1880s, change was measured in decades. It took almost two decades for the horse and

Don Guthrie and Tom Kelly outside ti
new Co-Op Market in Swarthmore.

carriage to be completely replaced by the automobile and 40 years from the inception of the household computer to today,

Wayne, located in Radnor, Delaware County, has always
been an active community, and, in the past few years,
has experienced a revitalization due to the many
restaurants, boutiques and specialty shops which have
discovered its charms.

Margaret Kuo, who started her first restaurant in the
Granite Run Mall 30 years ago, received a construction
loan from First Keystone to build her premier restaurant
in Wayne. She now has five restaurants throughout
Chester and Delaware Counties and uses First Keystone
for her bankinq needs,

where it has been welcomed
into nearly every home and
business across the globe.
Today, change is measured
in months and years. Through
technology, First Keystone Bank
can now provide services to

clients in multiple delivery

forms from the traditional teller,
to remote online banking, to
personal courier service that are
all designed to enhance the cus-

tomer’s banking experience.

In the past year, First

Keystone added technology to
improve the performance and
efficiency of its retail and busi-
ness services. User friendly
software has enabled our cus-

tomers to apply online for

North Wayne Avenue, Wayne, circa 1900.
Photo courtesy of the Suburban and
Wayne Times




consumer loans, within minutes from the convenience of their own homes,
or at any of our branch office locations. Technology has also enhanced the
speed of our approval process.

A century ago, the purpose of our institution was to enable families to
build homes and purchase farmland. Our Bank today is working with
entrepreneurs and companies from small to medium size to start and grow
their businesses, develop and restore commercial properties, and provide
[inancing for equipment and acquisitions needed to meet the challenges of
[OMOITOW.

Delaware County was the heart of the region’s marketplace in the 19th
century. Textile, flour and lumber mills thrived within the region, and the
industrial water{ront in the City of Chester provided access to goods and
services to many outlying counties in Pennsylvania including Berks,
Montgomery and Lancaster Counties,

Today, the City of Chester is experiencing a rebirth with major devel-
opment again discovering the advantages of this once thriving waterfront.
Our Chester branch office, located at the center of this redevelopment, has
already begun to play an active role and is gearing up to provide commer-
cial real estate loans, business checking and other financial services to fur-
ther assist with the city’s resurgence.

At the end of the 19th century, the population of Delaware County was
just under 100,000 people. Today, it is well over 650,000. In addition, it is
home to 15 colleges and universities, has over 3,400 members in the coun-
ty’s award-winning Chamber of Commerce and boasts of having nearly 60
nationally registered historic sites and ten certified historic districts.

Our 2004 Annual Report is entitled “Then and Now” and tells how
First Keystone has grown and changed to meet the needs of a rapidly devel-
oping marketplace. Our story is revealed through the successes of some of
our customers we have helped during this past fiscal year.

Throughout the coming months, we will be placing even greater
emphasis on what we call “Door-to-Door Business Banking,” a personalized
~ approach to defining and implementing the needs of business customers,
including insurance and investment products. We will also be expanding
the range of online banking services, creating a new look and feel for our

website and providing extended banking hours to make banking even

e,
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more convenient for our customers. Our mission throughout the process is
to draw a balance between “tradition” and “progress” and “community
mindedness” with “global thinking.”

Going forward, our strategic plan demands that we remain focused on
improving non-interest income, as it is an integral part of reducing our
dependency on interest rate sensitive products. For fiscal 2004, non-inter-
est income increased by 11%, excluding gain on sales of securities.
Management expects this trend to continue as a result of both the success-
ful 2004 implementation of our OverdraftHonor® program, a check clear-
ing service to benefit our customers while enhancing fee based income, and
the continued steady progress of the Company’s insurance business.

We are also pleased with the additions to our commercial lending and
business development team. This group brings a wide range of experience
and enthusiasm to the Company, and their efforts have contributed to the
continued increase in our non-interest bearing accounts. With this growth,
we have experienced a greater need for cash management products and our
operations department has been meeting this challenge with professional
and fast solutions.

We are ever mindful of our responsibilities to our shareholders, and like
you, we, including our Board of Directors, senior management team and
employees, are financially aligned together. We will continue, as we did this
past year, to implement company stock repurchase programs, and other
capital leveraging strategies to enhance shareholder value in order to pro-
vide shareholders with a competitive rate of return on their investment.
And we will always focus on serving the needs of the customer first because
that is the cornerstone of First Keystone.

Thank you for the trust that you have placed in us.

Sincerely,

Donald S. Guthrie Thomas M. Kelly
Chairman of the Board President
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer



Old Fashion Service
1s Paramount

Many of our oldest business customers fondly remember when
small business loans were secured by showing profit and loss state-
ments on a notecard cemented with a solid handshake from your
neighborhood banker.

Although the shoe cobbler on Main Street is now gone, and
handshake deals have been replaced with formal loan applications
and commitment letters, with the introduction of our “Door-to-
Door” banking relationship, our goal is to reinforce the old-fash-

ioned commitment to make customer convenience a top priority

and to be there when we're needed. This level of service is well beyond what many of our business
customers expect and differentiates us from competing {financial institutions.

Our commitment to providing superior customer service motivated management to engage a
nationally recognized training firm to help us lay a foundation to build more trust and better com-
munication tools throughout our organization. We have embarked on a 20 month program that teach-
es every employee skills in how to deal with organizational change, work more effectively with one
another, get results and build long-term customer relationships. We believe that customer retention
is driven by customer loyalty that is earned when you recognize the customers needs, fulfill them and

then consistently exceed the customer’s expectations better than anyone else. Our Company is com-

mitted to this challenge.

Photo of a circa 1938 car dealership, at the corner of
Baltimore Pike and Pennell Road in Middletown
o Tgwpship courtesy of the Delaware County Historical

ET Society.

After fire destroyed a landmark restaurant on this
property at least a decade ago, a beautifully
designed car dealership was built on this 3.5-acre
premier site with tremendous visibility and very high
daily traffic counts. First Keystone works to serve the
owner’s needs by providing a high level of service in
addition to a variety of financial products.

N



Leading the Way in Downtown Revitalization

Our corporate philosophy has always maintained that a healthy business district is a reflection on the entire
community, which: is why First Keystone spearheaded the effort to provide facade renovation loans to business
owners in downtown Media. The Banks business development and commercial lending teams worked with
municipal government officials to improve the borough’s revitalization loan program to stimulate economic
growth and preserve the architectural character and integrity of the business district.

Many property owners have taken advantage of this program and as a result, the Bank has forged new busi-
ness relationships including a complete exterior renovation of a large commercial property comprised of five

storefronts opposite the Bank’s main office.

A local property owner completely renovated
this row, of retail stores that helped transform
the street appeal in the business district in
Media, the county seat. The Bank provided the
financing as one of several financial institutions
in the community that participates in the
municipal government sponsored facade
improvement loan program.

Photo of Media hill on Baltimore Pike
looking west toward Ridley Creek Valiley




Using Technology to Enhance
Efficiency

Embracing technology to achieve greater efficiencies and increased
production continues to be among our top priorities. Our desktop and
online consumer equity loan software automates the underwriting
process which helped increase our volume in fiscal 2004 by over 30%
compared to the previous fiscal year without the need for additional
personnel.

The phased installation of digital scanners at each of our branches
is near completion. The benefits include immediate access to the cap-
tured data, the ability to discover fraud faster and reducing the risk of
capturing poor quality check images.

In fiscal 2005, we will incorporate the utilization of one of the
industry’s premier software products to standardize documentation for
commercial lending and streamline the origination process. This
approach is expected to improve our underwriting procedures and
build efficiencies in our commercial lending department as a result of

the software’s ability to interface with other integral reporting services.

The Biggest Asset in our Construction
Portfolio is our Experience

Residential and commercial development have been the norm
throughout our region for over four decades as farmland has given way
to housing developments, commercial strip stores and corporate cen-
ters. First Keystone continues to provide financing to fuel the growth.
Construction loans now comprise 12% of our loan portfolio and expe-

rienced a 31% increase from the end of our prior fiscal year.
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Much credit can be given to the strong relationships that have been
developed over the years with our Bank, our senior construction lending
officer Mary Wentz, and area builders. Ms. Wentz has dedicated years of ser-
vice on the boards of trade organizations such as the Pennsylvania Builders
and in numerous capacities of the Homebuilders Association of Delaware
and Chester Counties which in 2004 won her the highly coveted national
award and recognition as the “top recruiter” for the Homebuilders National

Sales and Marketing Division.

The Co-Op market in Swarthmore was opened in 1937 and

quickly became an integral part of the community. First

Keystone Bank provided the funding for the construction of
its new facility which resides adjacent to the former market.
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Jerry A.Naessens, CPA

Jerry A.Naessens was

: : : . appointed as.a Director |
First Keystone Financial, Inc. Directors asentas
February 2004. Mr. S
Donald S. Guthrie, Esquire Edmund Jones, Esquire Naessens also serves on l’
the Company’s Audit
Chairman of the Board Member, Jones, Strohm & Guthrie, PC Committee and First: " D
Chief Executive Officer Jerry A. Naessens, CPA Keystone Bank’s Board | v W

* - of Directors.
Former President, RMB Bank J
Mr. Naessens has extensive background in the

William J. 0’'Donnell, CPA . financial industry includingly Director, President

Donald A. Purdy, Esquire

Chairman Emeritus

Thomas M. Ke"y Co;‘por‘at@ Solutions Manager/]'[ Group, and Chief Einancial Officerlat RMB Bank which
President and Wawa. Inc was recently acquired by Citizen’s Bank. Mr.

) ) ) ’ ' Naessens career also includes being a former
Chief Operating Officer Marshall J. Soss partner in a major accounr!ing firm with
Edward (aldleroni President and expertise in the audit of ﬁnlancial institutions.

Associate Broker of
Century 21-Alliance

Donald G. Hosier, Jr.
Principal in Montgomery
Insurance Services, and

Chief Executive Officer,
KarMar Realty Group, Inc.
Bruce C. Hendrixson
Owner, Garnet Ford and
Garnet Volkswagen

President, First Keystone Insurance

Services, LLC

First Keystone Bank Executive Officers

Donald S. Guthrie,
Esquire

President

Chief Executive Officer
Thomas M. Kelly
Executive Vice President
Chief Operating Officer
Carol L. Walsh
Corporate Sccretary

Rose M. DiMarco
Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Officer

Robin G. Otto

Senior Vice President
Marketing and
Business Development
Robert R, Hosier
Senior Vice President
Information Technology

Stock Information

First Keystone Financial, Inc.is traded on
the Nasdaq National Market under the
symbol of “FKFS.” There were
approximately 421 shareholders of record
as of September 16, 2004, not including
the number of persons or entities whose
stock is held in nominee or street name

through various brokerage firms or banks.

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders is
scheduled for Wednesday, January 26,
2005, at 2 p.m. to be held at the Towne
House Restaurant, 117 Veterans Square,
Media, Pennsylvania.

Executive Offices
22 West State Street
Media, PA 19063
(610) 565-6210

independent Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP

25th Floor

1700 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-3984

Investor Information
Thomas M. Kelly
President and

Chief Operating Officer
(610) 565-6210

Shareholder Information
Carol Walsh

Corporate Secretary

(610) 565-6210

Robert R. Dwyer
Senior Vice President
Director of Lending

Elizabeth M. Mulcahy
Senior Vice President
Human Resources

Transfer Agent

Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive

(ranford, NJ 07016-3572

Counsel

Lawrence G. Strohm, Jr. Esquire
Jones, Strohm & Guthrie, P.C.
10 Beatty Road

Media, PA 19063

Special Counsei
Elias, Matz, Tiernan

& Herrick LLP.

12th Floor

734 15th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20005

l
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Thomas M. Kelly

Th?mas M. Kelly was
promoted to Chief
Op!erating Officer in the
seciond quarter of fiscal
20?4. Mr. Kelly has been
witih the Bank as its
Chief Financial Officer
since 1991 and in 1995

his duties expanded to that of Executive Vice

“President. Mr. Kelly has sen{ed on the Board of

Directors of First Keystone financial since 1997
and as its President since /V{ay 2002.

Rose M. DiMarco

The Company’s Board of

Directors appointed

Rose M. DiMarco Chief

Financial Officer for

both First Keystone

Financial and the Bank

in February 2004. Ms. i

DiMarco has 20 years ‘

experience with the Bank and has held various
financial positions.during her tenure with the
Company, including Senior\Vice President of
Finance. Ms. DiMarco received her Master of 1
Business Administration from Villanova
University.

Robert R. Dwyer

Robert R. Dwyer was
vhir’ed as the Bank’s
Director of Lending in
the spring of 2004.
His responsibilities
include overseeing the
' prc;oduction,

& underwriting and
management of the Bank'sicommercial,
construction-and-residential lending portfolio
Mr. Dwyer has more than 15 years experiericein
credit and lending with various commercial
banks.

|
|
l
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 ‘
. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004 o

-OR -
[1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 _

Commission File Number: 0-25328

FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Pennsylvania 23-0469351

(State or other jurisdiction ( '(.R.S. Employer

‘of incorporation or organization) Identification Number) :
22 West State Street, Media, Pennsylvania 19063

(Address of principal executive office) ' (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (610) 565-6210

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
Common Stock (par value $.01 per share)

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
‘Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to
file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes X No___

. Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein,

and will not be contained, to the best of Registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 126-2).
Yes___ No_X

The aggregate market value of the shares of Common Stock of the Registrant issued and outstanding on December 10,

2004, which excludes 332,827 shares held by all directors and officers of the Registrant as a group, was approximately

$45.5 million. This figure is based on the closing price of $28.50 per share of the Registrant's Common stock on March.
31, 2004, the last business day of the Registrant's second fiscal quarter.

Number »of shares of Common Stock outstanding as of December 10, 2004: 1,928,604
DOCUMEN TS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Listed hereunder are the documents incorporated by reference and the Part of the Form 10-K into wluch the document is
incorporated:

(1) Portions of the definitive proxy statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorporated into Part III.
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PARTL.
Item 1. BUSINESS:
General

First Keystone Financial, Inc. (the "Company") is a Pennsylvania corporation and the sole shareholder of First
Keystone Bank, afederally chartered stock savings bank (the "Bank"), which converted to the stock form of organization
in January 1995. The only significant assets of the Company are the capital stock of the Bank, the Company's loan to its
employee stock ownership plan, and various equity and other investments. See Note 18 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004 set forth in Item 8, “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.” The business of the Company primarily consists of the business of the Bank.

The Bank is a community oriented bank emphasizing customer service and convenience. The Bank's primary
business is attracting deposits from the general public and using those funds together with other available sources of
funds, primarily bofrowings, to originate loans. A substantial portion of the Bank's deposits are comprised of core
deposits consisting of NOW, non-interest-bearing accounts, money market deposit accounts (‘MMDA") and passbook
accounts. Core deposits amounted to $180.0 million or 52.2% of the Bank's total deposits at September 30, 2004. The
Bank's primary lending emphasis is the origination of loans secured by first and second liens on single-family (one-to-
four units) residences located in Delaware and Chester Counties, Pennsylvania and to a lesser degree, Montgomery
County, Pennsylvania and New Castle County, Delaware. The Bank originates residential first mortgage loans with
either fixed and/or adjustable rates. Adjustable-rate loans are retained for the Bank's portfolio while fixed-rate loans may
be sold in the secondary market depending on the Bank’s asset/liability strategy, cash flow needs and current market
conditions. The Bank also originates for portfolio, due to their generally shorter terms, adjustable or variable interest
rates and generally higher yields, loans secured by commercial and multi-family residential real estate properties located
within the Bank's market area. The Bank’s management continues to remain focused on implementation of its long-term
strategic plan of shifting its loan composition toward commercial business loans, construction loans and home equity
loans and lines of credit in order to provide a higher yielding portfolio with generally shorter terms. This effort to keep
shorter term loans in portfolio resulted in a $10.2 million increase in outstanding balances in home equity loans and lines
of credit at September 30, 2004, representing a 30.5% increase in this category compared to the previous fiscal year.
Multi-family residential and commercial real estate loans amounted to $64.5 million or 20.0% of the total loan portfolio

at September 30, 2004. The Bank has on occasion purchased loan participation interests in both residential and
commercial real estate loans depending on market conditions and portfolio needs, although no such purchases were made
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004,

In addition to its deposit gathering and lending activities, the Bank invests in mortgage-related securities, which
are issued or guaranteed by U.S. Government agencies and government sponsored or private enterprises, as well as U.S.
Treasury and federal government agency obligations, corporate bonds and municipal obligations. At September 30, 2004,

the Bank's mortgage-related securities (both available for sale and held to maturity) amounted to $135.0 million, or
23.6% of the Company's total assets, and investment securities (both available for sale and held to maturity) amounted to.

$68.9 million, or 12.0% of total assets.




Market Area and Competition

The Bank's primary market area is in Delaware and Chester Counties, which is located in the southeastern corner
of Pennsylvania between two metropolitan areas, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and Wilmington, Delaware. Thereis easy-
access to 1-95, the Philadelphia International Airport and the Delaware River. The Bank is fortunate to be located in
such a desirable geographic area. New York City is just 92 miles away from the Bank's headquarters in Media,
Pennsylvania, while Baltimore, Maryland and Washington, DC are only 80 miles and 127 miles away, respectively.

_ Through an extensive highway and telecommunications network, the Delaware County's economy is knitted
tightly into a regional economy of more than 2.5 million workers. Census 2000 lists Delaware County as having 14,394
business establishments. Most of the businesses are in corporate and professional services, distributive services and the
manufacturing sector. Census 2000 also shows Delaware County has a large, well-educated, and skilled labor force.
Nearly one quarter of the County's population has earned a four-year college degree. Philadelphia's central location in
the Northeast corridor, infrastructure and other factors has made the Bank's market area attractive to many large corporate
employers including Comcast Corp., Boeing, State Farm Insurance, United Parcel Service, PECO Energy, SAP Amenca,
Inc., Wawa and many others,

The Philadelphia area economy is typical of many large northeastern cities where the traditional manufactunng
based economy has declined and has been replaced by the service sector including the health care market.
Crozer/Keystone Health System, Mercy Health Corp and Astra-Zeneca are among the larger employers within the Bank’s
market area. According to the Delaware County Chamber of Commerce, there are 67 degree-granting institutions in the

* Delaware Valley region representing more colleges and universities than any ather area in the United States. Delaware

County also has one of the nation's lowest unemployment rates and one of the most active Chamber of Commerce

- Offices in the Commonwealth. The U.S. Small Business Administration, Philadelphia District Office, named the

Delaware County Chamber the Eastern Region Chamber of the Year in 2001 This is the second time the Chamber
recelvcd this level of recognition.

The populatlon of Delaware County is reported at over half a million residents and is the fourth most populated
" county in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Much of the growth and development continues to be in the western part
of the county and adjacent Chester County. Unemployment in Chester County is extremely low at 3.7% compared to the
rest of the Commonwealth which is at 6.0%. The Bank continues to benefit from this growth as its Chester Heights
office, situated in a prime location in Western Delaware County, has exceeded the Company’s deposit and consumer loan
projections year after year. Chester County’s growth rate is expected to increase further in the next decade. The
communities in Chester County that are experiencing growth are East Marlborough Township, New Garden Township
- and East Goshen which surround the Bank's Chester County office. As aresult of the anticipated growth in fiscal 2004
the Bank expanded its Willowdale Branch office in Chester County to a full-service free-standing branch.

The Bank experiences strong competition for real estate loans principally from other savings associations,
commercial banks and mortgage-banking companies. The Bank competes for loans principally through the interest rates
and loan fees it charges, the efficiency and quality of the services it provides borrowers and the convenient locations of
its branch office network. Recognizing that convenience, as it relates to branch locations, is still a primary motivatorin -
attracting new deposits, the Bank just completed the construction of its eighth full-service free-standing branch on a
corner property in Aston Township, Delaware County, a densely populated area in the heart of the Bank’s marketplace.
The building’s design is part of our corporate bra.ndmg strategy and now complcments our Chester Heights and

- Willowdale branches. '

The Bank faces strong competition both in attracting deposits and making real estate loans. Its most direct
competition for deposits has historically come from other savings associations, credit unions and .commercial banks
located in its market area including many large regional financial institutions which have greater financial and marketing
resources available to them. The ability of the Bank to attract and retain core deposits depends on its ability to provide a
competitive rate of return, liquidity and risk comparable to that offered by competing investment opportunities. The
Bank’s management remains focused on attracting core deposits through its branch network, business development
efforts and commercial business relationships. Core deposits represented 52.2% of the Bank’s total deposit portfolio at
September 30, 2004. According to Sheshunoff, the Branches of PA 2004, First Keystone Bank ranks seventh in deposits
or 3.66% of deposit market share for Delaware County.

2 .




Forward-Looking Statements

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company has included certain forward-looking statements concerning
the future operations of the Company. It is management’s desire to take advantage of the safe harbor provisions of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. This statement is for the express purpose of availing the Company of
the protections of such safe harbor with respect to all forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report. Such
forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially
from those currently anticipated due to a number of factors. Such forward-looking statements may be identified by the
use of words such as believe, expect, should, estimated, potential and similar expressions, Examples of forward- looking
statements include, but are not limited to, estimates with respect to the financial condition, business strategy, expected or
anticipated revenue, results of operations and the business of the Company that are subject to various factors which could
cause actual results to differ materially from these estimates. Factors that could affect results include interest rate trends,
deposit flows, competition, the general economic climate in Delaware and Chester counties, the mid- Atlantic region and
the United States as a whole, loan demand, real estate values, loan delinguency rates, levels of non-performing assets,
changes in federal and state regulation, changes in accounting policies and practices and other uncertainties described in
the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including the Form 10-K. These factors should be
considered in evaluating the forward-looking statements, and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements.

The Company assumes no obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect any changed assumpnons, :

any unanuelpated events or any changes in the future.




1007 ‘00T ‘€00T ‘Y00T ‘0¢ 1oquiaidag 1e oyes 10J PIoY SueO] Jo uoNIM {*¢$ PUe 000'SZTTS ‘000 T0SS .rc::& Sb$ ‘000°ZL1$ Spnjout 10U s30( -
. v “SUBO[ pred 1pad jo Ajuewud sisisuo))

WS

5890£28 bRz S8BT FFCTOES
6107 — T8I 8ET T 50T
862'1 o 509 s 911
oge'ol 910'LT- yRETT ss9°01 L08'1
%0001 TEWC %007 300%9C  %WO0T @TOC w0007 [606Z %007 Oz
£8T TFF Yt - BT T 8T OFE  WrOT- 06T FOO0T
5 T (42 T W WmT W% T % T
34 108 74 9L w 9L 74 6LL A A
- - S0 €€l - 73 8r Lvs C 629
A% s8z - ~ - - - - - -
or- 15 60 w o w1 ) 4% 0 gl
wWie . SIS8ET ¥5°96 STt I9%6  W0006C 796 86VI8C §79% ¢iTore
6~ I W6~ 8 0T6 <19k STIT &7 VIl T29TF
€L S06°L1 9801  LII'GC €66 60'3C 696  SLE'sT W 8L0SE
0SST  OLE'LE ol wrew 661 6LED9 EU61  T20'6S 00T 605Y9
YS9 EYI09IS  BITES  6STO9IS  WIELS  OLL'ELIS  BISSS  THO'99I$  %LSOS L06'E9IS
(spuesnowy ur szejioq))
% Junoury % NINOWY % Unoury o, JUnoury % UNOUY
0002 100 Z00Z £00Z YOOT
‘0€ Jaquardag

*Kjoanoadsal ‘ppoz pue

@
[0

19U ‘3{qRAI2021 SUBO] [R10],
$3550] URO] 10J DULMO[[Y

‘SIUMOISIP PUE S39) UONEUITLIO UBO] paudjac

ssa0o1d ug sueory
1§59
(g P19BA12031 SUEO] 10,
SUEO] SSIUISTY [EIIWO))
SURO{ JOWINSUOD [e10],
) 0o
sueo] renosiad pamsasay)
uonesnpg
usodaqy
JWNSUO))

SULO] TS [B91 [630,
¥pa jo saul] pue sueo} Ainba swoy
pue| puB UONONIISUOD)
[ERIURLOD pue Afues-uinpA
Ajnuey-ap3ns
:SUBO] 93BISI (e

*(o[es 10} pjay sueo] Surpnjoxa)

PIEDIPUIT SIJEP Y] I8 UBO] JO odAy 4q oropuod ueo] syueq sy yo uonrsodwod oYy Yuoj s13s 91qe) Suimoljo) YL uomseduio) onofirod uvoy

SInANDY Suipuay



"SIUNOJSIP PUE SWOSUL 32f PALISJOP PUT SIFSO] URO] 10J SAUBMOITE ‘s52001d U1 SUEO] 0} Sune[ol SHUSUNSH{pE opnjoul jou sa0(q

@

1pa1d Jo sauT] pue sueoj Aymba awoy sspnjouy w

EICLSTs S9LS Ilaluwﬂdwmm @1P1OL
95796 e S¥6'S6 s|qeisnlpy
LS6'091$  ¥SH$ £05°091$ poxig
11 SUO J9)JE SNP SINOUTE YO SULID) D)Ll ISIAUY
0TS S60T TTONS 09 S 00 1L
998'8¢ 961 069'8¢ - 110¢1 6L9°9C S1R9A U3AYY A0
11508 4 L3Y0S -- . 1v6'21 obS LE sreak uaoyy ySnouy) sreak ugy BTy
996001 101 $98°001 - $89'v1 08198 sIeak u9) YSnony) sTeak SAly 1Dy
190°Z¢ 91 SI6°1€ - SL9'9 ove'se s1eak aAly y3noay) sreak ao1y; 1oy
628°vE 8€E 16¥°vE - 7991 678°1C $Ie9A 9onp) YSnoxy) 14 Juo 1))y
L6619 § 0€E 1S L99°€S $ 8L0°8€$ 9€5’S $ £50°01 $ $89] JO Jes4 suQ
‘Ul 9np sHuUnowWy
(Spuesnowp ul sxefjo(])
m
[e10L SUROT] SSouUISNg [eI0L pue pue [BIDISUIO)) Ajurey-o(3umg
[eIIowo)) UOINISUO)) pue
pUE JUINSUO)) Aurej-ninN
SueO| a1eIsy [eY

-funjewr 03 proy oyojued ueoj sjueg 9yl Jo uonezioure feuuou pue sjuswedsid ueoy Junosse our 9xe; Jou op pourad Yors J0j umoys
S)UNOUIE 2Y |, "SSI[ 10 183K JUOC Ul Anp S8 ParIedal dJe SHEO] YRIPIIAO pue LILnjewl pajels ou pue syusuileda Jo smpayds pajers ou Julaey SUBO] ‘SUBO] puewtaq “$00Z
*0¢ Jaquiaidag 1B Ajumiew 0) poy SUBO[ Sjueg 242 JO SSHLUNIEI [EMOENUOD PAINPaYIS 3 YLOJ 5195 2[qe) Suimol|o) oy, “swawdvday (odiduud [oniiuc?)




Scheduled contractual amortization of loans does not reflect the expected term of the Bank's loan portfolio. The
average life of loans is substantially less than their contractual terms because of prepayments and due-on-sale clauses
which give the Bank the right to declare a conventional loan immediately due and payable in the event, among other.
things, that the borrower sells the real property subject to the mortgage and the loan is not repaid. The average life of
mortgage loans tends to increase when current mortgage loan rates are higher than rates on existing mortgage loans and,
conversely, decrease when current mortgage loan rates are lower than rates on existing mortgage loans, due to
refinancings of adjustable-rate and fixed-rate loans at lower rates. Under the latter circumstances, the welghted average
yield on loans decreases as higher yielding loans are repaid or refinanced at lower rates.

Loan Origination, Purchase and Sale Activity. The following table shows the loan origination, purchase and sale

activity of the Bank during the periods indicated. : ‘
Year Ended September 30,

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Gross loans at beginning of period” ‘ $303,595 $303.624 - $268,233
Loan originations for investment: ' , :

Real estate: ' ' . '
Residential 35,214 80,722 60,719

Commercial and multi-family _ . 26,560 13,890 31,300
Construction ‘ 28,816 24,578 28,741
Home equity and lines of credit 29,133 129.920 21.710
Total real estate loans originated for investment ' 119,723 149,110 142,470
Consumer 2,695 - 2,927 2,825
Commercial business 13,734 17.548 21,555
Total loans originated for investment 136,152 169,585 166,850
Loans originated for resale _ 9,671 30,995 _3n2
Total originations 145.823 200,580 170,562
Deduct: _
Principal loan repayments and prepayments (117,069) (171,489) _ (131,374)
Transferred to real estate owned : (153) (2,122) (361)
Loans sold in secondary market . (9.814) {26,998) (3.436) .
' Subtotal . : 127.036 - (200,609 135,171
Net increase (decrease) in loans'” - _18.787 - (29) 35,391
Gross loans at end of period” . $322,382 $303.595 = $303.624

M Includes loans held for sale of $172,000, $4.5 million and $501,000 at September 30, 2004, 2003
-and 2002, respectively.



The residential lending activities of the Bank are subject to written underwriting standards and loan origination
procedures established by the Bank's Board of Directors and management. Loan applications may be taken at all of the
Bank's branch offices by the branch manager or other designated loan officers. Applications for single-family residential
mortgage loans for portfolio retention are obtained predominately through loan originators who are employees of the
Bank. The Bank's residential loan originators will take loan applications outside of the Bank's offices at the customer's
convenience and are compensated on a commission basis. The Residential Lending Department supervises the process of
obtaining credit reports, appraisals and other documentation involved with the adjustment of a loan. In most cases, the
Bank requires that a property appraisal be obtained in connection with all new first mortgage loans. Generally, appraisals
are not required on home equity loans below $250,000 because alternative means of valuation are used (i.e. tax
assessments). Property appraisals generally are performed by an independent appraiser from a list approved by the
Bank's Board of Directors. The Bank requires that title insurance (other than with respect to home equity loans) and
hazard insurance be maintained on all security properties and that flood insurance be maintained if the property is within
a designated flood plain.

Residential mortgage loan applications are primarily developed from referrals from real estate brokers and
builders, existing customers and walk-in customers. Commercial and multi-family real estate loan applications are
obtained primarily from previous borrowers, direct solicitations by Bank personnel, as well as referrals. Consumer loans
originated by the[Bank are obtained primarily through existing and walk-in customers who have been made aware of the
Bank's programs'by advertising and other means.

Applications for single-family residential mortgage loans which are originated for resale in the secondary market
or loans designated for portfolic retention that conform to the requirements for resale into the secondary market and do
not exceed Fannie Mae (“FNMA”) or Freddie Mac (“FHLMC”) limits are approved by at least one of the following: the
Bank's Director of Lending, the Vice President of Residential Lending, the Senior Mortgage Loan underwriter or the
Loan Commlttee (a committee comprised of four directors and the Director of Lending). Residential mortgage loans in
excess of FNMA/FHLMC maximum amounts (currently $333,700 for single-family properties) but less than $1.0 million
must be approved by the Loan Committee. All mortgage loans in excess of $1.0 million must be approved by the Bank's
Board of Directors or the Executive Committee thereof. Commercial and multi-family residential real estate loans in
excess of $250,000 and construction loans must be approved by the Loan Committee. All mortgage loans which do not
require approval by the Board of Directors are submitted to the Board at its next meeting for review and ratification.
Home equity loans and lines of credit up to $250,000 can be approved by the Director of Lending, the Vice President of
Construction Loans, the Vice President of Residential Lending or the Senior Mortgage Loan Underwriter. Loans in
excess of such amount must be approved by the Loan Committee.

Single-Family Residential Loans. Substantially all of the Bank's single-family residential mortgage loans consist
of conventional loans. Conventional loans are loans that are neither insured by the Federal Housing Administration or
partially guaranteed by the Department of Veterans Affairs. The vast majority of the Bank's single-family residential
mortgage loans are secured by properties located in Pennsylvania, primarily in Delaware and Chester Counties, and are
originated under terms and documentation which permit their sale to FHLMC or FNMA. The Bank, consistent with its
asset/liability management strategies, sells some of its newly originated 30 year term fixed-rate residential mortgage
loans and to a limited degree, existing longer term fixed-rate residential mortgage loans while retaining adjustable-rate
mortgage loans 1ahd shorter term fixed-rate residential mortgage loans. See "- Mortgage-Banking Activities."

The single-family residential mortgage loans offered by the Bank currently consist of fixed-rate loans, including
bi-weekly and balloon loans and adjustable-rate loans. Fixed-rate loans generally have maturities ranging from 15 to 30
years and are fully amortizing with monthly loan payments sufficient to repay the total amount of the loan with interest
by the end of the loan term. The Bank's fixed-rate loans are originated under terms, conditions and documentation which

permit them to be sold to U.S. Government-sponsored agencies, such as FHLMC or FNMA, and other purchasers inthe

secondary mortgage market. The Bank also offers bi-weekly loans under the terms of which the borrower makes
payments every two weeks. Although such loans have a 30 year amortization schedule, due to the bi-weekly payment
schedule, such loans repay substantially more rapidly than a standard monthly amortizing 30-year fixed-rate loan. The
Bank also offers five and seven year balloon loans which provide that the borrower can conditionally renew the loan at

the fifth or seventh year at a then to-be-determined interest rate for the remaining 25 or 23 years, respectively, of the




amortization period. At SeptemBer 30,2004, $144.7 million, or 88.3% of the Bank's single-family residential mortgage
loans held in portfolio were fixed-rate loans, including $11.2 million of bi-weekly, fixed-rate residential mongage loans.

The adjustable-rate loans currently-offered by the Bank have interest rates which adjust every one, three or five
years in accordance with a designated index, such as U.S. Treasury obligations, adjusted to a constant maturity ("CMT"),
plus a stipulated margin. The Bank's adjustable-rate single-family residential real estate loans generally have a cap of 2%
on any increase or decrease in the interest rate at any adjustment date, and a maximum adjustment limit of 6% on any
such increase or decrease over the life of the loan. In order to increase the originations of adjustable-rate loans, the Bank

. has been originating loans which bear a fixed interest rate for a period of three to five years after which they convert to

one-year adjustable-rate loans. The Bank's adjustable-rate loans require that any payment adjustment resulting from a
change in the interest rate of an adjustable-rate loan be sufficient to result in full amortization of the loan by the end of
the loan term and, thus, do not permit any of the increased payment to be added to the principal amount of the loan,
creating negative amortization. Although the Bank does offer adjustable-rate loans with initial rates below the fuily
indexed rate, loans tied to the one-year CMT are underwritten using methods approved by FHLMC or FNMA which
require borrowers to be qualified at 2% above the discounted loan rate under certain conditions. At September 30, 2004,
$19.2 million, or 11.7%, of the Bank's single-family residential mortgage loans held for portfolio were ad_]ustable-ratc
loans. : S

Adjustable-rate loans decrease the risks associated with changes in interest rates but involve other risks. In the
event interest rates increase, the loan payment by the borrower also increases to the extent permitted by the terms of the
loan, thereby increasing the potential for default. In addition, adjustable-rate loans tend to prepay and coavert to fixed
rates when the overall interest rate environment is Jow. Moreover, as with fixed-rate loans, as interest rates increase, the
marketability of the underlying collateral property may be adversely affected by higher interest rates. The Bank believes
that these risks, which have not had a material adverse effect on the Bank to date, generally are less than the risks
associated with holding fixed-rate loans in an increasing interest rate environment.

For conventional residential mortgage loans held in portfolio and also for those loans originated for sale in the
secondary market, the Bank’s maximum loan-to-value (*LTV”) ratio is 97%, and is based on the lesser of sales price or
appraised value. On loans with a LTV ratio of over 80%, private mortgage insurance may be required to be obtained or
the Bank may lend the excess as a home equity loan. :

Commercial and Multi-Family Residential Real Estate Loans. In fiscal 2004, the Bank has moderately increased
its investment in commercial and multi-family residential loans. Such loans are being made primarily to small- and
medium-sized businesses located in the Bank's primary market area, a segment of the market that the Bank believes has
continued to be under served in recent years. Loans secured by commercial and multi-family residential real estate
amounted to $64.5 million, or 20.0%, of the Bank's total loan portfolio, at September 30, 2004. The Bank's commercial
and multi-family residential real estate loans are secured primarily by professional office buildings, small retail

 establishments, warehouses and apartment buildings (with 36 units or less) located in the Bank's primary market area.

The Bank's adjustable-rate multi-family residential and commercial real estate loans generally are either three or
five-year adjustable-rate loans indexed to the CMT plus a margin. In addition, depending on collateral value and strength
of the borrower, fixed-rate balloon loans and longer term fixed-rate loans may be originated. Generally, fees of upto 1%
of the principal loan balance are charged to the borrower upon closing. Although terms for multi-family residential and
commercial real estate loans may vary, the Bank's underwriting standards generally provide for terms of up to 20 years
with amortization of the principal over the term of the loan and LTV ratios of not more than 75%. Generally, the Bank
obtains personal guarantees of the principals of the borrower as additional security for any commercial real estate and
multi-family residential loans and requires that the borrower have at least a 25% equity investment in any such property.




The Bank evaluates various aspects of commercial and multi-family residential real estate loan transactions in an
effort to mitigate risk to the extent possible. In underwriting these loans, consideration is given to the stability of the
property's cash flow history, future operating projections, current and projected occupancy, position in the market,
location and physical condition. In recent periods, the Bank has generally imposed a debt coverage ratio (the ratio of net
cash from operations before payment of debt service to debt service) of not less than 110%. The underwriting analysis
also includes credit checks and a review of the financial condition of the borrower and guarantor, if applicable. An
appraisal report is prepared by a state-licensed and certified appraiser (generally an appraiser who is qualified as a
Member of the Appraisal Institute ("MAI")) commissioned by the Bank to substantiate property values for every
commercial real jestate and multi-family loan transaction. All appraisal reports are reviewed by the commercial loan
underwriter prior to the closing of the loan.

Multi-family residential and commercial real estate lending entails different and significant risks when compared
to single-family residential lending because such loans often involve large loan balances to single borrowers and because
the payment experience on such loans is typically dependent on the successful operation of the project or the borrower's
business. These risks also-can be significantly affected by supply and demand conditions in the local market for
apartments, offices, warehouses or other commercial space. The Bank attempts to minimize its risk exposure by limiting
such lending to proven developers/owners, only considering properties with existing operating performance which can be

analyzed, requiring conservative debt coverage ratios, and periodically monitoring the operation and physical condition:

of the collateral See “-Non-performing Assets” for further discussion of the Bank’s non-performing loans.

Construction Loans. Substantially all of the Bank's construction loans consist of loans for acquisition and
development of properties to construct single-family properties extended either to individuals or to selected developers
with whom the Bank is familiar to build such properties on a pre-sold or limited speculative basis.

To a lesser extent, the Bank provides financing for construction to permanent commercial real estate properties.
Commercial construction loans have a maximum term of 24 months during the construction period with interest based
upon the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal ("Prime Rate") plus a margin and have LTV ratios of 80% or
less .of the appraised value upon completion. The loans convert to permanent commercial real estate loans upon
completion of construction. With respect to construction loans to individuals, such loans have a maximum term of 12
months, have variable rates of interest based upon the Prime Rate plus a margin and have LTV ratios of 80% or less of
the appraised value of the property upon completion and generally do not require the amortization of principal during the
term. Upon completion of construction, the borrower is required to refinance the loan although the Bank may be the
lender of the permanent loan secured by the property. :

The Bank also provides construction loans (including acquisition and development loans) and revolving lines of
credit to developers. The majority of construction loans consist of loans to selected local developers with whom the
Bank is familiar and who build single-family dwellings on a pre-sold or, to a significantly lesser extent, on a speculative
basis. The Bank generally limits to two the number of unsold units that a developer may have under construction in a
project. Such loans generally have terms of 36 months or less, have generally a maximum LTV ratio of 75% of the
appraised value of the property upon completion and do not require the amortization of the principal during the term.
The loans are made with variable rates of interest based on the Prime Rate plus a margin adjusted on a monthly basis.
The Bank also receives origination fees that generally range from 0.5% to 3.0% of the amount of the loan commitment.

The borrower is required to fund a portion of the project's costs, the exact amount being determined on a case-by-case -

basis but usually not less than 25%. Loan proceeds are disbursed by percentage of completion of the cost of the project

after inspections indicate that such disbursements are for costs already incurred and which have added to the value of the

project. Only interest payments are due during the construction phase and the Bank may provide the borrower with an
interest reserve from which it can pay the stated interest due thereon.

At September 30, 2004, residential construction loans totaled $15.4 million, or 4.8%, of the total loan portfolio,
primarily consisting of construction loans to developers. At September 30, 2004, commercial construcuon loans totaled
$3.4 million, or 1 1%, of the total loan portfolio.



The Bank also originates ground or land loans to individuals to purchase a property on which they intend to build
their primary residences, as well as to developers to purchase lots to build speculative homes at a later date. Such loans
have terms of 36 months or less with a maximum LTV ratio of 75% of the lower of appraised value or sale price. The
loans are made with variable rates based on the Prime Rate plus a margin. The Bank also receives origination fees,
which generally range between 1.0% and 3.0% of the loan amount. At September 30, 2004, land loans (including loans
to acquire and develop land) totaled $19.3 million, or 6.0%, of the total loan portfolio. '

Loans to developers mclude both secured and unsecured lines of credit (which are classrﬁed as commercial

- business loans) with outstanding commitments totaling $2.4 million. All have personal guaranties of the principals and

are cross-collateralized with existing loans. At September 30, 2004, loans outstanding under builder lines of credit
totaled $1.7 million, or .54%, of the total loan portfolio, of which $700,000 were unsecured and given only to the Bank's
most credltworthy long standing customers.

Prior to making a commitment to fund a construction loan, the Bank requires an appraisal of the property by an
appraiser approved by the Board of Directors. In addition, durmg the term of the constmcuon loan, the pro_]ect is
inspected by an independent inspector.

Construction financing generally is considered to involve a higher degree of risk of loss than long-term financing
on improved, owner-occupied real estate. Risk of loss on a construction loan is dependent largely upon the accuracy of -
the initial estimate of the property's value at completion of construction or development and the estimated cost (including
interest) of construction. During the construction phase, a number of factors could result in delays and cost overruns. If
the estimate of value proves to be inaccurate, the Bank may be confronted, at or prior to the maturity of the loan, with a
project, when completed, having a value which is insufficient to assure full repayment. Loans on lots may run the risk of
adverse zoning changes as well as environmental or other restrictions on future use.

Home Equity Loans and Lines of Credit. Home equity loans and home equity lines of credit are secured by the
underlying equity in the borrower's primary residence or, occasionally, other types of real estate. Home equity loans are
amortizing loans with fixed interest rates and generally maximum terms of 15 years while equity lines of credit have
adjustable interest rates indexed to the Prime Rate. Generally home equity loans or home equity lines of credit do not
exceed $100,000. The Bank's home equity loans and lines of credit generally require combined LTV ratios of 80% or
less. Loans with higher LTV ratios are available but with higher interest rates and stricter credit standards. At
September 30, 2004, home equity loans and lines of credit amounted to $43.6 million, or 13.5%, of the Bank's total loan
portfolio.

Consumer Lending Activities. The Bank also offers a variety of consumer loans in order to provide a full range of
retail financial services to its customers. At September 30, 2004, $1.5 million, or .5 %, of the Bank's total loan portfolio
was comprised of consumer loans. The Bank originates substantially all of such loans in its market area. At September
30, 2004, the Bank's consumer loan portfolio was comprised of credit card, deposit, unsecured personal loans and other
consumer loans. The Bank’s credit card program is primarily offered to only the Bank's most creditworthy customers.

_ At September 30, 2004, these loans totaled $629,000, or .2%, of the total loan portfolio. Another component of the -

consumer loan portfolio is unsecured loans amounting to $543,000, or .2%, of the Bank’s loan portfolio at September 30,
2004.

Consumer loans generally have shorter terms and higher interest rates than mortgage loans but generally involve
more credit risk than mortgage loans because of the type and nature of the collateral and, in certain cases, the absence of
collateral

. Commercial Business Loans. The Bank has also emphasized in recent periods the growth of its commercial
business loan portfolio by granting such loans directly to business enterprises that are located in its market area. The
majority of such loans are for less than $1.0 million. The Bank actively targets and markets this product to small-and
medium-sized businesses. Applications for commercial business loans are obtained from existing commercial customers,
branch and customer referrals, direct inquiry and those that are obtained by our commercial lending officers. As of
September 30, 2004, commercial business loans amounted to $10.6 million, or 3.3%, of the Bank's total loan portfolio.
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- The commercial business loans consist of a limited number of commercial lines of credit secured by real estate,
securities, some \}vorking capital financings secured by accounts receivable and inventory and, to a limited extent,
unsecured lines of credit. Commercial business loans originated by the Bank ordinarily have terms of five years or less
and fixed rates orjadjustable rates tied to the Prime Rate plus a margin.

Although commercial business loans generally are considered to involve greater credit risk than other certain types
of loans, management intends to continue to offer commercial business loans to small- and medium-sized businesses in
an effort to better serve our community’s needs, obtain core non-interest-bearing deposits and increase the Bank's interest
rate spread and interest rate sensitivity.

Mortgage-Banking Activities: Due to customer prefeljénce for fixed-rate loans, the Bank has continued to originate
fixed-rate loans. Long-term (generally 30 years) fixed-rate loans not taken into portfolio for asset/liability purposes are
sold into the secondary market. The Bank's net gain on sales of mortgage loans amounted to $54,000, $410,000, and
$84,000 during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Profits from sales of loans held
for sale significantly decreased in fiscal 2004 due to the slowdown in the refinancing market in 30-year loans resulting

from increases in long-term interest rates. The Bank had $172,000 and $4.5 million of mortgage loans held for sale at

September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. During fiscal 2004, management determined, based on its asset liability.
position, to retain a substantial portion of the loans designated held for sale at September 30, 2003 in its loan portfolio.

The Bank's conforming mortgage loans sold to others are sold, generally with servicing retained, on a loan-by-loan
basis primarily té) FHLMC or FNMA. A period of less than five days generally elapses between the closing of the loan
by the Bank and its purchase by the investor. Mortgages with established interest rates generally will decrease in value
during periods of i increasing interest rates. Accordingly, fluctuations in prevailing interest rates may result in a gain or
loss to the Bank las a result of adjustments to the carrying value of loans held for sale or upon sale of loans. The Bank
attempts to protect itself from these market fluctuations through the use of forward commitments entered into at the same
time of the commitment by the Bank of a loan rate to the borrower. These commitments are mandatory delivery
contracts with FHLMC or FNMA within a certain time frame and within certain dollar amounts by a price determined at
the commitment date. Market risk does exist as non-refundable points paid by the borrower may not be sufficient to
offset fees associated with closing the forward commitment contract. See Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements set forth in Item 8 hereof. :

Loan Origination Fees and Servicing. Borrowers may be charged an origination fee, which is a percentage of the
principal balance of the loan. . In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

("SFAS") No. 91, "Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Associated with Originating or Acquiring Loans and

Initial Direct Costs of Leases," the various fees received by the Bank in connection with the origination of loans are
deferred and amortized as a yield adjustment over the lives of the related loans using the interest method. However,
when such loans are sold, the remaining unamortized fees (which is all or substantially all of such fees due to the
relatively short period during which such loans are held) are recognized as income on the sale of loans held for sale..

The Bank, for conforming loan products, generally retains the servicing on all loans sold to others.. In addition, the
Bank services substantially all of the loans that it retains in its portfolio. Loan servicing includes collecting and remitting

loan payments, accounting for principal and interest, making advances to cover delinquent payments, making inspections -

as required of mortgaged premises, contacting delinquent mortgagors, supervising foreclosures and property dispositions
in the event of unremedied defaults and generally administering the loans. Funds that have been escrowed by borrowers

for the payment of mortgage-related expenses, such as property taxes and hazard and mortgage insurance premiums, are

‘maintained in noninterest-bearing accounts at the Bank.
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The following table presents information regarding the loans serviced by the Bank for others at the dates indicated.
Substantially all the loans were secured by properties in Pennsylvania. A small percentage of the loans are secured by
properties located in Delaware, Maryland or New Jersey.

September 30,
2004 2003 2002 .
(Dollars in thousands)
Loans originated by the Bank and serviced for: . o ‘ ‘
FNMA ‘ $ 673 $ 822 % 1,054
FHLMC . : , . 49,849 50,373 50,405
Others . : . ' 340 352 367
“Total loans serviced for others ' $50,862 M . 351,826

The Bank receives fees for servicing mongage loans, which generally amount to 0. 25% per annum on the
declmmg principal balance of mortgage loans. Such fees serve to compensate the Bank for the costs of performing the
servicing function. Other sources of loan servicing revenues include late charges. The Bank retains a portion of funds
received from borrowers on the loans it services for others in payment of its servicing fees received on loans serviced for
others. For fiscal years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Bank earned gross fees of $132 000, $140,000
and $160,000, respectively, from loan servicing.

Loans-to-One Borrower Limitations. Regulations impose limitations on the aggregate amount of loans that a
savings institution could make to any one borrower; including related entities. Under such regulations, the permissible

"~ amount of loans-to-one borrower follows the national bank standard for all loans made by savings institutions, which

generally does not permit loans-to-one borrower to exceed 15% of unimpaired capital and surplus. Loans in an amount
equal to an additional 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus also may be. made to-a borrower if the loans are fully
secured by readily marketable securities. At September 30, 2004, the Bank's five largest loans or groups of loans-to-one
borrower, including related entities, ranged from an aggregate of $5.3 million to $6.9 million, The Bank's loans-to-one
borrower limit was $7.1 million at such date.

Asset Quality

General. As apart of the Bank's efforts to improve its asset quality, it has developed and implemented an asset
classification system. All of the Bank's assets are subject to review under the classification system, but particular .
emphasis is placed on the review of multi-family residential and commercial real estate loans, construction loans and

' commercial business loans. All assets of the Bank are periodically reviewed and the classification recommendations
submitted to the Asset Quality Review Committee. The Asset Quality Review Committee is composed of the President
and Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Operating Officer, the Vice President of Loan Administration, the Internal
Auditor and the Vice President of Construction Lending and meets at least monthly. All assets are placed into one of the
four following categories: pass, substandard, doubtful and loss. The criteria used to review and establish each asset’s
classification are substantially identical to the asset classification system used by the Office of Thrift Supervision (the
"CTS") in connection with the examination process. Asof September 30,2004, the Bank did not have any assets which
it had classified as doubtful or loss. See "- Non-Performing Assets" and "- Other Classified Assets” for a discussion of
certain of the Bank's assets which have been classified as substandard and regulatory classification standards generally. .

When a borrower fails to make a required payment on a loan, the Bank attempts to cure the deficiency by
contacting the borrower and requesting payment. Contact is generally made after the expiration of the grace period
(usually fifteen days) in the form of telephone calls and/or correspondence. In most cases, deficiencies are cured
promptly. If the delinquency increases, the Bank will initiate foreclosure actions or legal collection actions if a borrower
fails to enter into satisfactory repayment arrangements. Such actions generally commence at sixty to nmety days of
dehnquency
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Loans are placed on non-accrual status when, in the judgment of management, the probability of collection of
interest is deemed|to be insufficient to warrant further accrual. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, previously
accrued but unpaid interest is deducted from interest income. As a matter of policy, the Bank does not accrue interest on
loans past due 90 days or more. See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item 8 hereof.

Real estate acquired by the Bank as a result of foreclosure or by deed-in-lieu of foreclosure is classified as real
estate owned until sold. Real estate owned is initially recorded at the lower of fair value less estimated costs to sell the
property, or costi(generally the balance of the loan on the property at the date of acquisition). After the date of
acquisition, all costs incwred in maintaining the property are expensed and costs incurred for the improvement or
development of such property are capitalized up to the extent of their net realizable value.

Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"), the Bank is required to
account for certain loan modifications or restructurings as "troubled debt restructurings” under SFAS No. 15. In general,
the modification or restructuring of a debt constitutes a troubled debt restructuring if the Bank, for economic or legal
reasons Telated to the borrower's financial difficulties, grants a concession to the borrower that the Bank would not
otherwise consider under current market conditions. Debt restructuring or loan modifications for a borrower do not

necessarily always constitute troubled debt restructuring, however, and troubled debt restructuring does not necessarily

result in non-accrual loans.

Delinquent Loans. The following table sets forth information concerning delinquent loans at the dates indicated,
in dollar amounts and as a percentage of each category of the Bank's loan portfolio. The amounts presented represent the
total outstanding principal balances of the related loans, rather than the actual payment amounts which are past due.

At September 30, 2004 At September 30, 2003
30t0 59 days 60 to 89 days 30 to 59 days 60 to 89 days

Real estate loans:

Single-family residential $-- $ 27 $84 $127
Multi-family and commercial - 3,357 531 -
Home equity - 116 ‘ 64 167
Consumer loans 5 7 _ 12 1
Commercial business loans - 100 60 _
Total 35 $3.857 . $751 $295

M Consists of one commercial real estate loan. (See “Other Classified Assets”™)
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Non-performing Assets. The following table sets forth the amounts and categories of the Bank's non-peffomﬁng

assets at the dates indicated.
September 30,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands) ‘

~Non-performing loans:

Single-family residential : $ 623 $ 688 $1,237 $1,924 $2,109
Commercial and multi-family® - - 381 - 238 - 33 -
Construction® - 770 - - - -
Home equity and lines of credit 243 -- -- -- --
Consumer ’ 6 16 19 314 48
Commiercial business - 268 138 - 3
Total non-accrual loans 1,642 1,353 3,780 2271 2,160
Accruing loans more than 90 days delinquent 391 203® 1,358 _ 31 355
Total non-performing loans 2,033 1,556 5,138 2,302 2,515
Real estate owned 1,229 1,420 248 887 947
Total non-performing assets 33262 $2,976 $5386  $3,189  $3462

Total non-performing loans

as a percentage of gross loans ' S ‘
receivable ¥ 066% @ 053% L1.76% 0.92% 1.07%

Total non-performing assets
as a percentage of total assets

057%  0.53% 1.04%  065%  0I5%

@ Consists of one loan at September 30, 2003, three loans at September 30, 2002 (all of whlch became real estate
owned during fiscal 2003, and one loan at September 30, 2001. :

@ Consists of one single-family residential construction Joan at September 30, 2004.

3y Consists of six loans at September 30, 2004, two loans at September 30, 2003 and one commercial real estate loan of
$1.3 million at September 30, 2002 which returned to current status subsequent to September 30, 2002.

®  Includes loans receivable and loans held for sale, less construction and land loans in process and deferred loan
origination fees and discounts.
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The $623,600 of non-performing single-family residential loans at September 30, 2004 consisted of 11 loans with

principal balances ranging from $385 to $163,000, with an average balance of approximately $56,600. Included within -

the 11 loans, are two loans aggregating $225,000 to credit impaired borrowers.

At September 30, 2004, the $770,000 of non-performing construction loans consisted ofa single construction loan
for a single-family dwelling located in New Castle County, Delaware. The borrower is refinancing the loan with another
financial institution.

The $243,000 of non-performing home equity and lines of credit at September 30, 2004 consisted of seven loans,
with an average balance of approximately $34,700.

Loans 90 days or more past maturity which continued to make payments on a basis consistent with the oﬁginal

repayment schedule amounted to $391,000 at September 30, 2004. The Company is working with the borrowers to -

refinance or extend the term of such loans.

At September 30, 2004, the $1.2 million of real estate owned (including in-substance foreclosure) consisted of
two single-family residential properties, with an average carrying value of $102,000 with the largest having a carrying
value of $73,000/and a $1.1 million commercial real estate property. The commercial real estate property is an 18-hole
golf course and golf house, located in Avondale, Pennsylvania. - The golf facility is fully operational and continues to
generate revenues. During fiscal 2004, the Bank incurred expenses in the amount of $147,000 relating to the workout of
these loans, The property is under agreement of sale and the buyer is operating and i mcumng the expense of operatmg
the facility.

Other Classified Assets. ‘Federal banking regulations require that each insured savings association classify its
assets on a regular basis. In addition, in connection with examinations of insured institutions, federal examiners have
authority to identify problem assets and, if appropriate, classify them. There are four classifications for problem assets:
"substandard," "doubtful”, “loss” and "special mention." Substandard assets have one or more defined weaknesses and
are characterized by the distinct possibility that the insured institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not
corrected. Doubtful assets have the weaknesses of substandard assets with the additional characteristic that the
weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions and values
questionable, and there is a high possibility of loss. An asset classified loss is considered uncollectible and of such little
value that continuance as an asset of the institution is not warranted.

At Septer‘hber 30, 2004, the Bank had $3.8 million of assets classified as substandard, and no assets classified as
doubtful, loss or special mention. A substantial majority of all classified assets consist of non-performing assets.

Included in delinquent loans at September 30, 2004 is a $3.4 million commercial real estate loan to one borrower
secured by a commercial real estate property is a restaurant in Chesapeake City, Maryland. Subsequent to fiscal year-
end, the loan as well as a related business line of credit extended to the borrower was classified as special mention due to
the borrower’s poor payment history.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The Bank's policy is to establish reserves for estimated losses on delinquent loans
when it determines that losses are probable. The allowance for losses on loans is maintained at a level believed by

management to cover all known and inherent losses in its loan portfolio. Management's analysis of the adequacy of the

allowance is based on an evaluation of the loan portfolio, past loss experience, current economic conditions, volume,
growth and composition of the portfolio, and other relevant factors. The allowance is increased by provisions for loan
losses which are charged against income. However, in fiscal 2004, the level of provisions decreased due to the Bank’s
evaluation of its estimate of losses and charge-offs in the loan portfolio. As shown in the table below, at September 30,
2004, the Bank's allowance for loan losses amounted to 100.30% and 0.67% of the Bank's non-performing loans and
gross loans receivable, respectively. At September 30, 2004, the Bank did not have any impaired loans, therefore, no
related allowance for Joan losses was established.

Management of the Bank presently believes that its allowance for loan losses is adequate to cover any probable
losses in the Bank's loan portfolio. However, future adjustments to this allowance may be necessary, and the Bank's
results of operations could be adversely affected if circumstances differ substantially from the assumptions used by
management in' making its determinations in this regard.
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The following table provides information regarding the changcs in the allowance for loan losses and other selected -
statistics for the periods presented. -

Year Ending September 30,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(Dollars in thousands)
Allowance for loan losses, beginning of period $1,986 $2,358 $2,181 $2,019 - $1,928
Charged-off loans; : ' .
Single-family residential ) - 50) (317) (492) - (182)
Multi-family and commercml (62) (941) Ce- -- --
Construction - - - - (117
Consumer and commercial business (259) (111 (56) - _{40) (64)
Total charged-off loans - (321 (1,102} 373y (532) (363)
Recoveries on loans previously charged off: _ . C
Single-family residential 35 4 1 1 --
Commercial leases ¢ - - S 134 33
. Multi-family and commercial 32 -- - Ce C -
Consumer and commercial business _ 1 11 9 9 . 1
Total recoveries 74 15 10 154 i 34
Net loans charged-off (247) (1,087) (363) (378) (329)
Provision for loan losses 300 715 540 540 420 -
Allowance for loan losses, end of period : $2,039 $1.986 $2,358 $2.181  $2.019
Net loans charged-off to average loans outstanding® _008% _037% 013%  .016% _014%
Allowance for loan losses to gross loans receivable® _067% _068% . _081% _087% _0.86%
Allowance for loan losses to total non-performing loans 100.30% 127.63% 4589%  94.74% 80.28%
Net loans charged-off to allowance for loan losses o JA211%  _5473% 1539% 17.33% 16.30%
Recoveries to charge-offs 23.05% _ 1.36% _268% 2895% _937%

M Relate to commercial leases purchased in prior years.

@ Gross loans receivable and average loans outstanding include loans receivable as well as loans held for sale,
less construction and land loans in process and deferred loan ongmatnon fees and discounts.
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Mortgage-Related and Investment Securities

- Mortgage-Related Securities. Federally chartered savings institutions have authority to invest in various
types of liquid assets, including U.S. Treasury obligations, securities of various federal agencies and of state and
municipal governments, certificates of deposit at federally insured banks and savings associations, certain
bankers' acceptances and federal funds. Subject to various restrictions, federally chartered savings institutions
also may invest a portion of their assets in commercial paper, corporate debt securities and mutual funds, the
assets of which conform to the investments that federally chartered savings msututmns are otherwise authorized
to make directly.

The Bank maintains a significant portfolio of mortgage-related securities (including mortgage-backed
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs”) as a means of investing in housing-related mortgage
instruments without the costs associated with originating mortgage loans for portfolio retention and with limited
credit risk of default which arises in holding a portfolio of loans to maturity. Mortgage-backed securities (which
also are known as mortgage participation certificates or pass-through certificates) represent a -participation
interest in a pool of single-family or multi-family residential mortgages. The principal and interest payments on
mortgage-backed securities are passed from the mortgage originators, as servicer, through intermediaries
(generally U.S. Government agencies and government-sponsored enterprises) that pool and repackage the
participation interests in the form of securities, to investors such as the Bank. Such U.S. Government agencies
and government-sponsored enterprises, which guarantee the payment of principal and interest to investors,
primarily include FHLMC, FNMA and the Government National Mortgage Association ("GNMA"). The Bank
also invests in certain privately issued, credit enhanced mortgage-related securities rated AAA. by national
securities rating agencies.

FHLMC is a public corporation chartered by the U.S. Government. FHLMC issues participation
certificates backed principally by conventional morigage loans. FHLMC gnarantees the timely payment -of
interest and the ultimate return of principal on participation certificates. FNMA is a private corporation chartered
by the U.S. Congress with a mandate to establish a secondary market for mortgage loans. FNMA guarantees the
timely payment of principal and interest on FNMA securities. FHLMC and FNMA securities are not backed by
the full faith and credit of the United States, but because FHLMC and FNMA are U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises, these securities are considered to be among the highest guality investments with minimal credit risks.
GNMA is a government agency within the Department of Housing and Urban Development which is intended to
help finance government-assisted housing programs. GNMA securities are backed by Federal Housing
Administration (“FHA") insured and the Department of Veterans Affairs (“VA”") guaranteed loans, and the timely
payment of principal and interest on GNMA securities are guaranteed by the GNMA and backed by the full faith
and credit of the U.S. Government. Because FHLMC, FNMA and GNMA were established to provide support .
for low- and middle-income housing, there are limits to the maximum size of loans that qualify for these
programs which is currently $333,700 (for single family dwellings).

Mortgage-related securities typically are issued with stated principal amounts, and the securities are backed
by pools of mortgages that have loans with interest rates that are within a range and have varying maturities. The
underlying pool of mortgages can be composed of either fixed-rate or adjustable-rate loans. As aresult, therisk
characteristics of the underlying pool of mortgages (i.e., fixed-rate or adjustable rate) as well as prepayment risk,
are passed on to the certificate holder. Thus, the life of a mortgage-backed pass-through security approxxmates
the life of the underlying mortgages.

The Bank's mortgage-related securities include regular interests in CMOs. CMOs were developed in_
response to investor concerns regarding the uncertainty of cash flows associated with the prepayment option of
the underlying mortgagor and are typically issued by governmental agencies, governmental sponsored enterprises
and special purpose entities, such as trusts, corporations or partnerships, established by financial institutions or
other similar institutions. A CMO can be (but is not required to be) collateralized by loans or securities which
are insured or guaranteed by FNMA, FHLMC or the GNMA. In contrast to pass-through mortgage-related -
securities, in which cash flow is received pro rata by all security holders, the cash flow from the mortgages
underlying a CMO is segmented and paid in accordance with a predetermined priority to investors holding
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various CMO classes. By allocating the principal and interest cash flows from the underlying collateral among
the separate CMO classes, different classes of bonds are created, each with its own stated maturity, esnmated
average life, coupon rate and prepayment characteristics. :

The short-term classes of a CMO usually carry a lower coupon rate than the longer term classes and,
therefore, the interest differential cash flow on a residual interest is greatest in the early years of the CMO. As

the early coupon classes are extinguished, the residual income declines. Thus, the longer the lower coupon’

classes remain;outstanding; the greater the cash flow accruing to CMO residuals. As interest rates decline,
prepayments accelerate, the interest differential narrows, and the cash flow from the CMO declines. Conversely,
as interest rates increase, prepayments decrease, generating a larger cash flow to residuals.

A senior-subordinated structure often is used with CMOs to provide credit enhancement for securities
which are backed by collateral which is not guaranteed by FNMA, FHLMC or the GNMA. These structures
divide mortgage pools into various risk classes: a senior class and one or more subordinated classes. The
subordinated classes provide protection to the senior class. When cash flow is impaired, debt service goes first to
the holders of senior classes. In addition, incoming cash flows also may go into a reserve fund to meet any future
shortfalls of cash flow to holders of senior classes. The holders of subordinated classes may not receive any
" funds until the holders of senior classes have been paid and, when appropriate, until a spec1ﬁed level of funds has
been contributed to the reserve fund.

Mortgage-related securities generally bear yields which are less than those of the loans which underlie such
securities because of their payment guarantees or credit enhancements which reduce credit risk to nominal levels.
However, mortgage-related securities are more liquid than individual mortgage loans and may be used to
collateralize certain obligations of the Bank. At September 30, 2004, $17.1 million of the Bank's mortgage-
related securities were pledged to secure various obligations of the Bank, treasury tax and loan processing and as
collateral for certain municipal deposits.

The Barnk's mortgage-related securities are classified as either "held to maturity” or "available for sale””

based upon the Bank's intent and ability to hold such securities to maturity at the time of purchase, in accordance
with GAAP. As of September 30, 2004, the Bank had an aggregate of $135.0 million, or 23.6%, of total assets
invested in mortgage-related securities, net, of which $37.4 million was held to maturity and $97.6 million was
available for sale. The Company’s investment strategy is to maintain the portfolio to complement the asset-
liability structure of the Company. To protect the effect of price volatility to the Company’s financial statements,
the Company's strategy during fiscal 2004 was to increase the held to maturity portfolio. The mortgage-related
securities of the Bank which are held to maturity are carried at cost, adjusted for the amortization of premiums
and the accretion of discounts using a level yield method, while mortgage-related securities available for sale are
carried at the current fair value. See Notes 2 and 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in

Item 8 hereof.
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The following table sets forth the composition of the Bank's available for sale (at fair value) and held to
maturity (at amortized cost) mortgage-related securities portfolios at the dates indicated.

Septembei‘ 30,

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Available for sale:
Mortgage-backed securities:

FHLMC ' $ 5811 $ 6,950 $ 5,261
FNMA 42,861 46,030 13,463
GNMA 1,270 13,639 33,621
Total mortgage-backed securities 49,942 66,619 52,345
Collateralized mortgage obligations: o .
FHLMC 15,649 20,239 9,509
FNMA 6,543 5,381 3,751 .
GNMA - - . -~
Other ’ 25486 __32417% ° _20,069®
Total collateralized mortgage obligations 47.678 58,037 33,329

Total mortgage-related securities - $97.620  $124,656 $85.674

Held to maturity:

Mortgage-backed securities: . ,
FHLMC . $16,226 $ 478 -$1,433

FNMA 20,613 2,123 3,574
Total mortgage-backed securities - . 36839 2.601 5.007
Collateralized mortgage obligations: ’
FNMA ‘ 524 886 3,848
Total collateralized mortgage obligations 524 - 886 3,848
Total mortgage-related securities, amortized cost 337,363 33,487 $8.855
Total fair value® $37.312 $3.560 - £9.090

M Includes “AAA” rated securities of Countrywide Home Loans, Washington Mutual, AMAC, First
Horizon and Mastr Asset with book values of $5.2 million, $4.7 million, $2.0 million, $ 4.9 million
and $4.0 million, respectively, and fair values of $5 2 million, $4.7 million, $1.9 million, $4.9 million
and $4.1 million, respectively. ‘

@ Includes “AAA” rated securities of Countrywide Home Loans, Washington Mutual, AMAC and First.
Horizon with book values of $6.5 million, $6.8 million, $4.7 million and $ 3.6 million, respectively,
and fair values of $6.4 million, $6.7 million, $4.8 million and $3.5 million, respectively.

@ Includes “AAA” rated securities of Northwest Asset Securities Corporation, Credit Suisse First
Boston, Washington Mutual and Countrywide Home Loans with book values of $2.9 million, $4.1
million, $5.1 million and $2.7 million, respectively, and falr values of $3.0 million, $4. 1 million, $S 1
million and $2.8 million, respectively.

@ See Note 4 of the Notes to Conéolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item 8 hereof.
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. The followmg table sets forth the purchases, sales and principal repayments of the Bank's mortgage- related :

securities for the periods indicated.

Year Ended September 30,

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Mortgage-related securities, beginning of period"*® $128.143 $94.529  $129.062
Purchases: _

Mortgage-backed securities - availabie for sale 11,106 50,199 9,280

Mortgage-related securities — held to maturity 37,856 - --

CMOs - available for sale 11,222 -81,942 18,231
Sales: ‘

Mortgage-backed securities - available for sale (7,073) 4,493) —

CMO:s - available for sale - (3,064) --
Repayments and prepayments: '

Mortgage-backed securities (23,006) (32,563) (26,820)

CMOs (21,262)  (55,941) (34,554)
Decrease in net/ premium ‘ (787) (1,128) (315)
Change in net unrealized (loss) gain on mortgage-related ,

securities available for sale (12160 __(1,338) ____(359)

Net increase (décrease) in mortgage-related securities ) 6.840 33614 . (34533) .
Mortgage-related sccurities, end of periodV® 3134983« $128,143 $ 94,529

"’ Includes both' mortgage -related securities available for sale and held to maturity. :
2 Calculated atlamortized cost for securities held to maturity and at fair value for securities available for sale.

At September 30, 2004, the estimated weighted average maturity of the Bank's fixed-rate mortgage-related
securities was approximately 2.5 years. The actual maturity of a mortgage-backed security is less than its stated
maturity due to prepayments of the underlying mortgages. Prepayments that are faster than anticipated may shorten
the life of the security and adversely affect its yield to maturity. The yield is based upon the interest income and the
amortization of any premium or discount related to the mortgage-backed security. In accordance with GAAP,
premiums and discounts are amortized over the estimated lives of the securities, which decrease and increase interest
income, respectively. The prepayment assumptions used to determine the amortization period for premiums and
discounts can significantly affect the yield of the mortgage-backed security, and these assumptions are reviewed
periodically to reflect actual prepayments. Although prepayments of underlying mortgages depend on many factors,
including the type of mortgages, the coupon rate, the age of mortgages, the geographical location of the underlying
real estate collateralizing the mortgages and general levels of market interest rates, the difference between the interest

rates on the underlymg mortgages and the prevailing mortgage interest rates generally is the most significant-

determinant of the rate of prepayments. During periods of declining mortgage interest rates, such as the Bank
experienced during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, if the coupon rates of the underlying mortgages exceed the prevailing
market interest rates offered for mortgage loans, refinancings generally increase and accelerate the prepayment rate of
the underlying mortgages and the related securities. Conversely, during periods of increasing mortgage interest rates,
if the coupon rates of the underlying mortgages are less than the prevailing market interest rates offered for mortgage
loans, refinancings generally decrease and decrease the prepayment rate of the underlying mortgages and the related
securities. As a result of the declining interest rate environment, the Bank experienced high levels of repayments and
accelerated prepayments, and consequently, the Bank reinvested the proceeds of such repayments and prepayments at
lower yields. During the latter part of fiscal 2004, the Company experienced lower prepayment speeds and
refinancing activity as interest rates offered for mortgage loans in the marketplace increased starting at the end of the
second quarter. '
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Investment Securities.. The following table sets forth information regarding the carrying and fair value of the
Company's investment securities, both held to maturity and available for sale, at the dates indicated.

At September 30,
2004 2003 2002
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value -Value . - Value Value

(Dollars in thousands) - o '
FHLB stock - $9827 $9827 $ 8294  $8294  $6571 $ 6571

U.S. Government and agency
obligations » . :
"~ 1105 years 14,694 14,495 13,020 13,004 11,986 12,114
5 to 10 years - - 4,880 4,988 1,861 2,071
Municipal obligations 15,223 15,691 17,373 17,895 19,012 19,800
Corporate bonds ' 15,336 16,134 20,621 21,693 14,299 14,720
Mutual funds 14,009 13,804 14,009 13,952 14,009 14,045
Asset-backed securities 1,189 - 1,197 1,911 1,922 2,837 2,853
Preferred stocks 3,900 3,900 5,474 4,984 10,682 10,751
Other equity investments 1,755 3.764 3.126 5712 __3476 4,269

Total $75933  $28.812  $88.708 392444 384733  $87.194

At September 30, 2004, the Company had an aggregate of $78.8 million, or 13.8%, of its total assets invested
in investment securities, of which $9.8 million consisted of FHLB stock, $63.6 million was investment securities
available for sale and $5.4 million investment securities held to maturity. Included in U.S. Government and agency
obligations are callable bonds with a remaining term of approximately four years. The Bank's investment securities
(excluding mutual funds, equity securities and FHLB stock) had a weighted average maturity to the call date of 5.46
years and a weighted average yield of 5.97% (adjusted to a fully taxable equivalent yield).”

Sources of Funds

General. The Bank's principal source of funds for use in lending and for other general business purposes has
traditionally come from deposits obtained through the Bank's branch offices. - The Bank also derives funds from
.contractual payments and prepayments of outstanding loans and mortgage-related securities, from sales of loans, from
maturing investment securities and from advances from the FHLB of Pittsburgh and other borrowings. Loan
repayments are a relatively stable source of funds, while deposits inflows and outflows are significantly influenced by
general interest rates and money market conditions. The Bank uses borrowings to supplement its deposits as a source
of funds. : : '

Deposits. The Bank's current deposit products include passbook accounts, NOW accounts, MMDAs,
certificates of deposit ranging in terms from 30 days to five years and non-interest-bearing personal and business -
checking accounts. The Bank's deposit products also include Individual Retirement Account ("IRA") certificates and
Keogh accounts. : _ o

The Bank's deposits are obtained primarily from residents in Delaware and Chester Counties in southeastern
Pennsylvania. The Bank attracts local deposit accounts by offering a wide variety of accounts, competitive interest
rates, and convenient branch office locations and service hours. The Bank utilizes traditional marketing methods to
attract new customers and savings deposits, including print media, radio advertising and direct mailings. However,
the Bank does not solicit funds through deposit brokers nor does it pay any brokerage fees if it accepts such deposits:
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The Bank has been competitive in the types of accounts and interest rates it has offered on its deposit products
but does not necessarily seek to match the highest rates paid by competing institutions.. As a result of not offering the
highest rate for certificates of deposit, the Bank experienced a decline in overall deposits in fiscal 2004. Even with
the decline in the deposits, 52.2% of the deposits with the Bank consisted of core deposits at September 30,2004. As
aresult of the significant decline in'interest rates paid on deposit products in fiscal 2003 and 2002, due to generally
declining returns on competing investment opportunities as well as the effects of the decline of the equities markets,

the Bank did not jexperience disintermediation of deposits into competing investment products in fiscal 2003 and

2002. :

The following table shows the distribution of, and certain information relating to, the Bank's deposits by type

of deposit as of the dates indicated.
September 30,

2004 2003 2002
Amount  Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

(Dollars in thousands)

Passbook . $51,371 -1490% $ 47,089 12.99%  $ 41,659 12.60%
MMDA 51,682 14.98 55,889 15.41 48,721 14.73
NOW : 55,864 16.20 60,221 16.61 48,803 14.75
Certificates of deposit 164,917  47.82 178,480  49.22 176,242  53.28
Non-interest-bearing 21,046 6.10 20,917 577 15,340 4.64
Total deposits $344880 100.00%  $£362,605  10000% . $330.765 -100.00%

The following table sets forth the net savings flows of the Bank during the periods indicated.

Year Ended September 30,

2004 . 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)
(Decrease) increase before interest credited $(22,744) $25,633 $10,477
Interest credited - 5.019 6,207 8,687
Net savings (decrease) increase $(17,725) $31,840 $19,164

The following table sets forth maturities of the Bank's certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more at
September 30, 2004 and 2003 by time remaining to maturity (amounts in thousands).

September 30,
2004 2003
Three months or less $19,770 $11,724
Over three months through six months 5,144 6,581
.Over six months through twelve months . » 1,370 5,984
Over twelve months ‘ 5,830 9,889
332,114 $34,178
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Borrowings. The Bank may obtain advances from the FHLB of Pittsburgh upon the security of the common stock
it owns in the FHLB and certain of its residential mortgage loans and securities held to maturity, provided cértain
standards related to creditworthiness have been met. Such advances are made pursuant to several credit programs, each
of which has its own interest rate and range of maturities. During fiscal 2004 and 2003, the Company funded a portion of
its asset growth with overnight borrowings from FHLB. At September 30, 2004, the Bank had $169.9 million in
outstanding FHLB advances and overnight borrowings. The FHLB advances have certain call features whereby the

FHLB of Pittsburgh can call the borrowings after the expiration of certain time frames. The time frames on the callable

borrowings range/from one month to two years. See Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in
Item 8 hereof.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our outside borrowings for the periods indicated.

September 30,
2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)
FHLB advances ’ '

Average balance outstanding for the period $152,656 $131,083
Maximum outstanding at any month end 169,890 - 141,704
Balance outstanding at end of the period 169,887 133,203
Average interest rate for the period 4.66% 1 5.32%
Interest rate at the end of the period 4.39% 5.41%

In addition, the Company participated in junior subordinated debentures aggregating $21.6 million at September
30,2004 held by statuary trusts that issued trust preferred securities. See Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements set forth in Item 8 hereof.

Subsidiaries

The Bank is permitted to invest up to 2% of its assets in the capital stock of, or secured or unsecured loans to,

service corporations, with an additional investment of 1% of assets when such additional investment is utilized primarily
for community development purposes. It may invest essentially unlimited amounts in subsidiaries deemed operating
subsidiaries thatican only engage in activities that the Bank is permitted to engage in. Under such limitations, as of
September 30, 2004, the Bank was authorized to invest up to approximately $11.4 million in the stock of, or loans to,
service corporations. As of September 30, 2004, the net book value of the Bank's investment in stock, unsecured loans,
and conforming loans to its service corporations was $32,000.

At Septcmbcr 30, 2004, in addition to the Bank, the Company has two direct sub51d1anes FKF Management
Corp., Inc. and State Street Services Corp.

FKF Management Corp., Inc., a Delaware corporation, is a wholly owned operating subsidiary of the Bank
established in 1997 for the purpose of managing certain assets of the Bank. Assets under management totaled $153.6
million at September 30, 2004 and were comprised principally of investment and mortgage-related securities.

State Street Services Corp. is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank established in 1999 for the purpose of
offering a full array of insurance products through its ownership of a 51% interest in First Keystone Insurance Services,
LLC (“First Keystone Insurance”), and therefore, First Keystone Insurance is consolidated into the Company’s financial
statements. In addition, State Street Services Corp. holds a 10% equity position in a title company which offers title
services.

Employees

The Bank had 92 full-time employees and 13 part-time employees as of September 30, 2004. None of these

employees is represented by a collective bargaining agreement. The Bank believes that it enjoys excellent relations with
its personnel.
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Regulation

The Company. The Company as a savings and loan Bold'mg company within the meaning of the Home Owners'
Loan Act, as amended ("HOLA"), is registered as such with the OTS and is subject to OTS regulations, examination,
supervision and reporting requirements. As a subsidiary of a savings and loan holding company, the Bank is subject to
certain restrictions in its dealings with the Company and affiliates thereof.

-Federal Activities Restrictions. The Company operates as a unitary savings and loan holdmg company.
Generally, there are only limited restrictions on the activities of a unitary savings and loan holding company which
applied to become or was a unitary saving and loan holding company prior to May 4, 1999 and its non-savings institution
subsidiaries. Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (the “GLBA”"), companies which apply to the OTS to become
unitary savings and loan holding companies are restricted to only engaging in those activities traditionally permitted to
multiple saving and loan holding companies. However, if the Director of the OTS determines that there is reasonable
cause to believe that the continuation by a savings and loan holding company of an activity constitutes a serious risk to
the financial safety, soundness or stability of its subsidiary savings association, the Director may impose such restrictions
as deemed necessary to address such risk, including limiting (i) payment of dividends by the savings association; (ii)
transactions between the savings association and its affiliates; and (iii) any activities of the savings association that might
create a serious risk that the liabilities of the holding company and its affiliates may be imposed on the savings

-association. Notwithstanding the above rules regarding permissible business activities of grandfathered unitary savings

and loan holding companies under the GLBA. (such as the Company), if the savings association subsidiary of such a
-holding company fails to meet the Qualified Thrift Lender (“QTL") test, then such unitary holding company also shall
become subject to the activities restrictions applicable to multiple savings and loan holding companies and, unless the

* savings association qualifies as a QTL within one year thereafter, shall register as, and become subject to the restrictions

applicable to, a bank holding company.

If the Company weré to acquire control of another savings association, other than through merger or other business
combination with the Bank, the Company would thereupon become a multiple savmgs and loan holdmg company and
would thereafter be subject to further restrictions on its activities, -

The GLBA alsoimposes financial privacy obligations and reporting requirements on all financial institutions. The
privacy regulations require, among other things, that financial institutions establish privacy policies and disclose such
policies to its customers at the commencement of a customer relationship and annually thereafter. In addition, financial
institutions are required to permit customers to opt out of the financjal msutuuon s disclosure of the customer's financial
information to non-affiliated third parties. : :

The HOLA requires every savings institution subsidiary of a savings and loan holding company to give the OTS at
least 30 days' advance notice of any proposed dividends to be made on its guarantee, permanent or other
nonwithdrawable stock, or else such capital distribution will be invalid. See “- The Bank - Restrictions on Capital
Distributions." :

v Limitations on Transactions with Affiliates. Transactions between savings associations and any affiliate are
governed by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act ("FRA").and OTS regulations issued in connection

- therewith. Affiliates of a savings institution include, among other entities, the savings institution's holding company and

companies that are controlled by or under common control with the savings institution. Generally, Sections 23A and 23B
(i) limit the extent to which the savings association or its subsidiaries may engage in "covered transactions" with any one
affiliate to an amount equal to10% of such association's capital stock and surplus, and contain an aggregate limit on all
" such transactions with all affiliates to an amount equal to 20% of such capital stock and surplus and (ii) require that all . .
. such transactions be on terms substantially the same, or at least as favorable, to the association or subsidiary as those
provided to a non-affiliate. The term "covered transaction” includes, among other things, the making of loans or -
extension of credit to an affiliate, purchase of assets, issuance of a guarantee and similar transactions. In addition to the
restrictions imposed by Sections 23A and 23B, under OTS regulations no savings association'may (i) loan or otherwise
extend credit to an affiliate, except for any affiliate which engages only in activities which are permissible for bank
holding companies, (ii) a savings association may not purchase or invest in securities of an affiliate other than shares of a
subsidiary; (iii) a savings association and its subsidiaries may not purchase a low-quality asset from an affiliate; (iv) and
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covered transactions and certain other transactions between a savings association or its subsidiaries and an affiliate must -

be on terms and ¢onditions that are consistent with safe and sound banking practices. With certain exceptions, each
extension of credit by a savings association to an affiliate must be secured by collateral with a market value ranging from
100% to 130% (depending on the type of collateral) of the amount of the loan or extension of credit. ‘

OTS regulations generally exclude all non-bank and non-savings association subsidiaries of savings associations
from treatment as affiliates, except to the extent that the OTS or the Federal Reserve Board (“FRB”) decides to treat such
subsidiaries as affiliates. The regulations also require savings associations to make and retain records that reflect affiliate
transactions in reasonable detail, and provide that certain classes of savings associations may be required to give the OTS
prior notice of affiliate transactions.

Restrictions on Acquisitions. Except under limited circumstances, savings and loan holding companies are
prohibited from acquiring, without prigr approval of the Director of the OTS, (i) control of any other savings association
or savings and loan holding company or substantially all of the assets thereof; or (ii) more than 5% of the voting shares of
a savings association or holding company thereof which is not a subsidiary. Except with the prior approval of the

Director of the OTS, no director or officer of a savings and loan holding company or person owning or controlling by

proxy or otherwise more than 25% of such company's stock, may acquire control of any savings association, other than a
subsidiary savings association, or of any other savings and loan holding company.

Federal Securities Laws. The Company's Common Stock is registered with the SEC under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, asjamended ("Exchange Act"). The Company is subject to the information, proxy sohcnatxon, instder
trading restrictions and other requirements under the Exchange Act.

Shares of Common Stock owned by an affiliate of the Company are subject to the resale restrictions.of Rule 144
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended ("Securities Act"). As long as the Company meets the current public
information requirements of Rule 144 under the Securities Act, each affiliate of the Company who complies with the
other conditions of Rule 144 (including those that require the affiliate's sale to be aggregated with those of certain other
persons) generally is able to sell in the public market, without registration, a number of shares not to exceed, in any three-
month period, the greater of (i) 1% of the outstanding shares of the Company or (ii) the average weekly volume of
trading in such shares during the preceding four calendar weeks. :

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. On July 30, 2002, the President signed into law the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of 2002 (the
“Act”) implementing legislative reforms intended to address corporate and accounting fraud. In addition to the
establishment of a new accounting oversight board which will enforce auditing, quality control and independence
standards and will be funded by fees from all publicly traded companies, the bill restricts provision of both auditing and
consulting services by accounting firms. To ensure auditor independence, any non-audit services being provided to an
audit client will require preapproval by the company's audit committee members. In addition, the audit partiers must be
rotated. The Act requires chief executive officers and chief financial officers, or their equivalent, to certify to the
accuracy of periodic reports filed with the SEC, subject to civil and criminal penalties if they knowingly or willfully.
violate this certification requirement. In addition, under the Act, counsel are required to report evidence of a material

violation of the!securities laws or a breach of fiduciary duty by a company to its chief executive officer or its chief legal .

officer, and, if such officer does not appropriately respond, to report such evidence to the audit committee or other similar
committee of the board of directors or the board itself.

Longer prison terms and increased penalties will also be applied to corporate executives who violate federal
securities laws, the period during which certain types of suits can be brought against a company or its officers has been
extended, and bonuses issued to top executives prior to restatement of a company's financial statements are now subject
to disgorgement if such restatement was due to corporate misconduct. Executives are also prohibited from insider trading
during retirement plan “blackout” periods, and loans to company executives are restricted. In addition, a provision directs-
that civil penalties levied by the SEC as a result of any judicial or administrative action under the Act be deposited to a
fund for the beneﬁt of harmed investors. The Federal Accounts for Investor Restitution (“FAIR") provision also requires
the SEC to develop methods of improving collection rates. The legislation accelerates the time frame for disclosures by
public companies, as they must immediately disclose any material changes in their financial condition or operations.
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Directors and executive officers must also provide information for most changes in ownersmp in a company's securities
within two business days of the change.

The Act also increases the oversight of, and codifies certain requirements relating to audit committees of public
companies and how they interact with the company's "registered public accounting firm" ("RPAF"). Audit committee
members must be independent and are barred from accepting consulting, advisory or other compensatory fees from the
issuer. In addition, companies must disclose whether at least one member of the committee is a "financial expert” (as

such term is defined by the SEC in regulations promulgated thereby) and if not, why not.  Under the Act, a RPAF is
~ prohibited from performing statutorily mandated audit services for a company if such company's chief executive officer,

chief financial officer, comptroller, chief accounting officer or any person serving in equivalent positions has been
employed by such firm and participated in the audit of such company during the one-year period preceding the audit
initiation date. The Act also prohibits any officer or director of a company or any -other person acting under their
direction from taking any action to fraudulently influence, coerce, manipulate or mislead any independent public or
certified accountant engaged in the audit of the company's financial statements for the purpose of rendering the financial
statement's materially misleading. The Act also requires the SEC to prescribe rules requiring inclusion of an internal
control report and assessment by management in the annual report to stockholders. The Act requires the RPAF that
issues the audit report to attest to and report on management's assessment of the company’s internal controls. In addition,
the Act requires that each financial report required to be prepared in accordance with (or reconciled to) accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and filed with the SEC reflect all material correcting
adjustments that are identified by a RPAF in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Umted
States of America and the rules and regulations of the SEC :

The Bank. The OTS has extensive regulatory authority over the operations of savings associations such as the
Bank. As part of this authority, savings associations are required to file periodic reports with the OTS and are subject to
periodic examinations by the OTS. The investment and lending authority of savings associations are prescribed by
federal laws and regulations and they are prohibited from engaging in any activities not permitted by such laws and
regulations. Those laws and regulations generally are applicable to all federally chartered savings associations and may
also apply to state-chartered savings assoc1at10ns Such regulation and supervision is primarily. intended for the
protection of deposnors ' »

Insurance of Accounts. The deposits of the Bank are insured to the maximum extent permitted by the SAIF, which
is administered by the FDIC, and are backed by the full faith and credit of the U. S. Government. As insurer, the FDIC is
authorized to conduct examinations of, and to require reporting by, FDIC-insured institutions. It also may prohibit any -
FDIC-insured institution from engaging in any activity the FDIC determines by regulation or order to pose a serious
threat to the FDIC. The FDIC also has the authority to initiate enforcement actions agamst savmgs assoc1auons, after
giving the OTS an opportumty to take such action.

Under current Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation regulations, Savings Association 1nsuranc‘é Fund-insured
institutions are assigned to one of three capital groups which are based solely on the level of an institution’s capital —
“well capitalized,” “adequately capitalized” and *“undercapitalized” — which are defined in the same manner as the-

- regulations establishing the prompt corrective action system discussed below. These three groups are then divided into

three subgroups which reflect varying levels of supervnsory concern, from those which are considered to be healthy to
those which are considered to be of substantial supervisory concern. The matrix so created results in nine assessment
risk classifications, with rates during the first six months of 2004 ranging from zero for well capitalized, healthy
institutions, such as the Bank, to 27 basis points for undercapitalized institutions with substantial supervisory concerns.

In addition, all institutions with deposits insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation are required to pay
assessments to fund interest payments on bonds issued by the Financing Corporation, a mixed-ownership government
corporation established to recapitalize the predecessor to the Savings Association Insurance Fund. The assessment rate
for the third quarter of 2004 was .0148% of insured deposits and is adjusted quarterly. These assessments will continue ‘
until the Fmancmg Corporation bonds mature in 2019.

The FDIC may terminate the deposit insurance of any insured depository institution, including the Bank; if it
determines after a hearing that the institution has engaged or is engaging in unsafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe '
or unsound condition to continue operations, or has violated any applicable law, regulation, order or any condition
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imposed by an agreement with the FDIC. It also may suspend deposit insurance temporarily during the hearing process
for the permanent termination of insurance, if the institution has no tangible capital. If insurance of accounts is
terminated, the accounts at the institution at the time of the termination, less subsequent withdrawals, shall continue to be

insured for a period of six months totwo years, as determined by the FDIC. Management is not aware of any existing-

circumstances which could result in termination of the Bank's deposn insurance.

Capital requirements. Current OTS capital standards require savings associations to satisfy three different capital
requirements. Under these standards, savings associations must maintain "tangible” capital equal to 1.5% of adjusted
total assets, "core" capital equal to 4% (3% if the association receives the OTS’ highest rating) of adjusted total assets and
"total" capital (a combination of core and "supplementary" capital) equal to 8.0% of "risk-weighted" assets. For purposes
of the regulation, core capital genérally consists of common stockholders’ equity (including retained eamnings),
noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus, minority interests in the equity accounts of fully
consolidated subsidiaries, certain nonwithdrawable accounts and pledged deposits and "qualifying supervisory goodwill."
Tangible capital is given the same definition as core capital but does not include qualifying supervisory goodwill and is
reduced by the amount of all the savings association's intangible assets, with only a limited exception for purchased
mortgage servicing rights ("PMSRs"). Both core and tangible capital are further reduced by anamount equal to a savings

association's debt and equity investments in subsidiaries engaged in activities not permissible for national banks (other. -

than subsidiariesiengaged in activities undertaken as agent for customers or in mortgage banking activities and subsidiary
depository institutions or their holding companies). In addition, under the Prompt Corrective Action provisions of the
OTS regulations, all but the most highly rated institutions must maintain a minimum leverage ratio of 4% in order to be
adequately capitalized. . See "- Prompt Corrective Action.” At September 30,.2004, the Bank did not have any
investment in subsidiaries engaged in impermissible activities and required to be deducted from its capital calculation,

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 ("FDICIA") granted the OTS the authority
to prescribe rules for the amount of PMSRs that may be included in a savings association's regulatory capital and

required that the value of readily marketable PMSRs included in the calculation of a savings association's regulatory

capital not exceed 90% of fair market value and that such value be determined at least quarterly. Under OTS regulations,
(i) PMSRs do not have to be deducted from tangible and core regulatory capital, provided that they do not exceed 50% of
core capital, (ii)savings associations are required to determine the fair market value and to review the book value of their
PMSRs at least quarterly and to obtain an independent valuation of PMSRs annually, (iii) savings associations that desire
to include PMSRs in regulatory capital may not carry them at a book value under GAAP that exceeds the discounted

value of their future net income stream and (iv) for purposes of calculating regulatory capital, the amount of PMSRs .

reported as balance sheet assets should amount to the lesser of 90% of their fair market value, 90% of their original
purchase price or 100% of their remaining unamortized book value. At September 30, 2004 the Bank had PMSRs
totaling $239,900.

A savings association is allowed to include both core capital and supplementary capital in the calculation of its
total capital for purposes of the risk-based capital requirements, provided that the amount of supplementary-capital does
not exceed the savings association'’s core capital. Supplementary capital generally consists of hybrid capital instruments;
perpetual preferred stock which is not eligible to be included as core capital; subordinated debt and intermediate-term
preferred stock; and, subject to limitations, general allowances for loan losses. Assets are adjusted under the risk-based

guidelines to take into account different risk characteristics, with the categories ranging from 0% (requiring no additional

capital) for assets such as cash to 100% for repossessed assets or loans more.than 90 days past due. Single-family
residential real estate loans which are not past-due or non-performing and which have been made in accordance with
prudent underwriting standards are assigned a 50% level in the risk-weighing system, as are certain privately-issued
-mortgage-backed securities representing indirect ownership of such loans. Off-balance sheet items also are adjusted to
take into account certain risk characteristics. '

The OTS amended its risk-based capital requirements that would require institutions with an “above normal” level
of interest rate risk to maintain additional capital. A savings association is considered to have a “normal” level of interest.
rate risk if the decline in the market value of its portfolio equity after an immediate 200 basis point increase or decrease
in market interest rates (whichever leads to the greater decline) is less than two percent of the current estimated market
value of its assets. The market value of portfolio equity is defined as the net present value of expected cash inflows and
outflows fromian association's assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet items. The amount of additional capital, that an
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institution with an above normal interest rate risk is required to maintain (the “interest rate risk component”) equals one-

half of the dollar amount by which its measured interest rate risk exceeds the normal level of interest rate risk. The

interest rate risk component is in addition to the capital otherwise required to satisfy the risk-based capital requirement.

Implementation of this component has been postponed by the OTS. The final rule was to be effective as of January 1,’
1994, subject however to a three quarter lag time in implementation. However, because of continuing delays by the OTS,

the interest rate risk component has never been operative. ‘

At September 30, 2004, the Bank exceeded all of its regulatory capital requirements, with tangible, core and

 risk-based capital ratios of 8.0%, 8.0%, and 15.0%, respectively. See Note 11 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements included set forth in Item 8 hereof,

The OTS and the FDIC generally are authorized to take enforcement action against a savings association that fails
to meet its capital requirements, which action may include restrictions on operations and banking activities, the
imposition of a capital directive, a cease-and-desist order, civil money penalties or harsher measures such as the
appointment of a receiver or conservator or a forced merger into another institution. In addition, under current regulatory
policy, an association that fails to meet its capital requirements is prohibited from making any capital distributions.
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Prompt Corrective Action. Under the prompt corrective action regulations of the OTS, an institution shall be
deemed to be (i) "well capitalized" if it has total risk-based capital of 10% or more, has a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of
6% or more, has a Tier I leverage capital ratio of 5% or more and is not subject to any order or final capital directive to
meet and maintain a specific capital level for any capital measure, (ii) "adequately capitalized” if it has a total risk-based
capital ratio of 8% or more, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of 4% or more and a Tier [ leverage capital ratio of 4% or
more (3% under certain circumnstances) and does not meet the definition of "well capitalized," (iii) "undercapitalized" if it
has a total risk-based capital ratio that is less than 8%, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio that is less than 4% or a Tier I
leverage capital ratio that is less than 4% (3% under certain circumstances), (iv) "significantly undercapitalized” if it has

“atotal risk-based capital ratio that is less than 6%, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio that is less than 3% or a Tier I leverage

capital ratio that is less than 3%, and (v) “critically undercapitalized" if it has a ratio of tangible equity to total assets that

is equal to or less than 2%. Under specified circumstances, the OTS may reclassify a well capitalized institution as

adequately capitalized and may require an adequately capitalized institution or an undercapitalized institution to comply

with supervisory actions as if it were in the next lower category (except that the FDIC may not reclassify a significantly

u.ndercapltahzed institution as critically undercapitalized). At September 30, 2004, the Bank met the requirements of a
"well capitalized” institution under OTS regulations. .

Qualified Thrift Lender Test (the “QTL"). A savings association can comply with the QTL test by either meeting
the QTL test set forth in the HOLA and the implementing regulations or qualifying as a domestic building and loan
association as defined in Section 7701(a)(19) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("Code"). Currently,
the portion of the QTL. test that is based on the HOLA rather than the Code requires that 65% of an institution’s “portfolio
assets” (as defined) consist of certain housing and consumer-related assets on a monthly average basis in nine out of
every 12 months. Assets that qualify without limit for inclusion as part of the 65% requirement are loans made to
purchase, refinance, construct, improve or repair domestic residential housing and manufactured housing, home equity
loans, mortgage-backed securities (where the mortgages are secured by domestic residential housing or manufactured
housing), stock issued by the FHLB, and direct or indirect obligations of the FDIC. In addition, small business loans,
credit card loans, student loans and loans for personal, family and household purposes are allowed to be included without
limitation as qualified investments. The following assets, among others, also may be included in meeting the test subject
to an overall limit of 20% of the savings institution’s portfolio assets: 50% of residential mortgage loans originated and
sold within 90 days of origination, 100% loans for personal, family and household purposes (other then credit card loans
and education loans) (limited to 10% of total portfolio assets) and stock issued by FHLMC or FNMA. Portfolio assets.
consist of total assets minus the sum of (i) goodwill and other intangible assets, (i) property used by the savings
institution to conduct its business, and (iii) liquid assets up to 20% of the institution’s total assets,

A savings institution that does not comply with the QTL test must either convert to a bank charter or comply with
certain restrictions on its operations. Upon the expiration of three years from the date the association ceases to be a QTL,
it must cease any activity and not retain any investment not permissible for a national bank and 1mmed1ately repay any
outstandmg FHLB advances (subject to safety and soundness con51deratlons) ‘

At September 30, 2004, approximately 70.6% of the Bank's assets were invested in qualified thrift investments,
which were in excess of the percentage required to quahfy the Bank under the QTL test in effect at that time.

OTS regulanons govern capital dlstnbuuons by savings institutions, whlch mclude cash d1v1dends stock
repurchases and other transactions charged to the capital account of a savings institution to make capital distributions. A
savings institution must file an application for OTS approval of the capital distribution if any of the following occur or
would occur as a result of the capital distribution (1) the total capital distributions for the applicable calendar year exceed
the sum of the institution’s net income for that year to date plus the institution’s retained net income for the preceding
two years, (2) the institution would not be at least adequately capitalized following the distribution, (3) the distribution
would violate any applicable statute, regulation, agreement or OTS-imposed condition, or (4) the institution is not
eligible for expedited treatment of its filings. If an application is not required to be filed, savings institutions which are a
subsidiary of a holding company (as well as certain other institutions) must still file a notice with the OTS at least 30
days before the Board of Directors declares a dividend or approves a capital distribution. '
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Capital Distribution. OTS regulations also prohibit the Bank from declaring or paying any dividends or from
repurchasing any of its stock if, as a result, the regulatory (or total) capital of the Bank would be reduced below the
amount required to be maintained for the liquidation account established by i 1t for certain depositors in connection with its
conversion from mutual to stock form.

Communizfy Reinvestment. Under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977, as amended ("CRA"), as
implemented by OTS regulations, a savings association has a continuing and affirmative obligation consistent with its
safe and sound operation to help meet the credit needs of its entire community, including low and moderate income
neighborhoods. The CRA does not establish specific lending requirements or programs for financial institutions nor does
it limit an institution's discretion to develop the types of products and services that it believes are best suited to its
particular community, consistent with the CRA. The Bank received a satisfactory CRA rating as a result of its last OTS
evaluation.

Branching by Federal Saving Institutions. OTS policy permits interstate branching to the full extent permitted by
statute (which is'essentially unlimited). Generally, federal law prohibits federal savings institutions from establishing,
retaining or operating a branch outside the state in which the federal institution has its home office unless the institution
meets the IRS' domestic building and loan test (generally, 60% of a thrift’s assets must be housing-related) (“IRS Test").

- The IRS Test requirement does not apply if: (a) the branch(es) result(s) from an emergency acquisition of a troubled -

savings institution (however, if the troubled savings institution is acquired by a bank holding company, does not have its
home office in the state of the bank holding company bank subsidiary and does not qualify under the IRS Test, its
branching is limited to the branching laws for state-chartered banks in the state where the savings institution is located);
(b) the law of the state where the branch would be located would permit the branch to be established if the federal

savings institution were chartered by the state in which its home office is located; or (c) the branch was operated lawfully o

as a branch under state law prior to the savings institution’s reorganization to a federal charter.

Furthermore, the OTS will evaluate a branchmg applicant’s record of CRA comphance An unsatlsfactory CRA
record may be the basis for denial of a branchmg application.

Federal Home Loan Bank System. The Bank is a member of the FHLB of Pittsburgh, which is one of 12 regional
FHLBs that administers the home financing credit function of savings associations. Each FHLB serves as a reserve or
central bank for its members within its assigned region. It is funded primarily from proceeds derived from the sale of
consolidated obligations of the FHLB System. It makes loans to members (i.e., advances) in accordance with policies
and proceduresiestablished by the Board of Directors of the FHLB. As of September 30, 2004, the Bank has overnight
borrowings and advances aggregating $169.9 million from the FHLB or 31.3% of its total liabilities. The Bank currently
has the ability to obtain up to $149.8 million additional advances from FHLB of Pittsburgh.

As a member, the Bank is required to purchase and maintain stock in the FHLB of Pittsburgh in an amount equal
to at least 1% of its aggregate unpaid residential mortgage loans, home purchase contracts or similar obligations at the
beginning of each year or 5% of its advances from the FHLB of Pittsburgh, whichever is greater. At September 30,
2004, the Bank had $9.8 million in FHLB stock, which was in.compliance with this requirement. .

The FHLBs are required to provide funds for the resolution of troubled savings institutions and to contribute to
affordable housing programs through direct loans or interest subsidies on advances targeted for community investment
and low- and moderate-income housing projects. ‘These contributions have adversely affected the level of FHLB
dividends paid and could continue to do so in the future and could also result in the FHLBs imposing higher interest rates
on advances to members. These contributions also could have an adverse effect on the value of FHLB stock in the
future.

Federal Reserve System. FRB requires all depository institutions to maintain reserves against their transaction
accounts (primarily NOW and Super NOW checking accounts) and non-personal time deposits. At September 30, 2004,
the Bank was in compliance with applicable requirements. However, because required reserves must be maintained in
the form of vault cash or a noninterest-bearing account at a FRB, the effect of this reserve requirement is to reduce an
institution's earning assets.
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Savings institutions are authorized to borrow from a Federal Reserve Bank “discount window,” but FRB

regulations require savings banks to exhaust other reasonable altemative sources of funds, including FHLB advances, .-

before borrowing from a Federal Reserve Bank,

Safety and Soundness Guidelines. The OTS and the other federal banking agencies have established guidelines for
safety and soundness, addressing operational and managerial, as well as compensation matters for insured financial
institutions. Institutions failing to meet these standards are required to submit compliance plans to their appropriate
federal regulators. The OTS and the other agencies have also established guidelines regardmg asset quality and ea.mmgs
standards for insured institutions. :

Federal and State Taxation

General. The Company and the Bank are subject to the corporate tax provisions of the Code, as well as certain
additional provisions of the Code which apply to thrift and other types of financial institutions. The following discussion
of tax matters is intended only as a summary and does not purport to be a comprehensive description of the tax rules
applicable to the Company and the Bank.

Fiscal Year. The Company and the Bank and the Bank’s subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return
on a fiscal year basis ending September 30.

Method of Accountmg The Bank maintains its books and records for federal income tax. purposes using the
accrual method of accounting. The accrual method of accounting generally requires that i iters of income be recognized
when all events have occurred that establish the right to receive the income and the amount of income can be determined
with reasonable accuracy, and that items of expense be deducted at the later of (i) the time when all events have occurred
that establish the liability to pay the expense and the amount of such liability can be determined with reasonable accuracy
or (ii) the time when economic performance with respect to the item of expense has occurred.

Bad Debt Reserves. The Bank is pernmted to estabhsh reserves for bad debts and to make annual additions
thereto which qualify as deductions from taxable income. The Company, as of October 1, 1996, changed its method of
computing reserves for bad debts to the experience method (the "Experience Method”). The bad debt deduction |
allowable under this method is available to small banks with assets less than $500 million. Beginning October 1, 2001,
the Company changed its method of computing reserves for bad debts to the specific charge-off method. The bad debt
deduction allowable under this method is available to large banks with assets greater than $500 million. Generally, this
method allows the Company to deduct an annual addition to the reserve for bad debts equal to it its net charge-offs -

The Bank treated such change as a change in a method of accounting determined solely with respect to the
apphcable excess reserves” of the institution. The amount of applicable excess reserves is taken into account ratably
over a six taxable-year period, beginning with the first taxable year beginning after December 31, 1995. For financial
reporting purposes, the Company has not incurred any additional tax expense. Amounts that had been previously
deferred will be reversed for financial reporting purposes and will be included in the income tax return of the Company,
increasing income tax payable. The change from the experience method to the specific charge-off method in the current
year did not result in a recapture of bad debt reserves for tax purposes. ‘

Priorto the Small,Busmess Protection Act of 1996, bad debt reserves created prior to January 1, 1988 were subject
to recapture into taxable income if the Bank failed to meet certain thrift asset and definitional tests. New federal
legislation eliminated these thrift-related recapture rules. However, to the extent that the Bank makes “non-dividend
distributions” that are considered as made (i) from the reserve for losses on qualifying real property loans or (ii) from the
supplemental reserve for losses on loans, then an amount based on the amount distributed will be included in its taxable
income. Non-dividend distributions include distributions in excess of the Bank’s current and accumulated earnings and
profits, distributions in redemption of stock, and distributions in partial or complete liquidation. Dividends paid out of
the Bank’s current or accumulated earnings and profits, as calculated for federal income tax purposes, will not be
considered to result in a distribution from our bad debt reserve. As a result, any dividends that would reduce amounts
appropriated to bad debt reserve and deducted for federal income tax purposes would create a tax liability for the Bank. -
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Minimum Tax. The Code imposes an alternative minimum tax at a rate of 20% on a base of regular taxable
income plus certain tax preferences ("alternative minimum taxable income" or "AMTI"). The alternative minimum tax is
payabile to the extent such AMTI is in excess of an exemption amount. The Code provides that an item of tax preference
is the excess of the bad debt deduction allowable for a taxable year pursuant to the percentage of taxable income method
over the amount allowable under the experience method. The other items of tax preference that constitute AMTI include
(a) tax-exempt interest on newly-issued (generally, issued on or after August 8, 1986) private activity bonds other than
certain qualified bonds and (b) for taxable years beginning after 1989, 75% of the excess (if any) of (i) adjusted current
earnings as defined in the Code, over (ii) AMTI (determined without regard to this preference and prior to reduction by
net operating losses). Net operating losses can offset no more than 90% of AMTI. Certain payments of alternative
minimum tax may be used as credits against regular tax liabilities in future years.

Audit by IRS. The Bank's consolidated federal income tax returns for taxable years through September 30, 1998
have been closed for the purpose of examination by the IRS.

State Taxation

The Company and the Bank's subsidiaries are subject to the Pennsylvania Corporate Net Income Tax and Capital
Stock and Franchise Tax. The Corporate Net Income Tax rate for fiscal 2004 is 9.99% and is imposed on the Company's
unconsolidated taxable income for federal purposes with certain adjustments. In general, the Capital Stock and Franchise
Tax is a property tax imposed at the rate of 1.1% of a corporation's capital stock value, which is determined in
accordance with a fixed formula. '

The Bank is taxed under the Pennsylvania Mutual Thrift Institutions Tax Act (the ("MTIT"), as amended to
include thrift institutions having capital stock. Pursuant to the MTIT, the Bank's tax rate is 11.5%. The MTIT exempts
the Bank from all other taxes imposed by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for state income tax purposes and from all
local taxation imposed by political subdivisions, except taxes on real estate and real éstate transfers. The MTIT is-a tax
upon net earnings, determined in accordance with GAAP with certain adjustments. The MTIT, in computing GAAP

-income, allows for the deduction of interest earned on state and federal securities, while disallowing a percentage of a
thrift's interest expense deduction in the proportion of interest income on those securities to the overall interest income of
the Bank. Net operating losses, if any, thereafter can be carried forward three years for MTIT purposes.
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Item 2. Properties.

At September 30, 2004, the Bank conducted business from its executive offices located in Media,.Pennsylvania .

and six full-service offices located in Delaware and Chester Counties, Pennsylvania. - See also Note 7 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item 8 hereof. :

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the Bank's offices at September 30, 2004.

Net Book Value Amount of
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Description/Address * Leased/Owned of Property . Deposits
' (Dollar in thousands)
Executive Offices:
22 West State Street : :
Media, Pennsylvania 19063 Owned™” $1,150 $ 95,690
Branch Offices: »
3218 Edgmont Avenue :
Brookhaven, Pennsylvania 19015 Owned ‘ ‘ 615 . . 77,588
Routes 1 and 100
Chadds Ford, Pennsylvania 19317 Leased® SQ ' 28,418
23 East Fifth Street .
Chester, Pennsylvania 19013 Leased® . 50 , . 23,910
31 Baltimore Pike ‘
Chester Heights, Pennsylvania 19017 Leased® 551 39,586
106 East Street Road »
Kennett Square, Pennsylvania 19348 Leased® : 528 - 16977
5000 Pennell Road ‘
Aston, Pennsylvania 19014 " Leased @ 476 S --
330 Dartmouth Avenue v . :
Swarthmore, Pennsylvania 19081 Owned 143 62,711

Total : $3,563 $344,880

@  Also a branch office. :

@ = Lease expiration date is September 30, 2005. The Bank has one five-year renewal option.

@  Lease expiration date is December 31, 2005. The Bank has one ten-year renewal option.

«y  Lease expiration date is December 31, 2028. The Bank has options to cancel on the 15% 20%
and 25" year of the lease.

¢»  Lease expiration date is September 30, 2034. The Bank has one six-year followed bya ﬁve-year renewal
option.

Branch opened in November 2004. Lease expiration date is December 31, 2033. The Bank has
options to cancel on the 15%, 20" and 25" year of the lease.




Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

The Company is involved in routine legal proceedings occurring in the ordinary course of business which, in the
aggregale, are believed by management to be immaterial to the financial condition of the Company.

Item4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

Not applicable.

PART IL.

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

(a) On January 25, 1995 the conversion and reorganization of the Bank and its holding company parent was
completed. In connection with the consummation of the Conversion, the Holding Company issued 2,720,000 shares of

common stock. As of September 30, 2004, there were 1,927,744 shares of common stock outstanding. As of September -

16, 2004 the Holding Company had 42 1stockholders of record not including the number of persons or entities holding
stock in nominee or street name through various brokers and banks. ‘

The following table sets forth the high and low closing stock prices of the Holding Company's common stock as
reported by the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol "FKFS" during the periods presented. Price information appears
in a major newspaper under the symbol "FstKeyst".

Year Ended :
September 30, 2004 September 30, 2003
__High Low High Low
First Quarter » 27.45 26.00 $16.45 $13.80
Second Quarter 29.00 26.59 $21.23 = $16.11
Third Quarter : T 2899 23.50 $23.74 $21.16
Fourth Quarter 24.50 21.40 $26.50 $21.90

The following schedule summarizes the cash dividends per share of common stock paid by the Holding Company
during the periods indicated.

Year Ended September 30,
2004 2003
First Quarter $0.10 . $0.09
Second Quarter 0.11 0.10
Third Quarter 0.11 0.10
Fourthi Quarter 0.11 0.10

On November 23, 2004, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.11 per share of |
common stock, payable on January 3, 2005, to stockholders of record at the close of business on December 16, 2004,
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The information for all equ1ty based and individual compensation arrangements is incorporated by reference
from Ttem 12 hereof.

- (b) Not applicable

(c) The following table sets forth information with respect to purchases made by or on behalf of the _Corhpany
of shares of common stock of the Company during the indicated periods. :

_ Total . Total Number of Maximum Number of

- Number Average = Shares Purchasedas  Shares that May Yet Be
of Shares Price Paid Part of Publicly . Purchased Under the
Period @ Purchased = per Share Announced Plan : " Plan
July 1-31, 2004 - - -- _ ' 56,332
August 1-31, 2004 - - - 56332
September 1-30, 2004 - - o= 56,332
Total = = = » » 36332

® On January 31, 2003, the Company announced its current program to repurchase up to 101,000 of shares of common stock
of the Company. The program has been extended and does not currently have an expiration date. The table above does not
include 96,208 shares purchased at an average cost per share of $26.81 by the Company’s ESOP. The number of shares

~ purchased in each of three periods set forth above was 0, 9,550 and 0, respectively, at an average cost per share of $0 $22.98
and $0, respectively. The ESOP has been authorized to purchase up to 100,000 shares '

See "Liquidity, Capital Resources and Commitments" set forth in Item 7 hereof and Notes 11 of the "Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” set forth in Item 8 hereof for discussion of restrictions on the Holding Company's
ability to pay dividends. Also see “Regulation-Capital Distributions” for a discussion of restrictions on the Bank’s
ability to pay dividends to the Holding Company.
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Item 6. Selecteéd Financial Data.

The selected consolidated financial and other data of the Holding Company set forth below does not
purport to be complete and should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the more
detailed information, including the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes, set forth in Item 8

hereto.

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Selected Financial Data:
Total assets
Loans receivable, net -
Mortgage-related securities held to maturity
Investment securities held to maturity
Assets held for sale:
Mortgage-related securities
Investment securities
Loans -
Real estate owned
Deposits
Borrowings
Junior subordinated debentures
Stockholders’ equity

Non-performing assets

Selected Operations Data:
Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income
after provision for loan losses
Service charges and other fees
Net gain (loss) on sales of interest-earning
assets )
Other non-interest income
Non-interest expense
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income

Per Share Data:

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
Cash dividends per share,

Ator F(;l' the Year Ended September 30,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
$571,919  $559,612 $519,259 $489,680 $464,061
304,248 286,421 288,776 247,664 230,686
37,363 3,487 8,855 11,454 13,056
5,287 6,315 - - 10,000
97,620 124,656 85,674 117,608 96,257.
63,615 77,700 80,624 62,564 42215
172 4,498 501 225 3,099
1,229 1,420 248 887 947
344,880 362,605 330,765 311,601 272,562
171,149 136,272 126,237 126,234 . 142902
21,557 21,593 21,629 16,702 16,702
29,698 32,388 32,795 30,621 26,569
3,262 2,976 5,386 3,189 3,462
$26,143° $ 27212  $ 30,121 $ 31,860 $ 31,068
14712 16,012 18.250 21964  _ 20851
11,431 11,200 11,871 9,896 10,217
300 715 540 . 540 420
11,131 10,485 - 11,331 9,356 9,797
1,235 1,013 1,000 952 941
968 1,010 415 174 (680)
1,696 1,263 848 820 1,045
12.501 10,400 10,441 8,388 8,278
2,529 3,371 3,153 2,914 2,825
326 632 427 443 463
$2203 $ 2739 § 2726 § 2471 3 2362
$1.21 $1.44 $1.42 $1.22 $1.14
1.14 1.35 1.34 1.18 1.11
0.44 0.40 0.36 0.32 0.28
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At or For the Year Ended September 30,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Selected Operating Ratios: " .
Average yield earned on interest-earning assets 5.01% 548% 6.42% 7 25% 7.47%
Average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities 2.80 3.23 391 5.02 4.99
Average interest rate spread 2.21 2.26 2.52 2.23 249
Net interest margin ‘ 2.23 2.30 2.59 2.32 S 282
Ratio of interest-earning assets to interest- o '
bearing liabilities 100.69 101.44 101.83 101.83 100.72
Efficiency ratio @ 81.55 64.50 66.07 62.46 63.14
Non-interest expense as a percent
of average assets 223 1.95 2.07 . 178 - . 185
Return on average assets : 0.39 0.51 0.54 0.52 0.53
Return on average equity 7.13 8.39 8.77 C 842 996
Ratio of average equity to average assets 5.50 6.12 6.17 6.22 T 529
Full-service offices at end of period - 7 7 7 R 7
Asset Quality Ratios:®
Non-performing loans as a ,
percent of gross loans receivable : 0.66% 0.53% - L76% 092%  1.07%
Non-performing assetsasa o » '
percent of total assets 0.57 0.53 1.04 0.65 0.75
Allowance for loan losses as a . . o o
percent of gross loans receivable 0.67 0.68 081 0.87 0.86
Allowance for loan losses as a ’ . . '
percent of non-performing loans 100.29 127.63 45.89 94.74 80.28
Net loans charged-off to average ’ : .
loans receivable : 0.08 0.37 0.13 0.16 0.14_
Capital Ratios:®®
Tangif)le capital ratio ) 8.21% 7.98% 8.07% 7.76% 8.32%
Core capital ratio 821 7.98 8.07 176 8.32
Risk-based capital ratio 14.56 14.97 16.17 16. 81 17.70

o Ad]usted for the effects of tax-free investments. See presentation of reconciliation of tax-free investments in Item 7, “Ma.nagcmem s
Discussion and Analysis — Average Balances, Net Interest Income and Yield Eamed and Rates Paid.”
@ Reflécts non-interest expense as a percent of the aggregate of net interest income and non-interest income.
. ® Asset Quality Ratios and Capita! Ratios are end of period ratios except for the ratio of loan charge-offs to average loans, With the
exception of end of period ratios, all ratios are based on average daily balances duru:lg the indicated penods Gross loans receivable -
_. are net of loans in process. .
@ Regulatory capital ratios of the Holding Company's wholly owned subsidiary, First Keystone Bank. *
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Item7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation. .

General

First Keystone Financial, Inc. (the “Company”) is the holding company for its wholly owned subsidiafy, First
.Keystone Bank (the “Bank”). For purposes of this discussion, references to the Company will include its wholly owned

subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated. The Company is a community-oriented banking organization that focuses on .

providing customer and business services w1thm its ‘primary market area, consisting primarily of Delaware and Chester
Counties in southeastern Pennsylvania.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements
presented in Ttem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The primary asset of the Company is its investment in the Bank
and, accordingly, the discussion below with respect to results of operations relates primarily to the operations of the
Bank.

The Company’s results of operations depend primarily on its net interest income which is the difference between
interest income on interest-earning assets, which principally consist of loans, mortgage-related securities and investment
securities, and interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities, which principally consist of deposits and FHLB advances.
The Company’g results of operations also are affected by the provision for loan losses (the amount of which reflects
management’s assessment of the known and inherent losses in its loan portfolio that are both probable and reasonably
estimable), the level of its non-interest income, including service charges and other fees as well as gains and losses from
the sale of certain assets, the level of its operating expenses, and income tax expense.

Critical Accountlng Policies

Accountmg policies mvolvmg significant judgments and assumptions by ma.nagement which have, or could have,
a material impact on the carrying value of certain assets or comprehensive income, are considered critical accounting
policies. In management’s opinion, the most critical accounting policy affecting the Company’s financial statements is
the evaluation of the allowance for loan losses. The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses at a level
management believes is sufficient to provide for known and inherent losses in the loan portfolio that were both probable
and reasonable to estimate. The allowance for loan losses is considered a critical accounting estimate because there is a
large degree of judgment in (i) assigning individual loans to specific risk levels (pass, substandard, doubtful and loss), (ii)
valuing the underlying collateral securing the loans, (iii) determining the appropriate reserve factor to be applied to
specific risk levels for criticized and classified loans (substandard, doubtful and loss) and (iv) determining reserve factors
to be applied to pass loans based upon loan type. Accordingly, there is a likelihood that materially different amounts
would be reported under different, but reasonably plausible conditions or assumptions. For a description of the methods
the Company uses to determine the Company s allowance for loan losses, see “Results of Operations - Provisions for
Loan Losses.”

Asset and Liability Management

The principal objectives of the Company’s asset and liability management are to (i) evaluate the interest rate nsk
existing in certain assets and liabilities, (i) determine the appropriate level of risk given the Company’s business focus,
operating environment, capital and liquidity requirements and performance objectives, (iii) establish prudent asset and
liability compositions, and (iv) manage the assessed risk consistent with Board approved guidelines. Through asset and
liability management, the Company seeks to reduce both the vulnerability and volatility of its operations to changes in
interest rates and to manage the ratio of interest-rate sensitive assets to interest-rate sensitive liabilities within specified
maturities or repricing periods. The Company’s actions in this regard are taken under the guidance of the Asset/Liability

Committee (“ALCQ"), which is chaired by the Chief Financial Officer and comprised of members of the Company's

senior management. The ALCO meets no less than quarterly to review, among other things; liquidity and cash flow
needs, current market conditions and the interest rate environment, the sensitivity to changes in interest rates of the
Company’s assets and liabilities, the historical and market values of assets and liabilities, unrealized gains and losses, and
the repricing and maturity characteristics of loans, investment securities, deposits and borrowings. The ALCO reports to
the Company"s Board of Directors no less than once a quarter. In addition, management reviews at least weekly the

- pricing of the Company’s commercial loans and retail deposits. The pricing of residential loans, including those being
originated forisale in the secondary market, is reviewed daily.
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The Company’s primary asset/liability monitoring tools consist of various asset/liability simulation models which
are prepared on a quarterly basis. The models are designed to capture the dynamics of the balance sheet as well as rate .
and spread movements and to quantify variations in net interest income under different interest rate scenarios.

One of the models consists of an analysis of the extent to which assets and liabilities are interest rate sensitive and
measures an institution’s interest rate sensitivity gap. An asset or liability is said to be interest rate sensitive within a
specific time period if it will mature or reprice within that time period. An institution’s interest rate sensitivity gap is
defined as the difference between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within a
given time period. A gap is considered positive when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of
interest rate sensitive liabilities and is considered negative when the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities exceeds
interest rate sensitive assets. During a period of falling interest rates, a negative gap would tend to result in an increase in
net interest income, while a positive gap would tend to result in a decline in net interest income. Conversely, during a
period of rising interest rates, a negative gap would tend to result in a decline in net interest income, while a positive gap
would tend to result in an increase in net interest income.

The Bank’s passbook, statement savings, MMDA and NOW accounts are generally subject to immediate
withdrawal. However, management considers a portion of these deposits to be core deposits (which consists of passbook,
staternent saving, MMDA and NOW accounts) having significantly longer éffective maturities based upon the Bank’s
experience in retaining such deposits in changing interest rate environments. Borrowed funds are included in the period
in which they can be called or when they mature. :

Manageinent believes that the assumptions used to evaluate the vulnerability of the Bank’s operations to changes
in interest rates are considered reasonable. However, certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis
presented in the table below. For example, although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods
to repricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types
may lag behind changes in market rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate loans, have features which
restrict changes in market rates both on a short-term and over the life of the asset. Further, in the event of a change in
interest rates, prepayments and early wnhdrawal levels would likely deviate significantly from those assumed in
calculating the table. '
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The following table summarizes the Company’s interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities as of
September 30, 2004 based on certain assumptions management has made that affect the rate at which loans will prepay
and the duration of core deposits. C

More Than -~ More Than

Within Six to One Year Three
Six Twelve to Three Years to Qver Five .
Months Months Years Five Years Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Loans receivable, et $132,095 $17,882 $ 46,799 $33,886 $71,553  $302,215
Mortgage-related securities 20,089 19,006 49,496 29277 17,116 134,984
Loans held for sale ' ’ 172 - - - - 172"
Investment securities® 20,942 2,895 16,400 14,032 24,460 78,729
Interest-eaming deposits : 12.790 - = = = 1279
Total interest-carning assets $186,088 $39.783 126 $77.195 $113.129  $528,890
Interest-bearing liabilities: .
Deposits ) ) $104,258 $45,290 $106,061 $74,582 $14,680  $344,880 -
Borrowed funds : 160,761 - 10,000 195 193 171,149
Trust preferred securities ' - - - 21,557 21,557
Total interest-bearing liabilities 65.0 45290  $116,06] 4,77 $36439  $537,586 -
Excess (deficiency) of interest-earning assets : . )
over interest-bearing liabilities $(78.931) 35,507 $(3.366) $2.418 876690  £.(8.696)

Cumulative deficiéncy of interest- ,

earning assets over interest-bearing liabilities - $(78.931) = $(84,438) $(87,804) $85386)  H(8.699)
Cumulative deficiency of ’

interest-earning assets over
. interest-bearing liabilities as a .

percentage of total asseis (1380)%  (14.76)% 1535% (149)%  (La%

o Balances have been reduced for non-accruing loans, which amounted to $1.6 million at September 30, 2004,
o  Balance'includes Federal Home Loan Bank stock. ’

Although an analysis of the interest rate sensitivity gap measure may be useful, it is limited in its ability to predict
trends in future earnings. It makes no presumptions about changes in prepayment tendencies, deposit or loan maturity
preferences or repricing time lags that may occur in response to a change in the interest rate environment. As a
consequence, the Company also utilizes an analysis of the market value of portfolio equity, which addresses the
estimated change in the value of the Bank’s equity arising from movements in interest rates. The market value of
portfolio equity is estimated by valuing the Bank’s assets and liabilities under different interest rate scenarios. The extent
to which assets gain or lose value in relation to gains or losses of liabilities as interest rates increase or decrease
determines the: appreciation or depreciation in equity on a market value basis. Market value analysis is intended to
evaluate the impact of immediate and sustained shifts of the current yield curve upon the market value of the Bank’s
current balance sheet. ‘

The Company utilizes reports prepared by the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS”) to measure interest rate risk.
Using data submitted by the Bank, the OTS performs scenario analysis to estimate the net portfolio value ("NPV”) of the
Bank over a variety of interest rate scenarios. The NPV is defined as the present value of expected cash flows from
existing assets less the present value of expected cash flows from existing liabilities plus the present value of net
expected cash inflows from existing off-balance sheet contracts. '
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The table below sets forth the Bank’s NPV assuming an immediate change in interest rates of up to 300 basis
points and a decline of 100 basis points. Due to the low prevailing interest rate environment, the OTS did not providea
calculation for the minus 200 and minus 300 basis point change in rates. Dollar amounts are expressed in thousands as of
September 30, 2004.

Net Portfolio Value
Net Portfolio Value "~ -as a % of Assets
Changes in : '
Rates in Basis Dollar Percentage NPV
Points Amount Change Change Ratio " Change .
300 $34,234 $(20,658) (38)% 621% (315)bp
200 42,324 (12,569) 23) 7.51 ‘ (185)
100 49,460 (5,432) (10) 8.60 (76)
0 54,892 - -- 9.36
(100) 54,438 (454) ) 9.18 (18)
(200) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(300) N/A N/A N/A . NA N/A

As is the case with interest rate sensitivity gap, certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodology used in the
above interest rate risk measurements. Modeling changes in NPV require the making of certain assumptions which may
or may not reflect the manner in which actual yields and costs respond to changes in market interest rates. In this regard,
the NPV model presented assumes that the composition of the Bank’s interest sensitive assets and liabilities existing at
the beginning of a period remains constant over the period being measured and also assumes that a particular change in
interest rates is reflected uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the duration to maturity or repricing of specific
assets and liabilities. Although the NPV-measurements and net interest income models provide an indication of the
Bank’s interest rate risk exposure at a particular point in time, such measurements are not intended to and do not provide
a precise forecast of the effect of changes in market interest rates on the Bank’s net interest income and may differ from
actual results. ’

The Company is aware of its interest rate risk exposurein the event of rapidly rising rates. Due to the Company’s
recognition of the need to control interest rate exposure, the Company’s current policy is to sell new 30-year fixed-rate -
single-family residential mortgage loans into the secondary market. In addition, in recent years, the Company has
emphasized the origination of construction and land, multi-family and commercial real estate and consumer loans which
generally have either adjustable interest rates and/or shorter contractual terms than single- famlly re51dent1al loans. The
Company plans to continue these lending strategies. :

Derivative financial instruments include futures, forwards, interest rate swaps, option contracts, and other financial
instruments with similar characteristics. The Company currently does not enter into futures, forwards, swaps or options.-
However, the Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of our customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial condition. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates and may require
additional collateral from the borrower if deemed necessary. Comrmtments to extend credit are not recorded as an asset
or liability until the instruments are exercised. : \

The Company is subject to certain market risks and interest rate risks from the time a commitment is issued to
originate new loans. In an effort to protect the Company against adverse interest rate movements, at the time an
application is taken for a fixed-rate, single-family residential loan, the Company typically enters into an agreement to sell
the loan, or a loan within the same interest-rate range, into the secondary market. This is known as a "matclied sale”
approach and reduces interest-rate risk with respect to these loans. There is still some portion of these loans which may
pever close for various reasons. However, the agencies the Company sells loans to permit some flexibility in delivering
loan product to them. In certain instances, if the loans delivered for sale do not match the characteristics outlined in the
forward sale commitments, the gain on sale may be reduced. ‘



Changes in Financial Condition

General. Total assets of the Company increased by $12.3 million, or 2.2%, from $559.6 million at September 30,
2003 to $571.9 million at September 30, 2004. The increase primarily reflected growth of mortgage-related securities -

held to maturity and to ‘a lesser extent, loans receivable, partially offset by a decrease in mortgage-related securities
available for sale and investment securities available for sale. The asset growth was primarily funded by advances from
-the FHLB.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents, which consists of cash on hand and deposited in other
banks in interest-earning and non-interest-earning accounts, amounted to $18.0 million and $21.2 million at September
30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was due to a $5.3 million, or 50.3%, decrease
in cash due to the reclassification of deposits resulting in a lower reserve requirement at the Federal Reserve Bank
partially offset by a $2.0 million, or 19.0% increase in interest-bearing deposits. Cash and cash equivalents are available
as a source of funds for ongmauons of new loans and purchases of additional investment and mortgage-relatcd securities.

Investment Securities Held to Matunty and Investment Securities Available for Sale. Total investment
securities decreased by $15.1 million, or 18.0%, from $84.0 million at September 30, 2003 to $68.9 million at September

30, 2004. The decrease in investment securities resulted from U.S. agency, municipal and corporate bonds bemg called

‘and, to a lesser extent, the sale of certain mvestment securities available for sale.

Mortgage-Related Securities Held to Maturity and Mortgage-Related Securities Available For Sale. Mortgagc-
related securities held to maturity and mortgage-related securities available for sale increased in the aggregate by $6.8
million, or 5.3%), to $135.0 million at September 30, 2004 compared to $128.1 million at September 30, 2003. The
available for salé, portfolio has decreased by $27.0 million, or 21.7%, as part of the Company’s strategy to reinvest the
cash flows into the held to maturity portfolio to minimize the effect of price volatility to the Company’s financial
statements as interest rates increase. The held to maturity portfolio increased $33.9 million to $37.4 million at Septembcr
30, 2004.

Loans Held for Sale. At September 30, 2004, $172,000 of fixed-rate single-family residential loans were
classified as held for sale compared to $4.5 million at September 30, 2003. The decrease of $4.3 million is due to
management’s reevaluation of the Company’s asset-liability position and decision to retain in its residential loan portfolio
'$4.2 million of the loans originally intended to be sold in the secondary market. In addition, the decrease is also related to
the reduction in loan refinancings with the increase in interest rates during the fiscal year. During fiscal year 2004, the
Company originated $9.7 million and sold $9.8 million of such loans.

Loans Receivable, Net. Total loans receivable, net, increased to $304.2 million at September 30, 2004 conipared
to $286.4 million at September 30, 2003. The increase was primarily due to a $10.2 million, or 30.4%, increase in home

. equity loans and lines of credit, a $9.1 million, or 31.4%, increase in construction loans, a $5.5 million, or 9.3% increase

in commercial real estate loans partially offset by a $2.1 million, or 1.3%, decrease in single-family residential loans. The
Company has continued to sell 30-year fixed-rate mortgages bearing low mterest rates into the secondary market in order
to minimize interest rate risk in a rising interest rate environment. : .

Non-Performing Assets. The Company’s total non-performing loans and real estate owned slightly increased to
$3.3 million, or'0.57% of total assets, at September 30, 2004 compared to $3.0 million, or 0.53% of total assets, at the
end of the prior fiscal year. The increase in non-performing assets in fiscal 2004 was attributable to an increase of
$770,000 and $243,000 in non-performing construction and home equity loans, respectively, partially offset by a
decrease of $271,000 in commercial real estate and business loans along with an $191,000 decrease in real estate owned.

Deposits. Deposits decreased by $17.7 million, or 4.9%, from $362.6 million at September 30, 2003 to $344.9
million at September 30, 2004. Certificates of deposit decreased by $13.6 million, or 7.6%, to $164.9 million
representing 47.8% of total deposits at September 30, 2004 from $178.5 million, or 49.2%, of total deposits at September
30, 2003. The decrease was also attributable to a $4.2 million, or 2.3%, decrease in the Company’s core accounts (non-
interest-bearing, NOW, passbook, and MMDA accounts). The decrease in deposits was due to the Company )
unwillingness to increase deposit rates on certificates of deposit to those paid by the competition.
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Borrowings. The Company’s total borrowings increased to $171.1 million at September 30, 2004 from $136.3
million at September 30, 2003 primarily to offset the decline in deposits and to fund asset growth. Borrowings had a
weighted average interest rate of 4.36% at Septembcr 30, 2004. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
further information.

Equity. At September 30, 2004, total stockholders’ equity was $29.7 million, or 5.2% of total assets, compared to
$32.4 million, or 5.8% of total assets, at September 30, 2003. The decrease was due to an unrealized loss on available for
sale securities of $1.3 million, the cost of repurchasing 51,092 shares of common stock at a weighted average cost of
$26.21 per share during fiscal 2004 as well as the cost of purchasing 96,208 shares for the ESOP combined with dividend
payments of $843,000 partially offset by net income for the year of $2.2 million.

Average Balances, Net Interest Income and Yields Earned and Rates Paid. The following table sets forth, for the
periods indicated, information regarding (i) the total dollar amount of interest income of the Company from interest-
earning assets and the resultant average yields; (ii) the total dollar amount of interest expense on interest-bearing
liabilities and the resultant average rate; (iii) net interest income; (iv) interest rate spread; and (v) net interest margin.
Information is based on average daily balances during the indicated periods; yields were adjusted for the effects of tax-
free investments using the statutory tax rate.

The adjustment of tax exempt securities to-a tax equivalent yield in the table below may be considered to include |
non-GAAP financial information. Management believes that it is a standard practice in the banking industry to present -
net interest margin, net interest rate spread and net interest income on a fully tax equivalent basis when a significant
proportion of interest-earning assets are tax-free. Therefore, management believes these measures provide useful

" information to investors by allowing them to make peer comparisons. A GAAP reconciliation also is included below.

Year Ended September 30,
" Yield/Cost 2004 2003 . . 2002
at Average o - Average © Average -
Sept. 30, Average Yield/  Average Yield/ = Average ' Yield/

2004 - Balance Interest Cost Balance  Interest Cost __ Balance _Interest  Cost
i (Dollars in thousands) )

Interest-earning assets: . .
Loans receivable®® 5.73% $295,701 $17,529 5.93% $290,357 $18,937  6.52% $267,208 $19,379 7.25%
Mortgage-related securities® . 3.99 137,256 5,298 3.86 114,833 4,464 3.89 113,827 6,441 5.66
Investment securities® 4.46 83,911 3,597 4.29 84,038 4094 - 487 76,826 4509 587
Other interest-earning assets 170 12056 .16 063 _ 14390 _- 120 083 -_ 17946 __ 223 14

Total interest-earning assets 500  $28924 26500 501 _S03.618 27615 S48 475807 _30.552 642

Non-interest-earning assets - 32,847 30411 . . - 22855
Total assets © $56L77% £334.020 $503.662

Interest-bearing llabllmes :

Deposits 1.66 . .$347,807 5910 170 $343,727 7.353 214 $319,344 9,599 3.01
FHLB advances and other 437 . :
borrowings 155,932, 7,126 4.57 131,136 6983 533 127,264 6941 545
Junior subordinated debentures 813 - _21576 _1.676 1.77 21,613 1677 776 20,658 1,716 828 .-
Total interest-bearing liabilities 278 525315 14712 . 280 - 496476 16QI3 322 467266 18250 390
Interest rate spread 22% 221% o —226% I 373
Non-interest-bearing liabilities ' ._5.565 o . 4889 : 5319 . .
" Total liabilities _ 530,880 501,365 ‘ 472,585

Stockholders’ equity : ) 30.891 _ 32,664 o 310717

Total liabilities and stockholders’, . g L ' ’

equity $56L.771 £534.020 £503.622

Net interest-earning assets - 3 _3.600 . £.7142 £ 8541

Net interest income - $11,788 ) $11.602 : $12302
Net interest margin™ _ 220% —2.30% =259%
Ratio of average interest-earning assets . ) . :

to average interest-bearing liabilities 100.69% 101.44% 101.83%
™ Includes non-accrual loans.

@ Includes assets classified as either available for sale or held for sale.
© Net interest income divided by interest-earning assets.
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Although management believes that the above mentioned non-GAAP financial measures enhance investor’s
understanding of the Company’s business and performance, these non-GAAP financials measures should not be
considered an alternative to GAAP. The reconciliation of these non-GAAP financials measures from GAAP to non-
GAAP is presented below.

For the Year Ended September 30,
2004 2003 2002
Average Average Average
Interest Yield/Cost Interest Yield/Cost Interest Yield/Cost
(Dollars in thousands)

Investment securities — nontaxable $3240 38% $ 3691 4.39% $ 4078 531%
Tax equivalent adjustments 357 403 431
Investment securities — nontaxable to a ’ o
taxable equivalent yield - $3597 429% $409 4.87% $.4509 5.87%
Net interest income $11,431 $11,199 $11,871
Tax equivalent adjustment 357 403 431
Net interest income, tax equivalent $11,788 $11.602 o 230
Net interest rate spread, no tax . _
adjustment 2.14% 2.18% 2.52%
Net interest margin, no tax adjustment - 2.16% 2.22% ) 2.59%

Rate/Volume Analysis. The following table describes the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in
the volume of interest-related assets and liabilities have affected the Company’s interest income and expense during the
periods indicated. For each category of interest-earning asset and interest-bearing liability, information is provided on
changes attributable to (i) changes in volume (change in volume multiplied by prior year rate), (ii) changes in rate

(change in rate multiplied by prior year volume), and (iii) total change in rate and volume. The combined effect of

changes in bothirate and volume has been allocated proportionately to the change due to rate and the change due to
volume. The table below has been prepared on a tax-equivalent basis.

Year Ended September 30,
2004 vs. 2003 2003 vs. 2002
Increase (Decrease) Due To  Increase (Decrease) Due To
Rate * Volume Total Rate - Volume  Total

Increase ’ Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
Interest-earnings assets: : . .
Loans receivable” $(1,765) $ 357  $(1,408) - $(3,160) $2,718 $ (442)
Mortgage-related securities™ (32) 866 834 (2,035 . 58 (1,977)
Investment securities’® ® (491) (6) 497) 927 512 _(415)
Other interest-earning assets (26) 18 (44) (63) 39 (103)
Total interest-earning assets 2314) _1.199 (1.115) (6,186) _3.249 (2937
Interest-bearing liabilities: _ .
Deposits (1,531) 88 (1,443) (3,055) 809 (2,246)
Trust preferredsecurities 2 ) (1). (126) - 93 . (33)
FHLB advances and other borrowings (429) 372 143 (147 189 42
Total interest-bearing liabilities (1,958) 657 1,301 (3.328) 1,091 (2237
Increase (decrease) in net interest income $(35) § 542 3§ 186 m $2,158 - 3 (700)

M Includes assets classified as either available for sale or held for sale.
-® Total decrease in investment securities on a nontaxable equivalent basis would be $(451) and $(387) for the 2004 and the 2003 comparisons,

respectively, resultmg in a increase (decrease) in net interest income of $232 and $(672), respectively.
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Results of Operations

General. The Company reported net income of $2.2 million, $2.7 million and $2.7 million for the years ended
September 30, 2004,-2003 and 2002, respectively.

The $536,000 decrease in net income for the year ended September 30, 2004 compared to the year ended
September 30, 2003 was primarily due to a $2.1 million, or 20.2%, increase in non-interest expense partidlly offset a
$613,000, or 18.7%, increase in non-interest income, a $646,000, or 6.2%, increase in net interest income after provision
for loan loss combined with a $306,000, or 48.4%, decrease in income tax expense.

The $13,000 increase in net income for the year ended September 30, 2003 compared to the year ended September
30, 2002 was primarily due to a $1.0 million, or 45.2%, increase in non-interest income partially offset by a $846,000, or
7.5%, decrease in net interest income after provision for loan loss combined with a $205,000, or 48.0%, increase in
income tax expense.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income is determined by the interest rate spread (the difference between the
yields eamed on interest-earning assets and the rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities) and the relative amounts of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing Liabilities. All percentages are reported on a fully tax-equivalent basis (see the
tables on the prior page for a recalculation of such percentages). The Company’s average interest-rate spread was 2.21%,
2.26% and 2.52% for the years ended September 30, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. The Company’s interest-rate
spread was 2.22% at September 30, 2004. The Company’s net interest margin (net interest income as a percentage of
average interest-earning assets) was 2.23%, 2.30% and 2.59% for the years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Due to the continued low interest rate environment existing during fiscal 2004 and 2003, the interest rate
compression experienced by the Company reflects the effects of the accelerated rate of ‘repayments and prepayments of
loans and mortgage-related securities experienced by the Company during fiscal 2004 and 2003, requiring it to reinvest
the Tesulting proceeds at current lower market rates of interest without a corresponding decrease in the rates paxd on
deposits and borrowings. During the latter part of fiscal 2004, refinancing and prepayment activity significantly slowed
down due to increases in market rates of interest. As a consequence, management anticipates the yield earned on
interest-earning assets to improve, however, with the increase in short-term rates impacting the Company’s interest-
bearing liabilities, the Company’s net interest spread and margin will stabilize during fiscal 2005.

Net interest income increased to $11.4 million in fiscal 2004 as compared to $11.2 million in fiscal 2003. The

- $231,000, or 2.1%, increase came as aresult of a $1.3 million, or 8.1%, decrease in interest expense partially offset by a

$1.1 million, or 3.9%, decrease in interest income. The increase in net interest income was primarily due to the

historically low interest rate environment impacting the rates paid on the Company’s interest-bearing core deposits and
certificates of deposit which repriced downward to a greater degree than its interest-ecarning assets.

Nét interest income decreased to $11.2 million in fiscal 2003 as compared to $11.9 million in fiscal 2002. The
$671,000, or 5.7%, decrease resulted from the $2.9 million, or 9.7%, decrease in interest income partially offset by a $2.2

. million, or 12.3%, decrease in interest expense. The decrease in net interest income was primarily due to interest-earning

assets repricing downward due to the prolonged low interest rate environment w1thout a corresponding decrease in rates
paid on the Company’s interest-bearing liabilities.

Interest Income. The $1.1 million or 3.9%, decrease in total interest income during the year ended September 30,
2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 was primarily due to a $1.4 million, or 7.4%, decrease in interest on loans reflecting in
Jlarge part the 59 basis point decrease in the average yield earned offset partially by a $5.3 million, or 1.8%, increase in
the average balance of the loan portfolio. The decline in yield was due to the continued low interest rate environment’
experienced in fiscal 2004 causing repayments of loans with the proceeds being reinvested in lower yielding assets.
Additionally, interest income on investment securities and interest-bearing deposits decreased $495,000, or 13.0%, due to
a 45 basis point decrease in the weighted average yield earned combined with a $2.5 million, or 2.5%, decrease in the
average balance. The decline in the yield was primarily due to the low interest rate environment resulting in the
acceleration of repayment and prepayment of such securities, the proceeds were being reinvested in lower yielding assets.
The decrease was offset, in part, by an increase in interest income on mortgage-related securities as aresult of a $22.4
million, or 19.5%, increase in the average balance offset by a 3 basis point decrease in the yield eamned on such assets.
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The $2.9 million, or 9.7%, decrease in total interest income during the year ended September 30, 2003 as
compared to fiscal 2002 was primarily due to a $2.0 million, or 30.7%, decrease in interest income from mortgage-related
securities as a result of a 177 basis point decrease in the yield earned offset, in part, by a $1.0 million, or 0.9%, increase
in the average balance of the mortgage-related securities portfolio. Interest income on loans decreased $442,000, or
2.3%, due to a 73 basis point decrease in the average yield earned offset partially by a $23.1 million, or 8.7%, increase in
the average balance of the loan portfolio. The decline in yield was due to the declining interest rate environment
. experienced in fiscal 2003 causing accelerated repayments of loans with the proceeds being reinvested in lower yielding
assets. In addition, the accelerated prepayments of mortgage-related securities resulted in a significant amortization of
premiums. Additionally, interest income on investment securities and other interest-earning assets decreased $518,000,
or 10.9%, due to'a 71 basis point decrease in the weighted average yield earned offset partially by a $3.7 million, or
3.9%, increase in the average balance of such assets.

Interest Expense. Total interest expense amounted to $14.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2004 as
compared to $16.0 million for fiscal 2003. Total interest expense decreased by $1.3 million, or 8.1%, during the year
ended September 30, 2004 compared to fiscal 2003 due to a $1.4 million decrease in interest expense on deposits
partially offset by a $143,000 increase in interest expense on borrowings. The decrease in interest expense on deposits
‘was due to a 44 basis point decrease in the average rate paid thereon partially offset by a $4.1 million increase in the
average balance of deposits. The increase in interest expense on borrowings was due to a $24.8 million increase in the
average balance of borrowings offset by a 76 basis point decrease in the average rate paid. The decrease in the rates paid
on deposits and borrowmgs was due to declining interest rates experienced durmg the first three quaners of fiscal year
2004, ‘

Total interest expense amounted to $16.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2003 as compared to $18.3
million for fiscal 2002. Total interest expense decreased by $2.2 million, or 12.3%, during the year ended September 30,
2003 comparedi to fiscal 2002 due to a $2.2 million and $33,000 decrease in interest expense on deposits and
subordinated debt, respectively, partially offset by a $42,000 increase in interest expense on borrowings. The decrease in
interest expense on deposits was due to an 87 basis point decrease in the average rate paid thereon partially offset by a
$24.4 million increase in the average balance of deposits. The increase in interest expense on borrowings was due to a

$3.9 million increase in the average balance of borrowings offset by an 11 basis point decrease in the average rate paid. -

Deposits grew due to the Company’s continued marketing of its core deposit products and were used to fund purchases of
investment and mortgage-related securities. However, interest expense decreased primarily due to lower rates paid on
deposits and overnight borrowings resulting from declining interest rates experienced during fiscal year 2003.

Provisions for Loan Losses. Provisions for loan losses are charged to earnings to maintain the total allowance for
loan losses at a level believed by management to cover all known and inherent losses in the Company’s loan portfolio.
Management’s analysis includes consideration of the Company’s historical experience, the volume and type of lending

conducted by the Company, the amount of the Company’s classified assets, the status of past due principal and interest .

payments, general economic conditions, particularly as they relate to the Company’s primary market area, and other
factors related to the collectibility of the Company’s loan and loans held for sale portfolios. Management of the Company

assesses the allowance for loan losses on a monthly basis and makes provisions for loan losses as deemed necessary in -

order to maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level management believes covers all known and inherent losses that

are both probable and reasonably estimable. For the years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the provisions for

loan losses were $300,000, $715,000 and $540,000, respectively. During fiscal 2004, the Company lowered its provision
for loan losses primarily due to its assessment of the amount of losses and charge-offs as compared to fiscal 2003. The
Company charged off $321,000 in fiscal 2004 compared to $1.1 million in the prior fiscal year. At September 30, 2004,
the Company’s allowance for loan losses totaled $2.0 million which amounted to 100.29% of total non-performing loans
and 0.66% of |gross loans receivable. During fiscal 2003, the Company increased its provision for loan lasses as
compared to fiscal 2002 primarily due to its assessment of the amount of losses it would incur with respect to non-

performing commercial real estate loans.
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Non-interest Income. For the year ended September 30, 2004, the Company reported non-interest income of $3.9
million compared to $3.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2003. The $613,000, or 18.7%, increase in non-
interest income was due primarily as a result of increases in service charges, realized gains on sale of securities and other
income partially offset by the decline in the gains on sale of loans and the cash surrender value of certain insurance
policies.

Service charges increased $222,000, or 21.9%, primarily as a result of the implementation of additional fee-

based deposit services in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004, the net gains on

sale of investment and mortgage-related securities increased $314,000 resulting from realized gains of $2.0 million on
securities partially offset by a $1.1 million pre-tax other-than-temporary impairment of a perpetual preferred security.
See “Investment and Mortgage-Related Securities.” The increase in non-interest income was also due to a recognition of
$550,000 in connection with a repayment of a commercial real estate loan. Under the terms of the loan, certain additional
contingent payments were due upon repayment of the loan in full. The rise in mortgage rates experienced in fiscal 2004
reduced the volume of mortgage refinance activity as compared to fiscal 2003 resulting in a decrease of $356,000 in the
gain on sale of loans. The reduced level of mortgage refinance activity also resulted in reduced mortgage broker activity

and reduced gains on sale of loans held for sale. In addition, the increase in cash surrender value experienced a slower

appreciation decreased $229,000 primarily due to certain insurance policies held by the Bank to fund certain
supplemental retirement benefits in the underlying investment of equity securities compared to the same period last year,

For the year ended September 30, 2003, the Company‘ reported non-interest income of $3.3 million compared to

'$2.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2002. The primary reason for the $1.0 million, or 45.2%, increase in non-

interest income in fiscal 2003 were increases of $326,000 and $269,000 increases in gain on the sale of loans and
investments and mortgage-related securities, respectively. These increases were the result of the Company’s strategy to
sell certain single-family fixed-rate residential mortgage loans and to restructure the. securities portfolio in order to
benefit in the then existing low interest rate environment. Gain on the sale of loans was partially offset by the recording
of loans held for sale of loans at their fair value. In addition, due to the overall improvement in the U.S. equities market,
the Company experienced a $303,000 increase in the cash surrender value of certain insurance policies used to fund
certain supplemental retirement benefits. :

Non-interest Expense. Non-interest éxpense include salaries and employee benefits, occupancy and equipment
expense, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) deposit insurance prermums, professional fees, data processing
expense, advertising, deposit processing and other items.

Non-imerest expense increased $2.1 million, or 20.2%, for the year ended September 30, 2004 coinpared to the
year ended September 30, 2003 and was primarily due to a $1.4 million, or 27.0%, increase in compensation and
employee benefit expense. The increase in compensation and employee benefit expense was atiributable to an additional

- $598,000 expense relating to the funding of a non-qualified supplemental retirement plan for certain executive officers.

Additionally, the increase occurred due to-a $334,000, or 64.7%, increase in the ESOP expense related to the
appreciation of the Company’s stock value as well as the prepayment of the outstanding loan balance on the original
loan. In addition, the Company experienced increase of $463,000 in compensation and benefit expense was due to the
hiring of additional personnel for a new branch and for building infrastructure in the lending areas, merit increases and
medical costs. In addition, the increase in non-interest expense for fiscal 2004 was due to increases of $148,000,
$188,000 and $204,000 in real estate operations, professional fees and other non-interest expenses, respectively.

Non-interest expense decreased $41,000, or 0.4%, for the year ended September 30, 2003 compared to the year
ended September 30, 2002 primarily due to the absence of any litigation expenses which amounted $570,000 in fiscal
2002 and which related to the settlement of a lawsuit in the prior year. In addition, the Company experienced decreases
of $99,000 and $74,000 in professional fees and advertising expenses, respectively, offset, in part by a $562,000 increase
in salaries and employee benefits. Salaries and employee benefits increased primarily due to the increased cost of the
"ESOP resulting from the appreciation of the Company’s stock price as well as general compensation increases and the
cost of medical and retirement plans.
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.Income Taxes. The Company recognized income tax expense of $326,000, or 12.9%, of pre-tax income, for the
year ended September 30, 2004, compared to $632,000, or 18.7%, of pre-tax income, for the year ended September 30,
2003. The Company recognized income tax expense of $427,000, or 13.5%, of pre-tax income, for fiscal 2002. The
primary reason for the decrease in the Company’s effective tax rate for fiscal year 2004 was the reduction in income
before income taxes. Comparing fiscal years 2003 and 2002, the increase in the lower effective tax rate in fiscal 2003
reflected the reduced level of tax-free income as well as the increase in income before income taxes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Company’s liquidity, represented by cash and cash equivalents, is a product of its operating, investing and

financing activities. The Company’s primary sources of funds are deposits, amortization, prepayments and maturities of
outstanding loans and mortgage-related securities, sales of loans, maturities of investment securities and other short-term

investments, borrowings and funds provided from operations. While scheduled payments from the amortization of loans

and mortgage-related securities and maturing investment securities and short-term investments are relatively predictable

sources of funds; deposit flows and loan and mortgage-related securities prepayments are greatly influenced by general

interest rates, economic conditions and competition. In addition, the Company invests excess funds in overnight deposits

and other short-term interest-earning assets which provide liquidity to meet lending requirements. The Company has the-

ability to obtain advances from the FHLB of Pittsburgh through several credit programs with the FHLB in amounts not to
exceed the Bank’s maximum borrowing capacity and subject to certain conditions, including holding a predetermined
amount of FHLB stock as collateral. As an additional source of funds, the Company has access to the Federal Reserve
discount window, but only after it has exhausted its access to the FHLB of Pittsburgh. At September 30, 2004, the
Company had $166.4 million of outstanding advances and $3.5 million of overnight borrowings fromthe FHLB of
Pittsburgh.

Liquidity management is both a daily and long-term function of business management. Excess liquidity is
generally invested in short-term investments such as overnight deposits. On a longer term basis, the Company maintains

a strategy of investing in various lending products and mortgage-related securities. The Company uses its sources of

funds primarily to meet its ongoing commitments, to pay maturing savings certificates and savings withdrawals, fund
loan commitments and maintain a portfolio of mortgage related and investment securities. At September 30, 2004, the
total of approved loan commitments outstanding amounted to $2.2 million. At the same date, commitments under unused
lines of credit and loans in process on construction loans amounted to an aggregate of $51.9 million. Certificates of
deposit scheduled to mature in one year or less at September 30, 2004 totaled $97.4 million. Based upon its historical
experience, management believes that a significant portion of maturing deposits will remain with the Company.

The OTS requires that the Bank meet minimum regulatory tangible, core, tier 1 risk-based and total risk based
capital requirements. At September 30, 2004, the Bank exceeded all regulatory capital requirements and was deemed a
well capitalized institution for regulatory purposes. See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company’s assets consist primarily of its investment in the Bank and investments in various corporate debt
and equity instruments. Its only material source of income consists of earnings from its investment in the Bank and
interest and dividends earned on other investments. The Company, as a separately incorporated holding company, has no

significant operations other than serving as the sole stockholder of the Bank and paying interest to its subsidiaries, First
Keystone Capital Trust I and II, for junior subordinated debt issued in conjunction with the issuance of trust preferred

securities. See Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. On an unconsolidated basis, the Company hasnopaid .

employees. The expenses primarily incurred by the Company relate to its reporting obligations under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, related expenses incurred as a publicly traded company, and expenses relating to the issuance of
the trust preferred securities and the junior subordinated debentures issued in connection therewith, Management believes
that the Company has adequate liquidity available to respond to its liquidity demands. Under applicable federal
regulations, the Bank may pay dividends to the Company (as sole stockholder) within certain limits after providing
written notice to or obtaining the approval of the OTS. See Note 11 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Derivative Financial Instruments, Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments

. The Company has not used, and has no intention to use, any significant off-balance sheet financing arrangements
for liquidity purposes. The Company’s primary financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk are limited to loan
servicing for others, its obligations to fund loans to customers pursuant to existing commitments.and commitments to
purchase and sell mortgage loans. In addition, the Company has not had, and has no intention to have, any significant
transactions, arrangements or other relationships with any unconsolidated, limited purpose entities that could materially
affect its liquidity or capital resources. The Company has not, and does not intend to, trade in commodity contracts.

We anticipate that we will continue to have sufﬁcu:nt funds and alternative funding sources to meet our currcnt
commitments.

The Company's contractual cash obligations as of September 30, 2004 are as follows: ‘

Payments Due by Perlod'
Less Than " More Than
Total ~1Year 1-3 Years 3-5Years 5 Years
B ) (dollars in thousands) o
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings $171,149 $44,610 $ - $40,846 $85693 . -
Operating Leases _ 2,324 289 392 438 1,205 -
Total Obligations 8173473 $44.899 $392 - $41,284 386,898

Off-Balance-Sheet Obligations

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet
the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess-of the amount
recognized in the balance sheet. The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other’
party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the

~ contractual notional amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments

and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments (see Note 1 of the "Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements" included in Item 8 herem)

The Company's contingent_ liabilities and commitments as of September 30, 2004 are as follows: ‘
' Less Than ' : More Than

Total lYear . 1-3Years 3.5Years 5 Years
: (doMlars in thousands) - .
Line of Credit $37,0430  § 9,255 - $L,717 $4011 - $22,060
Standby letters of credit ) : 169 169 -- . - -
Other commitments to make loans ) 2,239 2,239 - - -
" Undisbursed funds on previous disbursed loans 14,163 3.666 1991 2,506
Total : $53.614 M &M $6.517 &J_lﬁ_ﬂ

 Includes lines of ¢redit for commercial real estate, commercial loans and home equity loans.
Investment and Mortgage-related Securities

The Company reviews the investment and mortgage-related securities portfolios on a periodic basis to specifically
review individual securities for any meaningful decline in market value below amortized cost. The analysis addresses all
securities whose fair value is significantly below amortized cost at the time of the analysis, with additional emphasis
placed on securities whose fair value has been below amortized cost for an extended period of time. As part of the
periodic review process, the Company utilizes the expertise of outside professional asset managers who provide an
updated assessment of each issuer’s current credit situation based on recent issuer activities, such as quarterly earnings
announcements or other pertinent financial news for the issuer, recent developments in a particular industry, economic
outlook for a particular industry and rating agency actions.

52



In additionito issuer-specific financial information and general economic data, the Company also considers the
ability and intent/of its operations to hold a particular security to maturity or until the market value of the security
recovers to a level in excess of the carrying value.

At September 30, 2004, the net unrealized gain on its investment and mortgage-related securities was $2.7 million,
or 1.3% of the amortized cost basis. The net unrealized gain on its investment assets at September 30, 2003 was-$3.6
million, or 4.9% of the amortized cost basis. The net unrealized gain included gross unrealized gains of $3.9'million and
gross unrealized losses of $1.2 million. Of the securities in an unrealized loss position, the unrealized loss position longer
than 12 months represents $549,000, or 0.27% of its amortized cost. Securities with an unrealized loss longer than 12
months have a fair value of $29.0 million, of which $13.2 million are mortgage-related.

For all securities that are in an unrealized loss position for an extended period of time, an eValuétion is performed .

of the specific events attributable to the decline in the market value of the security. Factors that are considered are the
length of time and extent to which the security’s market value has been below cost as well as the general market
conditions, industry characteristics and the fundamental operating results of the issuer to determine if the decline is due to
changes in interest rates, changes relating to a decline in credit quality of the issuer, or general market conditions. An

‘additional part of the evaluation is the Company’s intent and ability to hold the security until its market value has

recovered to a level at least equal to the amortized cost. If the security’s unrealized loss is other than temporary, a
realized loss is rccogmzed in the period in whlch the decline in value is determined to be other than temporary.

Based on|our evaluation as of September 30, 2004, the Company recognized a pre-tax other-than~temporary
impairment of $1‘1 million with respect to one perpetual preferred security. ' A number of factors, including the
magnitude of the drop in the market value of the security below the Company's cost and recovery is not expected in a
reasonable amount of time, resulted in management’s determination that the decline in value was other-than-temporary at
the end of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. The Company believes that all the remaining securities with an unrealized
loss position are only temporarily impaired. The Company will continue to review these securities and evaluate the
temporary nature of the impairment on a quarterly basis. T

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For discussion of recent accounting pronouncements, se¢ Note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements set forth
in Item 8 hcreof '

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Consohdated Financial Statements of the Company and related notes presented herein have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America which require the
measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars, without considéring changes in thc
relative purchasmg power of money over time due to inflation,

Unlike most industrial companies, substantially all of the assets and liabilities of a financial institution are
monetary in nature, As a result, interest rates have a more significant impact on a financial institution’s performance than
the effects of general levels of inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or in the same
magnitude as the prices of goods and services, since such prices are affected by inflation to a larger extent than interest
rates. In the current interest rate environment, liquidity and the maturity structure and repricing characteristics of the
Company’s assets and liabilities are critical to the maintenance of acceptable performance levels.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The information required herein is incorporated by reference to *“Asset and Liability Management” set forthin Item
7 above. ‘
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Deloitte.

Deloitte Touche LLP

22™ Floor

1700 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-3984

Tel: 215-246-2300
Fax: 215-569-2441
www.deloitte.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
First Keystone Financial, Inc. and subsidiaries
Media, Pennsylvania 19063

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of First Keystone Financial, Inc.
and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, and the related
consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended September 30, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility .
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. :

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects; the
financial position of First Keystone Financial, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2004 and
2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the _
period ended September 30, 2004, in conformity with accounting prmcxples generally accepted in
the United States of America. ’

As discussed in Note 2,in 2004, the Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accountmg
Standards Board Interpretation No. 46 (R).

| DM T ouche LLP

December 17, 2004

Memberof
Deloltte Touche
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FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

ASSETS
Cash and amounts due from depository institutions
Interest-bearing deposits with depository institutions
Total cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities available for sale
Mortgage-related securities available for sale
Loans held for sale
Investment securities held to maturity — at amortized cost (approximate fair value
of $5,370 and ' $6,450 at September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively)
Mortgage-related securities held to maturity - at amortized cost
(approximate fair value of $37,312 and $3,560 at September 30, 2004
and 2003, respectively) ' ,
Loans receivable (net of allowance for loan losses of $2,039 and $1,986
at September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively)
Accrued interest receivable '
Real estate owned
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost
Office properties and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities:
Deposits
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank and other borrowings
Junior subordinated debentures
Accrued interest payable ‘
Advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance
Deferred income taxes
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 13 and 14)
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; none issued
Common stock, $.01 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized; issued 2,712,556
shares; outstanding at September 30, 2004 and 2003, 1,927,744
and 1,925,337 shares, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Employee stock ownership plan .
Treasury stock at cost: 784,812 and 787,219 shares at September 30, 2004
and 2003, respectively
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained earnings-partially restricted

Total stockholders’ equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

September 30,
2004 2003
$ 5185 § 10,439
12,790 10,751
17,975 21,190 -
63,615 77,700
97,620 124,656
172 4,498
5,287 6,315
37,363 3,487
304248 286,421
2,577 2,654
1,229 1,420
9,827 8,294
4,275 3,427
657 -
16,110 15,365
10964 __ 4,185
3571919  $559.612
'$344,880  $362,605
171,149 136,272
21,557 21,593
1,095 1,111
815 958
- 581
2725 4,104
542221 - 527224
14 14
13,622 13,443
(3:189) (830)
11,913) (11,378
1,734 3,069
29,430 28,070
29698 __32.388
$571.919 5552.6_12_
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FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

INTEREST INCOME:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest and dividends on:
Mortgage-related securities
Investment securities:
Taxable
Tax-exempt
Dividends
Interest-bearing deposits

Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE:
Interest on:
Deposits
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other borrowings
Junior subordinated debentures
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

NON-INTEREST INCOME:

Service charges and other fees

Netgainonsaleof: =

- Investments and mortgage-related securities
Loans held for sale '

Increase in cash surrender value

Other real estate fees

Other income

Total non-interest income
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE:

- Salaries and employee benefits

Occupancy and equipment

Professional fees

Federal deposit insurance premium
Net cost of operation of other real estate
Data processing

~ Advertising

Litigation settlement
Deposit processing
Other : ) .
Total non-interest expense
Income before income tax expense
Income tax expense
* Net income )

Earnings per common share:

Basic

Diluted

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended Sepiember 30,

1229

2004 2003 2002
$17,529 818937  $19,379
5,298 4,464 6,441
2,127 2,205 2,445
842 1,040 1,203
271 356 430
76 120 223
26,143 27212 30,121
5910 7352 9,599
7,126 6,983 - 6,941
1676  ._1677 1710
14712 16,012 18.250
C11431 11,200 11,871
300 715 540
11131 _10.485 11331 -
1,235 - . 1,013 1,000
914 1600 331
. 54 410 84
731 . 960 680
550 - -
415 303 168
3,899 3286 2263
6,807 5,358 - 4,796
T 1253 1242
867 679 778 -
53 55 57
186 38 - @
478 467 478
423 397 471
- - 570
628 562 515
1,806 1602  _ 1551
12,501 10.400 10441
2,529 3,371 3,153
326 632 427
$2203 $ 2739 §2726
$ 1201 $ 144 $ 142
$ 114 $ 135 $ 134



FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at October 1, 2001
Comprehensive income:
- Net income }
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Netunrealized gain on securities
net of reclassification adjustment‘”
Comprehensive income
ESOP stock committed to be released
Excess of fair value above cost of ESOP
shares committed to be released
Exercise of stock options
Purchase of treasury stock
Dividends paid
Balance at September 30, 2002
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net unrealized loss on securities
net of reclassification adjustment™

Comprehensive income
ESOP stock committed to be released
Excess of fair value above cost of ESOP
shares committed to be released
Exercise of stock options
Purchase of treasury stock
Dividends paid
Balance at September 30, 2003
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net unrealized loss on securities
net of reclassification adjustment(”
Comprehensive income
ESOP stock committed to be released
Common stock acquired by stock benefit
plan
Excess of fair value above cost of ESOP
shares committed to be released
Exercise of stock options
Purchase of treasury stock
Dividends paid
Balance at September /30, 2004

 Disclosure of reclassification amount, net of tax for the years ended:
Net unrealized (depreciation) appreciation arising during the year
Less: reclassification adjustment for net gains included in net income
- (net of tax $311, $204 and $113, respectively)

Net unrealized (loss) gain on securities

Employee Accumuléted Retained
Additional stock other earnings- Total :
Common . paid-in ownership ~ Treasury comprehensive partially stockholders’ = -
stock capital plan. stock income (loss) restricted equity
$14 $13,536 $(1,14D $(8.58%) $2.664 $24.137 $30.621
- - - - - 2,726 2,726
- -- -- - 536 -- 536
-- - - - - - 3,262
- - 152 -- - - 152.
- 161 - - - - 161 -
- (75) -- 421 - - 346
- - - (1,013) - - (1,013)
— = - - - (3% (734
_14 13.622 _(995) (9.175) 3200 26129  _32795
- - - - - 2,739 2,739
] — —_— -~ ash - asy
= = = - = = 2608
- - 165 - - - 165
- 23.1 -- -~ - - 231
- 410) - 783 - - 373
- - - (2,986) - - (2,986)
. - - - - (798) (798)
A4 43443 (830 (1379 060 28070 32388
- - - - - 2,203 2,203
- - - - (1.335) = (1339
— — —— = = —_— —-—ﬂ.&
- - 220 - -- - 220
- - (2,579) - - - (2,579)
- 417 - - - - 417
- (238) - 804 - - 566
- - - (1,339 - - (1,339
- - - - - (843 (843)
2004 2003 2002
$(732) $265 $754.
603 396 218
501,335 §(131) £536

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income

Year Ended Septembgr 30,

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operaung activities:

Provision for depreciation and amortization
Amortization of premiums and discounts
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance
(Gain) loss on sales of:
Loans held for sale
Investment securities available for sale
Mortgage-related securities available for sale
Real estate owned
- Provision for loan losses
Provision for real estate owned losses
Amortization of ESOP
Deferred income taxes ‘
Changes in assets and liabilities which provided (used) cash:
Origination of loans held for sale
Loans sold in the secondary market
Accrued interest receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued interest payable
Accrued expenses
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Loans originated
Purchases of:
Investment securities available for sale
Investment securities held to marurity
Mortgage-related securities available for sale
Mortgage-related securities held to maturity
(Purchase) redemption of FHLB stock
Proceeds from sales of investment and mortgage-related securities available for sale
Proceeds from sales of real estate owned
Principal collected on loans
Proceeds from maturities, calls.or repayments of:
Investment securities available for sale
Investment securities held to maturity
Mortgage-related securities available for sale
Mortgage-related securities held to maturity
Purchase of property and equipment
" Net expenditures on real estate owned
Net cash used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net (decrease) increase in deposit accounts
Net increase in FHLB advances and other borrowings
Net (decrease) increase in advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance
Issuance of junior subordinated debentures
Common stock acquired by ESOP
Repurchase of junior subordinated debentures
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Purchase of treasury stock .
Cash dividends
Net cash provided by financing activities
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW AND NON-CASH INFORMATION:
Cash payments for interest on deposits and borrowings
. Cash payments of income taxes
Fair value adjustment to investments available for sale
Transfer of loans held for sale to loan portfolio
Transfers of loans receivable into real estate owned

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2004 . 2003 2002
$ 2,203 $ 2739 § 2726
473 426 457,
540 1,203 ()
(745) (1,003) (341)
(54) (410) - (84)
(587) (660) (33D
(306) 60 -

- 1 (124)

300 - 715 540 -
- - 18
637 396 - 384
(550) 225 (135)
9,671) (30,995) © (3,712
. 9814 26,998 3,436
77 Co317 382
(6,779) (1,622) 397
(16) (138) (750
(1.379) (1.224) 3619
(6.043) 2972 5684
(130,824) (174,407) - (172,860)

- . (8,579) ©(23,334) (37,909) -
- . (6,329) C
(22,329) (132,141) (27,511)
(37,856) - -
(1,533) (1,723) 346
16,464 14,600 8,936
376 <150 1,003
116,894 . 175,108 131,402
13,454 20,793 12,343
1,000 - -
40,344 83,135 58,779
3,924 . 5,369 2,595
(1,321) (362) (258)

- L (ay -
—(9.986) 39.05)H (23,145
(17,725) 31,840 19,164
34,877 10,035 167
(143) 126 136
- - 8,248
(2,579) - -

- (3,290) .

566 373 275
(1,339) (2,986) (1,013)

_ (843) (798) (134

12814 38,590

(3.215) (3.433) 5492
_21,190 24623  __19431
$ 14,728 $ 14522 § 17331
959 800 650
1,074 - -
4,186 - -
153 2,122 361



FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

1. Nature of Operations and Organization Structure

The primary business of First Keystone Financial, Inc. (the "Company") is to act as the holding company for its
principal wholly owned subsidiary, First Keystone Bank (the "Bank"), a federally chartered stock savings association
founded in 1934. The Bank has two active subsidiaries, FKF Management Corp., Inc. which manages investment
securities, and State Street Services Corporation, which has ownership interest in a title company as well as a 51%
interest in First Keystone Insurance Services (“First Keystone Insurance”), an insurance agency, which is consolidated
into the Company’s financial statements. Effective with the adoption of FASB Interpretation (“FIN"") No. 46 and FIN
46(R) (see Recent Accounting Pronouncements, below), on December 31, 2003 the Company deconsolidated First
Keystone Capital Trust I and First Keystone Capital Trust II, collectively, the (“Issuer Trusts”).

The primary business of the Bank is to offer a wide variety of commercial and retail products through its branch v

system located in Delaware and Chester counties in Pennsylvania. The Bank is primarily supervised and regulated by the
Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS™).

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, the Bank and the
Company’s and the Bank's wholly owned subsidiaries. In addition, the Company consolidates First Keystone Insurance

for which one of the Bank’s subsidiaries has a 51% ownership interest. The Company evaluated Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” and
determined the'Company operates in one segment and that is Banking. Intercompany accounts. and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation. , U .

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of income and expense during the repomng periods. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Securities. Held to Maturity and Securities Available for Sale

Securities held to maturity are carried at amortized cost. Securities are designated as held to maturity only if the
Company has the positive intent and ability to hold these securities to maturity. Securities available for sale are carried at
fair value withithe resulting unrealized gains or losses recorded in equity, net of tax. For the years ended September 30,
2004 and 2003, the Company did not maintain a trading portfolio.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of Securities

Securities are evaluated on at least a quarterly basis and more frequently when economic or market conditions
warrant such an evaluation to determine whether a decline in their value is other than temporary. Management utilizes

criteria such as the magnitude and duration of the decline and the intent and ability of the Company to retain jts

investment in the issues for a period of time sufficient to allow for an anticipated recovery in fair value, in addition to the
reasons underlying the decline, to determine whether the loss in value is other than temporary. The term "other than
temporary" is not intended to indicate that the decline is permanent, but indicates that the prospects for a near-term
recovery of value is not necessarily favorable, or that there is a lack of evidence to support a realizable value equal to or

greater than carrying value of the investment. Once a decline in value is determined to be other than temporary, the value

of the security is reduced and a corresponding charge to earnings equal is recognized.
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Allowance for Loan Losses

An allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that management considers adequate to provide for probable
losses based upon an evaluation of known and inherent losses in the loan portfolio. Management’s evaluation of the
portfolio is based upon past loss experience, current economic conditions and other relevant factors. While management
uses the best information available to make such evaluation, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if
condmons differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the evaluations.

- Impaired loans are predominantly measured based on the fair value of the collateral. The prov1snon for loan losses:
charged to expense is based upon past loan loss experience and an evaluation of probable losses and impairment existing
in the current loan portfolio. A loan is considered to be impaired when, based upon current information and events, it is
probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due in accordance with the original contractual terms of
the loan. An insignificant delay or insignificant shortfall in amounts of payments does not necessarily result in the loan
being identified as impaired. For this purpose, delays of less than 90 days are considered to be insignificant. Large groups
of smaller balance homogeneous loans, including residential real estate and consumer loans, are collectively evaluated
for impairment, except for loans restructured pursuant to a troubled debt restructuring.

Loans secured by residential real estate, including home equity and home equity lines of credit, are classxﬁed as
nonaccrual at 90 days past due, and are recorded at the lower of cost or market value, less liquidation costs, unless the -
loans are well-secured and in the process of collection. Loans other than consumer loans are charged-off based on the
facts and circumstances of the individual loan. Consumer loans are generally charged-off in the month they become 180 :
days past due. : ‘

Mortgage Banking Activities

The Company originates mortgage loans held for investment and for sale. At origination, the mortgage loan‘is
identified as either held for sale or for investment. Mortgage loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or forward
committed contracts (which approximates market), determined on a net aggregate basis. _

At September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, loans serviced for others totaled approximately $50,862, $51,547 and
$51,826, respectively. Servicing loans for others consists of collecting mortgage payments, maintaining escrow

_accounts, disbursing payments to investors, and processing foreclosures. Loan servicing income is recorded when eamned
and includes servicing fees from investors and certain charges collected from borrowers, such as late payment fees. The
Company has fiduciary responsibility for related escrow and custodial funds aggregating approximately $318 and $603 at
September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company assesses the retained interest in the servicing asset or liability associated with the sold loans based
on the relative fair values. The servicing asset or liability is amortized in proportion to and over the period during which
estimated net servicing income or net servicing loss, as appropriate, will be received. Assessment of the fair value of the
retained interest is performed on a continual basis. At September 30, 2004 and 2003, mortgage servicing rights totaling
$240 and $198, respectively, were mcluded in other assets. , :

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control
is surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains ‘the right (free of
conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the
Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before
their maturity.

* Income Recognition on Loans

Interest on loans is credited to income when earned. Accrual of loan interest is discontinued and a reserve
established through a charge to interest income on existing accruals if management believes after considering, among
other things, economic and business conditions and collection efforts, that the borrowers financial condition is such that
collection of interest is doubtful. Payments received on non-accrual loans shall be applied to the oldest unpaid balance.

60



FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Real Estate Owned

Real estate owned consists of properties acquired by foreclosure or deed in-lieu of foreclosure. These assets are
initially recorded at the lower of carrying value of the loan or estimated fair value less selling costs at the time of
foreclosure and at the lower of the new cost basis or net realizable value thereafter. The amounts recoverable from real

" estate owned could differ materially from the amounts used in arriving at the net carrying value of the assets at the time
of foreclosure because of future market factors beyond the control of the Company. Costs relating to the development
and improvement of real estate owned propemes are capitalized and those relating to holding the propeny are charged to
expense.

Ofﬁce'Properties and Equipment

Office properties and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over
the expected useful lives of the assets which range from two to 40 years. The costs of maintenance and repairs are
expensed as they are incurred, and renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance

The Bank funded the purchase of insurance policies on the lives of certain officers and employees of the Bank.
The Company has recognized any increase in cash surrender value of life insurance, net of insurance costs in the
consolidated statements of income. The cash surrender value of the insurance policies is recorded as an'asset in the
statements of financial condition.

Interest Rate Risk

At September 30, 2004 and 2003, the Company’s assets consisted primarily of assets that earned interest at either
adjustable or fixed interest rates and the average life of which is longer term. These assets were funded primarily with
shorter term liabilities that have interest rates which vary over time with market rates and, in some cases, certain call
features that are affected by changes in market rates of interest. The shorter duration of the interest-sensitive liabilities
indicates that the Company is exposed to interest rate risk because, in a rising rate environment, liabilities will be
repricing fasteriat higher interest rates, thereby reducing the market value of long-term assets and net intérest income.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding. Diluted earnings per common share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of
common stock outstanding increased by the number of common shares that are assumed to have been purchased with the
proceeds from the exercise of stock options. Weighted average shares used in the computation of earnings per share were
as follows:

Year Ended September 30,

2004 2003 2002
Average common shares outstanding 1,786,047 1,901,682 1,915,818
Increase in shares due to options 106,986 127.310 118.100
Adjusted shares outstanding - diluted 1,893,033 2,028,992 2033918

For the years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003, there were no outstanding options that were antidilutive. For
the year ended September 30, 2002, 9,000 shares related to outstanding options were excluded from the calculation of
diluted EPS because the effect was antidilutive.
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Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences by applying enacted
statutory tax rates applicable to future years to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax
bases of existing assets and liabilities. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date

Accounting for Stock Opuons

The Company accounts for stock options in accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” which allows an entity to choose between the intrinsic value method, as defined in Accounting
Principles Board (“APB™) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” or the fair value method of

accounting for stock-based compensation described in SFAS No. 123. An entity using the intrinsic value method must *

disclose pro forma net income and earnings per share as if stock-based compensation was accounted for using the fair
value method. The Company continues to account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method and,
accordingly, has not recognized compensation expense under this method.

Had the Company determined compensation expense based on the fair value at the grant date for its stock options
under SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net income a.nd -income per share would have been reduced to the pro forma
amounts indicated below:

Year Ended September 30,

v . 2004 2003 2002
Net income: , o
“As reported ‘ $2,203 $2,739. ° $2,726
Pro forma 2,183 2,665 - 2,649
Net income per common and common equivalent share o
Eamings per common share - diluted - _ '

- Asreported = - $1.14 $1.35 $ 134

- Pro forma . 113 1.31 1.30
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the ' : :

period " NAT $ 483 = $9.67

“The binomial option-pricing model was used to determine the fair value of optlons at the grant date. Significant
assumptions used to calculate the above fair value of the awards are as follows

September 30,

, 2004 - 2003 2002
Risk-free interest rate of return N/A 3.03% 2.98%
Expected option life (months) N/A .. 100 100
Expected volatility , N/A - - 27% 73%.

Expected dividends . ~ NA . 18% . 2.8%

Other Comprehensive Income

- The Company presents as a component of comprehensive income the amounts from transactions and other events
which currently are excluded from the statement of income and are recorded directly to stockholders’ equity.
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Accounting for Derivative Instruments

In April 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS Statement No. 149, “Amendment
of Statement No.133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” which establishes accounting and reporting
standards for derivative instruments, including derivatives imbedded in other contracts and hedging activities. SFAS No.
133 "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS Nos. 137 and 138 and
interpreted by the FASB and the Derivative Implementation Group through Statement 133 Implementation Issues,
requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial condition and
measure those instruments at fair value. In accordance with SFAS No. 149 and SFAS No. 133, the accounting for
changes in the fair value of a derivative depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation.
Currently, the Company does not have any embedded derivatives and does not employ hedging activities.

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and amounts due from depository
institutions and interest-bearing deposits with depository institutions.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2002, the FASB issued FIN No. 45, “Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” This Interpretation elaborates on the disclosures

" to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that
it has issued. Itialso clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the

* fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. This Interpretation also incorporates, without change, the
guidance in FIN No. 34, “Disclosure of Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” which is being superseded. The
initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of this Interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002, irrespective of the guarantor's fiscal year-end. The disclosure

requirements in this Interpretation are effective for financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after -

December 15, 2002. The Company currently has no guarantees that would be required to be recognized; measured or

disclosed under this Interpretation.
In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” In December 2003

the FASB issued a revision of FIN 46 (FIN 46(R)). The Interpretation clarifies the application of Accounting Research
Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” to certain entities in'which equity investors do not have the
characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its
activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. The Company has participated in the issue

of trust preferred securities through trusts established for such purpose. These trusts are subject to the requirements of- '
FIN No. 46 and FIN No. 46(R). Effective December 31, 2003, the Company adopted FIN No. 46(R). requiring the -

Company to deconsolidate the trust preferred security trusts. The Company previously classified its trust preferred
securities after,total liabilities and before stockholders’ equity on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition,
Under the provisions of FIN No. 46(R), these securities were reclassified as borrowed funds effective December 31,
2003. Additionally, the related dividends were reclassified from non-interest expense and included in interest expense in

the consolidated statements of income. Reclassifications of prior period amounts were made to conform to this -

presentation. ']I'he Company is not a party to any other variable interest entities covered by FIN No. 46(R). The adoption
of FIN No. 46(R) did not have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.
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In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with’
Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity.” This Statement establishes standards for how -an issuer classifies and
measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify
a financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). The FASB is addressing
certain implémentation issues associated with the application of SFAS No. 150. In October 2003, the FASB decided to
defer certain provisions of SFAS No. 150 related to mandatorily redeemable financial instruments representing non-
controlling interests in subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements. The Company will monitor the actions
of the FASB and assess the impact, if any, that these actions may have on the Company's financial statements. Currently,
the Company has no financial instruments entered into or modified that require application of this Statement. The
adoption of this Statement did not have a material impact on the Company's financial condition or results of operations.

In March 2004, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") reached a consensus regarding EITF 03-1, "The
Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments.” The consensus provides
guidance for evaluating whether an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired and was effective for other-than-
temporary impairment evaluations made in reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2004. However, the guidance
contained in paragraphs 10-20 of this Issue has been delayed by FASB Staff Position (“FSP") EITF Issue 03-1-1,
“Effective Date of Paragraphs 10-20 of EITF Issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its
Application to Certain Investments,” posted September 30, 2004. The delay of the effective date for paragraphs 10-20
will be superseded concurrent with the final issuance of proposed FSP EITF Issue 03-1a, “Implication Guidance for the
Application of Paragraph 16 of EITF Issue No: 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its
Application to Certain Investments.” The proposed FSP would provide implementation guidance with respect to debt
securities that are impaired solely due to interest rates and/or sector spreads and analyzed for other-than-temporary
impairment. The disclosures continue to be effective for the Company’s consolidated financial statements for fiscal years
ending after December 15, 2003, for investments accounted for under SFAS No. 115 and No. 124. For all other
investments within the scope of this Issue, the disclosures continue to be effective for fiscal years ending after June 15,
2005. The additional disclosures for cost method investments continue to be effective for fiscal years ending after June

15, 2004.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the September 30, 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statements
to conform with the September 30, 2004 presentation. Such reclassifications had no impact on the reported net income.
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3. Investment Securities

The amortized cost and approximate fair value of investment securities available for sale and investment securities
held to maturity are as follows:

September 30, 2004
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Approximate
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
Available/for Sale: '
U.S. Treasury securities and securities
Of U.S.IGovernment agencies:
1 to 5 years $14,694 $ - $(199) $14,495
-5to 10 years : - -- -- --
Municipal obligations 11,963 418 C e 12,381
Corporate bonds ‘ 13,309 770 &) 14,074
Mutual funds 14,009 - (205) 13,804
Asset-backed securities 1,189 8 - 1,197
Preferred stocks , 3,900 -- -- 3,900 -
Other equity investments - 1,755 2,009 - 3,764
Total . $60.819 ° $3205 . $(409 $63.615
Held to Maturity: o '
Municipal obligations $ 3,260 $ 50 $ - $ 3,310
Corporate bonds 2,027 33 -- 2,060
Total QZQ 583 - $ 5,370

Provided below is a summary of investment securities available for sale and held to maturity which were in an
unrealized loss position at September 30, 2004.

Loss Position Loss Position
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
_ Unrealized ' Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
U.S. Government and ' .
agency bonds $12,544 $(150) $ 1,951 $ (49) $14,495 $(199)
Corporate bonds 1,995 5 -- - 1,995 &)
Mutual fund - - - 13,804 (205 13804  _(205)
Total: $14.539 3155  $15.755 $Q54) $30,294 $(409)

At September 30, 2004, investment securities in' a gross unrealized loss position for twelve months or longer
consist of two securities having an aggregate depreciation of 1.6% from the Company's amortized cost basis.
Management believes that the estimated fair value of the securities disclosed above is primarily dependent upon the
movement in market interest rates. Although the fair value will fluctuate as the market interest rates move, the majority of
the Company's investment portfolio consists of low risk securities from government agencies. The Company has the
ability and intent to hold these securities until such time as the value recovers or the securities mature. Management does
not believe any individual unrealized loss as of September 30, 2004 represents an other-than-temporary impairment.
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Based on management’s evaluation as of September 30, 2004, the Company recognized a pre-tax other-than-
temporary impairment of $1.1 million resulting from a determination that a $5.0 million investment available for sale in
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC”) floating rate perpetual preferred stock was impaired due to its
decline in value and a determination that it is not expected to recover in the near future. The FHLMC preferred stock is
rated AA- and is fully pcrforrmng

September 30, 2003
Gross Gross v
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Approximate
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
Available for Sale: : :
U.S. Treasury securities and securities
Of U.S. Government agencies: _
1to5years $13,020 $ 35 $ (51 $13,004
510 10 years . 4,880 139 @31) .4,988
Municipal obligations : 14,112 503 -- -~ 14,615
Corporate bonds 17,567 1,288 (332) 18,523
Mutual funds _ 14,009 - ¢ - 13,952
Asset-backed securities ' 1,911 11 S - 1,922
Preferred stocks - 5474 34 - (524 4984
Other equity investments . 3126 2586 0 __-- . _5112
Total , o $74099 - $4.596 $(995) $.77,700
‘Held to Maturity: ’
Municipal obligations $ 3,261 $ 19 $ - $ 3,280
Corporate bonds 3,054 116 - 3,170
Total $ 6315 $ 135 2= $ 6,450

For the years ended Septembelj 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, proceeds from sales of investment securities available for
'sale amounted to $9,986, $7,309 and $7,066, respectively. For such periods, gross realized gains on sales amounted to .

. $1,716, $660 and $351, respectively, while gross realized losses amounted to $61, $0 and $20, respectively. The tax

provision applicable to these net realized gains and losses amounted to $583 $224 and $112, respectively. Gains are
realized and recorded on specxﬁc identification method.

~ Investment securities with an aggregate carrying value of $4,906 and $4,930 were pledged as collateral at
September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively for financings (see Note 8). . ‘
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4, Mortgage-Related Securities
Mortgage-related securities available for sale and mortgage-related securities held to maturity are summanzed
as follows: :
September 30, 2004
Gross' Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized' Approximate
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
Available for Sale:
FHLMC pass-through certificates $5,838 $ 15 $ (42) $ 5811
FNMA pass-through certificates - 42,805 259 (203) 42,861
GNMA ipass-through certificates 1,250 20 - 1,270
Collateralized mortgage obligations : 47,895 141 (358) 47.678
Total , $97.788 3435 603 $97.620
Held to Maturity:
FHLMC pass-through cemﬁcates - $16,226 $ 85 3(101) . $16,210
FNMA| pass-through certificates 20,613 74 (106) 20,581
Collateralized mortgage obligations 524 - 3) : 521
Total $37363 . 8159 - §210) $37.312

Provided below is a summary of mortgage-related securities available for sale and held to maturity which were in
an unrealized loss position at September 30, 2004, o

Loss Position . Loss Position :
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer * Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value __ Losses Fair Value ~ _Losses

Pass-through .

certificates $30,639 $(285) $ 6,859 $(167) $37,498 - $(452)
Collateralized

mortgage

obligations _26,003 (233) 6.344 (128) 32347 (361)
Total M i@ $13.203 3295 $69.845. m

At Septernber 30, 2004, mortgage-related securities in a gross unrealized loss position for twelve months or longer
consist of seven securities having an aggregate depreciation of 2.2% from the Company's amortized cost basis.
Management does not believe any individual unrealized loss as of September 30, 2004 represents an other-than-
temporary impairment. The unrealized losses reported for mortgage-related securities relate primarily to securities issued
by the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and private institutions.
The majority of the unrealized losses associated with mortgage-related securities are pnmarxly attributable to changes in
interest rates and not from the deterioration of the creditworthiness of the issuer.
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September 30, 2003

Gross . Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Approxlmate
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
Available for Sale: ’ o
FHLMC pass-through certificates ‘ $ 682 $ 126 $ (38) $ 6,950
FNMA pass-through certificates 45,740 412 (122) 46,030
GNMA pass-through certificates 13,043 596 - 13,639
Collateralized mortgage obligations 57.961 433 (357 58037
Total $123606  §L367  SGS1D 8124656
Held to Maturity: :
FHLMC pass-through certificates $§ 478 $ 22 $ - $ 500
FNMA pass-through certificates 2,123 40 3) 2,160
Collateralized mortgage obligations : 886 14 - : 900

The collateralized mortgage obligations contain both fixed and adjustable-rate classes of securities which are
repaid in accordance with a predetermined priority. The underlying collateral of the securities consisted of loans which
are primarily guaranteed by FHLMC, FNMA and GNMA.

For the years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003, proceeds from sales of mortgage-related securities available for
sale amounted to $7,174 and $7,485, respectively. Gross realized gains amounted to $299 and $39 for the years ended
September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Gross realized losses amounted to $4 for the year ended September 30, 2004.
The tax provision (benefit) applicable to these net realized gains and losses amounted to $102 and $(38) for the years
ended September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Gains are realized and recorded on specific identification method.
During the year ended September 30, 2002, there were no sales of mortgage-related secunues

~ Mortgage-related securities with aggregate carrying values of $17,064 and $13,059 were pledgcd as collateral at
September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively, for municipal deposits and financings (see Note 8).

s. Accrued Interest Receivable

“The following is a summary of accrued interest receivable by category: -

September 30,

2004 2003
Loans ' - $1,401  $1,438
Mortgage-related securities . 524 513
Investment securities 652 __ 703

Towl - . 82571 $2654
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6. Loans Receivable
Loans receivable consist of the following:
‘ ¥ September 30,
2004 2003
Single-family $163,907 $166,042
Construction and land 38,078 28,975
Multi-family and commercial 64,509 - = 59,022
Home equity and lines of credit 43,621 33,459
Consumer loans 1,471 1,438
Commercial loans 10624  _10.161
Total loans 322,210 299,097
Loans in process (15,807)  (10,655)
Allowance for loan losses i (2,039) (1,986)
Deferred loan fees = ' e (35
Loans receivable net : $304.248  $286421

The Compa.ny originates loans primarily in its local market area of Delaware and Chester Counties, Pennsylvanié
to borrowers that share similar attributes. This geographic concentration of credit exposes the Company toa hlgher
degree of risk associated with this economic region.

The Company participated in the origination and sale of ﬁxed-rate single-family residential loans in the secondary

market. The Company recognized gains on sale of conforming agency loans held for sale of $54, $410 and $84 for fiscal
years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Company offers loans to its directors and senior officers on terms permltted by Regulauon O. There were
approximately $2,985, $2,068 and $1,578 of loans outstanding to senior officers and directors as of September 30, 2004,
2003 and 2002, irespectively. The amount of repayments during the years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
totaled $458, $1,038 and $948, respectively. There were $1,375,.$1,527and $725 of new loans granted during fiscal
years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Company had undisbursed portions under consumer and commercial lines of credxt as of September 30, 2004

of $24,863 and $12,690, respectively.
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The Company originates both adjustable and fixed interest rate loans and purchases mortgage-related securities in
the secondary market. The originated adjustable-rate loans have annual and lifetime interest rate adjustment limitations
and are generally indexed to U.S. Treasury securities plus a fixed margin. Future market factors may affect the
correlation of the interest rate adjustment with rates the Company pays on the short-term deposits that have been the
primary funding source for these loans. The adjustable-rate mortgage-related securities adjust to various national indices
plus a fixed margin. At September 30, 2004, the composmon of these loans and mortgage-related securities was as
follows: '

Fixed-Rate
Term to Maturity Book Value
1 month to 1 year $ 2,598
1 year to 3 years ' 3,665
3 years to 5 years - 15,800
5 years to 10 years : 88,601
Over 10 years . ‘ . - 172,545
Total | | | | $283.209
, Adjustable-Rate = - . B
Term to Rate Adjustment Book Value
1 month to 1 year : $ 69,396
1 year to 3 years o 29,076
3 years to 5 years ‘ , 59,705
Total. . 3158177
The following is an analysis of the allowance for loan losses: ,
Year Ended
- September 30, .
‘ 2004 2003 2002
Beginning balance $1,986 - $2,358 $2,181 -
Provisions charged to income - 300 715 540
Charge-offs o (321)  (1,102)- (373)
Recoveries 74 15 . 10
Total ‘ $2.030 31986 $2358

At September 30, 2004 and 2003, non-performing loans (which include loans in excess of 90 days delinquent)
amounted to approximately $2,033 and $1,556, respectively. At September 30, 2004, non-perfomnng loans consistéd of
loans that were collectively evaluated for impairment.

As of September 30, 2004 and 2003, the Company had 1mpalred loans with a total recorded investment of $0 and
$320, respectively, and an average recorded investment of $85,000 and $2.3 million, respectively. There was not any
cash basis interest income recognized on these impaired loans during the years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003.
Interest income of approximately $8, $168 and $150, respectively, was not recogmzed as interest income due to the non-
accrual status of loans during 2004, 2003 and 2002. :
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7. Office Properties and Equipment ‘
Office properties and equipment are summarized by major classification as follows:
September 30,
2004 2003
Land and buildings $7,038  $6,082
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 4921 - _4.555
Total 11,959 10,637
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (7.684) _(7.210)
Net ' $4275 $3.427

The future minimum réntal payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable
lease terms in excess of one year as of September 30, 2004 are as follows:

September 30,

2005 : $ 289
2006 ' 194
2007 199
2008 . 214
2009 : ' 223
Thereafter 1,205
Total minimum future rental payments $2.324

Leasehold expense was approximately $356, $375 and $335 for the years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and

2002, respectively.
Depreciation expense amounted to $473, $426 and $457 for the years ended September 30,2004, 2003 and 2002,

respectively.
8. Deposits

Deposits consist of the following major classifications:

September 30,
2004 2003
Amount Percent - Amount Percent
Non-interest-bearing $ 21,046 6.1% $20,917 5.8%
NOwW 55,864 16.2 60,221 16.6
Passbook 51,371 149 47,089 130
Money Market 51,682 15.0 55,889 154
Certificates of Deposit 164917 = 47.8 178,489 _49.2
Total $344.880 100.0%  $362,605 100.0%
- The weighted average interest rates paid on deposits were 1.66% and 1.77% at September 30, 2004 and 2003,

respectively.

Included in deposits as of September 30, 2004 and 2003 are deposits greater than $100 totaling approximately
$96,891 and $103,734, respectively. Deposits in excess of $100 are not federally insured.

At September 30, 2004 and 2003, the Company had pledged certain mortgage-related securities aggregating

approximately $17,064 and $12,867, respectively, as collateral for municipal deposits.
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A summary of scheduled maturities of certificates is as follows:

September 30,
' 2004 2003
Within one year - . ' $ 97,389 '$106,631
One to two years 32,530 ‘ 42,069
Two to three years 10,455 - 7,962
Thereafter 24,543 21,827 .
Total | 64917 5178489
A summary of interest expense on deposits is as follows: ,
Year Ended September 30,
2004 2003 2002
NOW ‘ v $ 287  $ 316 $ 401
Passbook 473 530 750
Money Market ‘ - 606 736 1,036
Certificates of Deposit ‘ o _4.544 5771 _7.412
Total $5910  $7353 $9.599
9. Borrowings
A summary of borrowings is as follows:
September 30,
: 2004 2003
FHLB advances $166,387 $126,403
Repurchase agreements 1,110 2,885
FHLB ovemight borrowings ' ' 3,500 6,800
Other ‘ : 152 184
Total borrowings ‘ ‘ $171,149 LLQZ_Q
Advances from the FHLB bea: fixed interest rates with remaining penods until maturity, summarized as follows:
September 30,
v , 2004 2003
Over one year through five years ) : : $ 80,695 $ 25,704
Over five years through ten years : o 85,499 - 100,500
Over 10 years : : ' ‘ 193 199

ot Although the remaining maturities of these borrowings are between one and ten years, the FHLB has the right to
convert these advances to adjustable-rate advances. The amount of FHLB advances with the convertible feature at
September 30, 2004, which are subject to conversion in each of fiscal 2005 and 2006, is $] 51.0 million and $15.0
million, respectively.

Included in the table above at September 30, 2004 and 2003 are FHLB advances whereby the FHLB has the
option at predetermined times to convert the fixed interest rate to an adjustable rate tied to the London Interbank Offered
Rate (LIBOR). The Company then has the option to prepay these advances if the FHLB converts the interest rate. These
advances are included in the periods in which they mature. The average balance of FHLB adva.nces was $166.4 million
with an average cost of 4.11% for the year ended September 30, 2004.

Advances from the FHLB are collateralized by all FHLB stock owned by the Bank in addmon to a blanket pledge
of eligible assets in an amount required to be maintained so that the estimated fair value of such eligible assets exceeds,
at all times, 110% of the outstanding advances.
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The Company enters into sales of securities under agreements to repurchase. These agreements are recorded as
financing transactions, and the obligation to repurchase is reflected as a liability in the consolidated statements of
financial condition. The securities underlying the agreements are delivered to the dealer with whom each transaction is
executed. The dealers, who may sell, loan or otherwise dispose of such securities to other parties in the normal course of
their operations, agree to resell to the Company substantially the same securities at the maturities of the agreements. The
Company retains'the right of substitution of collateral throughout the terms of the agreement.

At September 30, 2004, outstanding FHLB repurchase agreements were secured by U.S. Government securities.
The average balance of FHLB repurchase agreements during the year ended September 30, 2004 was $2.3 with an
average cost of 27 basis points. The maximum amount outstanding at any month end during the year ended September
30, 2004 was $2.9 million.

At September 20, 2003, outstanding FHLB repurchase agreements were secured by US Government securities. -

The average balance of FHLB repurchase agreements during the year ended September 30, 2003 was $8 with an average

cost of 2§ basis points. The maximum amount outstanding at any month end during the year ended September 30, 2003 .

was $2.9 million.

10. Income Taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return. The Company uses the specific
charge-off method for computing reserves for bad debts. The bad debt deduction allowable under this method is available
to large banks with assets of greater than $500 million. Generally, this method allows the Company to deduct an annual
addition to the reserve for bad debts equal to its net charge-offs.

Retained learnings at September 30, 2004 and 2003 included approx1mately $2.5 miilion representing bad debt
deductions for which no income tax has been provided.

Income tax expense is comprised of the following: ‘
- Year Ended September 30,

2004 2003 - 2002

Federal: '
Current , _ $ 876 $407 - $562
Deferred (550) 225 (13s5)
State - - -
Total $326 $632  $427

The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax accounts, calculated

at 34%, is as follows:

Segtember 30,
2004 2003

Deferred tax assets:

Accelerated depreciation ) $ 402 $ 374
Allowance for loan losses 695 689
Realized loss on available for sale securities ) - 374 -
Accrued expenses 507 297
Other - ‘ - =
Total deferred tax assets 1,978 L1360
Deferred tax liabilities: ‘ '
Deferred loan fees _ ‘ (303) . (310)
Unrealized gain on available for sale securmes 893)  (1,581)
Other . (125) . (50)
Total deferred tax liabilities . (1321 (194D
Net deferred income taxes $ 657 § (58D
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The Company’s effective tax rate is less .than the statutory federal income tax rate for the foilowing reasons:
Year ended September 30,

2004 2003 - 2002

Percentage Percentage - Percentage
of Pretax of Pretax _-of Pretax
: ' Amount __ Income Amount Income Amount Income
Tax at statutory rate $860 34.0% $1,146 34.0% @ $1,072 34.0% -
Decrease in taxes resulting from: ' ' . ‘
Tax exempt interest, net (246) 9.7 (274) 82) (290) 9.2)
Increase in cash surrender value (206) (8.2) (223) (6.6) (231) a4
Dividend received deduction 49) (1.9) 45) (1.3) (59) (19
"~ Other ‘ , . 33 (1.3) __ 28 _0.8 (65) - {20

Total ' $326 129% $ 632 187%  $421  13.5%

11. Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies.
Failure to meet minimum regulatory capital requirements can result in certain mandatory, and possibly additional
discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s financial
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must
meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance
sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also
subject to qualitative judgments by regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios (set forth below) of tangible and core capital (as defined in the regulations) to adjusted assets (as
defined), and of Tier I and total capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of September -
30, 2004, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of September 30, 2004, the most recent notification from the OTS categorized the Bank as well capitalized
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be considered as well capitalized, the Bank must
maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier-1 risk-based, and Tier-1 core-capital ratios as set forth in the table below. There
are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the institution’s category.

Required for Well Capitalized
Capital Adequacy Under Prompt
Actual . Purpose Corrective Action

‘ Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage -
At September 30, 2004: ‘ ‘ ’ =
Core Capital (to Adjusted Tangible Assets)  $46,535  8.21% $22,667 40%  $28334 . 50%

Tier I Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) 46,535 14.03 NA  NA 19,905 - 6.0
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) 48,300 14.56 26,540 8.0 33,175 - 100
Tangible Capital (to Tangible Assets) 46,535  8.21 - 8,500 15 - NA N/A

At September 30, 2003: - ' : ; o _ :
Core Capital (to Adjusted Tangible Assets) ~ $43,852 8.0% $21,972 40% $27465 = 5.0%
Tier I Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) 43,852 14.4 N/A N/A 18,268 . - 6.0
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) . 45,564 15.0 24,357 8.0 30,446 10.0
Tangible Capital (to Tangible Assets) 43,852 8.0 - 8,240 15 N/A. N/A
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The Bank’s capital at September 30, 2004 and 2003 for ﬁnancxal statement purposes differs from tangible, core
(leverage), and Tier-1 risk-based capital amounts by $16,767 and $11,464, respectively, representing the inclusion for
regulatory capltal purposes of unrealized gain on securities available for sale and a portion of capital securities (see Note
17) that qualifies as regulatory capital as well as-adjustments to the Bank’s capital that do not affect the parent company.

At September 30, 2004 and 2003, total risk-based capital, for regulatory requirements, was increased by $l 765
and $1,712, respectively, of general loan loss reserves, for a total of $48,300 and $45,564, respectively.. -

At the date of the Bank’s conversion from the mutual to stock form in January 1995 (the “Conversion”), the Bank °
established a liquidation account in an amount equal to its retained income as of August 31, 1994, The liquidation .

account is maintdined for the benefit of eligible account holders and supplemental eligible account holders who continue
to maintain their accounts at the Bank after the Conversion. The liquidation account is reduced annually to the extent that
eligible account holders and supplemental eligible account holders (as such terms are defined in the Bank’s plan of
. conversion) have reduced their qualifying deposits as of each anniversary date. Subsequent increases in such balances

will not restore an eligible account holder’s or supplemental eligible account holder’s interest in the liquidation account.

Inthe event of a completc liquidation of the Bank, each eligible account holder and supplemental eligible account holder
will be entitled to receive a distribution from the liquidation account in an amount proportionate to the current adjusted
qualifying balances for accounts then held.

The prmmpal source of cash flow for the Company is dividends from the Bank. Various federal banking
regulations and capital guidelines limit the amount of dividends that may be paid to the Company by the Bank. Future
payment of dividends by the Bank is dependent on individual regulatory capital requirements, levels of profitability, and
safety and soundness concerns. In addition, loans or advances made by the Bank to the Company are generally limited to
10 percent of the Bank’s capital stock and surplus on a secured basis. Accordingly, funds available for loans or advances

by the Bank to the Company amounted to $4,694.

12, Employee Benefits

401(k) Profit Sharing Plan

The Bank’s 401(k) profit sharing plan covers substantially all full-time employees of the Company and prov1des
for pre-tax contributions by the employees with matching contributions at the discretion of the Board of Directors
determined at the beginning of the calendar year. All amounts are fully vested. For calendar years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
the Company matched twenty-five cents for every dollar contributed up to 5% of a participant’s salary. The profit sharing
expense for the plan was $37, $38 and $36 for the years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

. In connection with the Conversion, the Company established an employee stock ownersth plan ("ESOP"”) for the
* benefit of eligible employees. During fiscal 2004, the ESOP purchased an additional 96,208 shares of common stock. - At

September 30, 2004 263,493 shares were committed to be released, of which 24,669 shares have not yet been allocated -
to participant accounts. The Company accounts for its ESOP in accordance with AICPA Statement of Position 93-6,

“Employers Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership Plans,” which requires the Company to recognize compensation
expense equal to the fair value of the ESOP shares during the periods in which they become committed to be released. To
the extent that the fair value of the ESOP shares released differs from the cost of such shares, this difference is charged or
credited to equity as additional paid-in capital. Management expects the recorded amount of expense in any given period
to fluctuate from period to period as continuing adjustments are made to reflect changes in the fair value of the ESOP
shares. The Company’s ESOP, which is internally leveraged, does not report the loans receivable extended to the ESOP
as assets and does not report the ESOP debt due the Company. The Company recorded compensation and employee

benefit expense related to the ESOP of $850, $516 and $395 for the years ended Septcmber 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002,

respectively.
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Recognition and Retention Plan

Under the 1995 Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust (the “RRP"), there are 81,600 shares authorized under
the RRP. At September 30, 2002, the Company awarded 79,350 shares to the Company’s non-employee directors and
executive officers subject to vesting and other provisions of the RRP. At September 30, 2004, all the shares awarded had
been allocated to plan participants. Since all the shares awarded have been allocated, no compensation expense was
recognized relating to the RRP for fiscal years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Stock Option Plans

Under the 1995 Stock Option Plan (the “Option Plan™), common stock totaling 272,000 shares has been reserved
for issuance pursuant to the exercise of options. During fiscal year 1999, stockholders approved the adoption of the 1998
Stock Option Plan (1998 Option Plan”) (collectively with the Option Plan, the “‘Plans”) which reserves an additioral
111,200 shares of common stock for issuance. Options covering an aggregate of 357,106 shares have been granted to the

- Company’s executive officers, nonemployee directors and other key employees, subject to vesting and other provisions

of the Plans. At September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the number of shares exercisable was 181,023, 210,209 and '
261,913, respectively, and the weighted average exercise price of those options was $9.84, $9.19 and $8.91, respectively.

The following table summarizes transactions regarding the stock option plans:

Weighted

Number of .. Average
Option Exercise Exercise Price
_ Shares - PriceRange ' per share
Outstanding at October 1, 2001 324,533 $ 7.50-14.25 $9.11°
Granted ' - 13,300 14.84 - 16.15 . 15,73
Exercised ' ’ (30.856) 7.50-12.38 7.97"
Outstanding at September 30, 2002 306,977 - $7.50-16.15 $ 9.52
Granted ‘ 3,000 16.15-16.15 16.15
Exercised (62.678) 7.50—-14.25 - 8.79
Outstanding at September 30, 2003 247299 - § 7.50-16.15 $ 9.78
Granted -- S - -
Exercised (54.436) - $:7.50-14.25 8.39

Outstanding at September 30, 2004 192,863 $750-1615 - $1047

A summary of the exercise price range at September 30, 2004 is as follows:

Weighted Average ~ Weighted Average

Number of Remaining Contractual ~ Exercise Price per
Option Shares Exercise Price Range Life ) Share ‘
101,743 ’ $7.50-10.13 131 $ 7.66
91,120 12.13-16.15 5.50 . ' © 1296

192,863 §250-1615 2 $10.17
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Supplemental Retirement Benefits

During fiscal 2004, the Bank implemented a defined contribution supplemental executive retirement plan (the
“SERP”) covering certain senior executive officers of the Bank. For the initial year of the SERP, the crediting rate on the
amounts contributed was established at 5.0% and will remain in effect until such time that the Company’s Compensation
Committee administering the SERP chooses to change it. Upon retirement of a participant, he or she will receive his or
her account balance paid out in equal annual payments for a period not to exceed 15 years provided that a participant did
not make a prior election to receive his or her distribution in a lJump sum. The SERP also provides for benefits in the
event of the death of the participant or the termination of the employment of the participant subsequent to achangei in
control of the Company.

In addition, the Bank previously maintained split-dollar insurance.arrangemcms with certain senior executive

officers. Such arrangements were terminated in December 2003. For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004 and
2003, the pension expense relating to supplemental retirement benefits was approximately $837 and $444, respectively.

For fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, the pension expense of $431 was related to the write-down in the cash -

surrender value of certain life insurance pohcxes established for the purpose of providing such supplemental retirement
benefits.

The Bank also provides supplemental retirement benefits to certain directors and Advxsory Board members. The

expense relating!to this plan was approximately $88 $65 and $18 for the years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

13. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company concurrently adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 133, and SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities -- an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" on October 1,
2000. The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 149 effective July 1, 2003. The Company's derivative
instruments outstanding during fiscal year end September 30, 2004 include commitments to fund loans held-for-sale and

- forward loan sale agreements.
The Company adopted new accounting requirements relating to SFAS No. 149 which requires that mortgage loan
commitments related to loans originated for sale be accounted for as derivative instruments. In accordance with SFAS

No. 133 and SFAS No. 149, derivative instruments are recognized in the statement of financial condition at fair value and - .

changes in the fair value thereof are recognized in the statement of operations. The Company originates single-family
residential loans for sale pursuant to programs with FHLMC. Under the structure of the programs, at the time the
Company initially issues a loan commitment in connection with such programs, it does not lock in a specific interest rate.
At the time the linterest rate is locked in by the borrower, the Company concurrently enters into-a forward loan sale
agreement withrespect to the sale of such loan at a set price in an effort to manage the interest rate risk inherent in the

locked loan commitment. The forward loan sale agreement also meets the definition of a derivative instrument under - -
SFAS No. 133. Any change in the fair value of the loan commitment after the borrower locks in the interest rate is

substantially offset by the corresponding change in the fair value of the forward loan sale agreement related to such loan.

The period from the time the borrower locks in the interest rate to the time the Company funds the loan and sells it to_

FHILMC is generally 60 days. The fair value of each instrument will rise or fall in response to changes in market interest
rates subsequent to the dates the interest rate locks and forward loan sale agreements are entered into. In the event that
interest rates rise after the Company enters into an interest rate lock, the fair value of the loan commitment will decline.
However, the fair value of the forward loan sale agreement related to such loan commitment should increase by
substantially the same amount, effectively eliminating the Company's interest rate and price risk.

At September 30, 2004, the Company had $1.3 million of loan commitments outstanding related to loans bemg
originated for sale which were subject to interest rate locks. At September 30, 2004, the Company had $1.3 million of
forward loan sale agreements. The Company concluded that the fair value of these derivative instruments involving loan
commitments were not material to the consolidated statements of the financial condition and operations of the Company
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2004.
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14. Commitments and Contingencies'

The Company has outstanding loan commitments, excluding undisbursed portion of loans in process and equity
lines of credit, of approximately $2,239 and $5,922 as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively, all of which are
expected to be funded within four months. Of these commitments outstanding, the breakdown between ﬁxed and
adjustable-rate loans is as follows:

September 30,.

v 2004 2003
Fixed-rate (ranging from 4.74% to 6.25%) $1,924 $5,578
Adjustable-rate : o : 315 344
Total $2239  §5.922

Depending on cash flow, interest rate, risk management and other considerations, longer term fixed-rate reéidentiai :
loans are sold in the secondary market. There was approximately $1,256 and $1,307 in outstanding commitments to sell

_loans at September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company settled a lawsuit related to certain loan sales. The lawsuit was
instituted by the purchaser of five residential mortgage loans from the Bank that alleged that it suffered losses in
connection with these loans and that the Bank was required to purchase the 1oans or compensate the purchaser for its
alleged losses. The Bank settled all the purchaser’s claims for $570. :

There are various claims and pending actions against the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of the conduct
of its business. In the opinion of the Company’s management and based upon advice of legal counsel, the resolution of
these matters will not have a material adverse impact on the consolidated financial position or the results of operations of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

15. Related Party Transactions

The Company retains the services of a law firm in which one of the Company’s directors is a member. In addition
to providing general legal counsel to the Company, the firm also prepares mortgage documents and attends loan closings
* for which it is paid directly by the borrower.

The Company utilizes two of the Company’s directors as consultants on various real estate and general business
matters. In addition, one of the Company’s board members has-an interést in an insurance agency, First Keystone
- Insurance Services, LLC, in which one of the Bank's subsidiaries has a 51% ownership interest and, therefore, First
Keystone Insurance is consolidated with the Company’s financial statements,
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16. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value amounts have been determined by the Company using available market information and
appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required to interpret market data to develop the
estimates of fair'value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the

Company couldirealize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation

methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

September 30,
2004 2003
Carrying/ Estimated Carrying/  Estimated
Notional Fair Notional Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Assets: «
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17975 $ 17,975 $ 21,190 $ 21,190
Investment securities . 68,902 68,985 84,015 84,150
Loans 304,248 '299,287 286,421 . 287,996
Loans held for sale 172 - 172 4,498 4,498
Mortgage-related securities 134,983 134,932 128,143 129,646
FHLB stock .. .9,827 - 9,827 . 8,294 8,294
Liabilities: . : : S . o
Passbook deposits 51,371 51,371 47,089 47,089
NOW and money market deposits 107,546 107,546 116,110 116,110
Certificates of deposit , 164,917 163,801 178,489 179,699
Borrowings 171,149 171,416 136,272 137,709
Off balance sheet commitments ' 51,921 51,921 43,024 43,024

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is their carrying value due to their short-term nature. The fair value of
investments and mortgage-related securities is based on quoted market prices, dealer quotes, and prices obtained from
independent pricing services. The fair value of loans is estimated, based on present values using approximate current
entry value interest rates, applicable to each category of such financial instruments. The fair value of FHLB stock
approximates its carrying amount.

The fair value of NOW deposits, money market deposits and passbook deposits is the amount reported in the
financial statements. The fair value of certificates of deposit and FHLB advances is based on a present value esnmate,
using rates currently offered for deposits and borrowings of similar remaining maturity.

Fair values for off-balance sheet commitments are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties credit standings.

No adjustment was made to the entry-value interest rates for changes in credit performing commercial loans,
construction loans, and land loans for which there are no known credit concerns. Management believes that the risk
factor embedded in the entry-value interest rates, along with the general reserves applicable to the performing

commercial, construction,.and land loan portfolios for which there are no known credit concerns, result in a fair valuation -

of such loans on an entry-value basis. The fair value of non-performing loans, with a recorded book value of
approximately|$2,033 and $1,556 (which are collateralized by real estate properties with property values in excess of
carrying amounts) as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively, was not estimated because: it is not practicable to
reasonably assess the credit adjustment that would be applied in the marketplace for such loans. The fair value estimates
presented herein are based on pertinent information available to management as of September 30, 2004 and 2003.

Although management is not aware of any factors that would significantly affect the estimated fair value amounts, such -

amounts have not been comprehensively revalued for purposes of these financial statements since September 30, 2004
and 2003 and, itherefore, current estimates of fair value may differ significantly from the amounts presented herein.
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17. Capital Securities

- The Company had previously established Issuer Trusts that issued guaranteed preferred beneficial interests in
the Company's junior subordinated debentures. Prior to FIN 46 and FIN 46 (R), the Company classified its Issuer Trusts
after total liabilities and before shareholders' equity on its consolidated statement of financial position under the caption
"Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interest in Company's Subordinated Debt" and the retained common capital securities -
of the Issuer Trusts were eliminated against the Company's investment in the Issuer Trusts. Distributions on the preferred
securities were recorded as interest expense on the consolidated statement of income. Under the provisions of FIN 46
(R), these securities were reclassified as borrowed funds. )

As aresult of the adoption of FIN 46 and FIN 46 (R), the Company deconsolidated all the Issuer Trusts. As a
result, the junior subordinated debentures issued by the Company to the Issuer Trusts, totaling $21.6 million, are reflected
in the Company's consolidated statement of financial position in the liabilities section at September 30, 2004, under the
caption "Junior Subordinated Debentures.” The Company records interest expense on the corresponding debentures in its
consolidated statements of income. The Company also recorded the common capital securities issued by the Issuer Trusts
in "Prepaid expenses and other assets” in its consolidated statement of financial position at Septernber 30, 2004.

On August 21, 1997, First Keystone Capital Trust I (the “Trust”), a trust formed under Delaware law, that is a
subsidiary of the Company, issued $16.2 million of preferred securities (the “Preferred Securities™) at an interest rate of

" 9.7%, with a scheduled maturity of August 15, 2027. The Company owns all the common stock of the Trust. The

proceeds from the issue were invested in Junior Subordinated Debentures (the “Debentures”) issued by the Company.
The Debentures are unsecured and rank subordinate and junior in right of payment to all indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations of the Company. On November 15, 2001, the Company purchased $3.5 million of the Preferred Securities.
Debentures represent the sole assets of the Trust. Interest on the Preferred Securities is cumulative: and -payable
semiannually in arrears. The Company has the option, subject to required regulatory approval, if any, to prepay the .
securities beginning August 15, 2007. The Company has, under the terms of the Debentures and the related Indenture as
well as the other operative corporate documents, agreed to irrevocably and unconditionally guarantee the Trust's
obligations under the Debentures, The Company contributed approximately $6.0 million of the net proceeds to the Bank
to support the Bank’s lending activities.

On November 28, 2001, First Keystone Capital Trust II (the “Trust IT””), a trust formed under Delaware law, thatis -
a subsidiary of the Company, issued $8.0 million of securities (“Preferred Securities II”") in a pooled securities offering at
a floating rate of 375 basis over the six month LIBOR with a maturity date of December 8, 2031. The Company owns all
the common stock of the Trust II. The proceeds from the issue were invested in Junior Subordinated Debentures (the

. “Debentures II) issued by the Company. The Debentures IT are unsecured and rank subordinate and junior in right of

payment to all indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of the Company. The Debentures II represent the sole assets of the
" Trust II. Interest on the Preferred Securities I is cumulative and payable semi-annually in arrears. The Company has the
option, subject to required regulatory approval, if any, to prepay the securities beginning December 8, 2006. '
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FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

18. Parent Company Only Financial Information
Condensed financial statements of First Keystone Financial, Inc. are as follows:

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition

September 30,
2004 2003
Assets: ; \ '
Interest-bearing deposits $ 426  $1,800
Investment securities available for sale ' 3,764 6,246 -
Investment in subsidiaries ‘ 47,921 46,482
Other assets : : 414 1089
Total assets , $52,525  $55,617 -
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity: _ _
Junior subordinated debentures $21,557  $21,593
Other liabilities 1.270 1,636
Total liabilities . 22,827 23,229

Stockholders’ equity 29,698 32,388
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $52,525 $55.611

Condensed Statements of Income ‘ :
: Year Ended September 30,

2004 2003 2002
Interest and dividend income:
Dividends from subsidiary o $ 9 $ 9 § 5
Loan to ESOP 59 79 92
Interest and dividends on investments 173 - 286 502
Interest on'deposits ‘ 17 50 67
Total interest and dividend income : 258 424 666
Interest on debt and other borrowed money 1,676 1,677 1,723
Other income ) 1,393 241 4
Operating expenses . , 210 194 - 154
Loss before income taxes and equity
in undistributed income (loss) of subsidiaries (235) (1,206) (1,167)
Income tax benefit (69) (402) (383)
Loss before equity in undistributed (loss) income '
~ Of subsidiaries - (166) (804) (782)
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 2,369 3,543 _3.508
Net income $2203 $2739 $2726




FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustment to reconcile net income to cash prov1ded by

- (used in) operations:
Eqmty in undistributed income of subs1d1anes

Amortization of common stock acqulred by stock benefit plans
Gain (loss) on sales of investment securities available for sale.

Amortization of premium ,
(Increase) decrease in other assets
(Increase) decrease in other liabilities

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Purchase of investments available for sale

- Proceeds from calls or repayments of investment securities

Proceeds from sale of investments available for sale

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from ﬁnancmg activities:

Issuance of junior subordinated debentures

Repurchase of junior subordinated debentures

Repayment of other borrowed money

Purchase of treasury stock

Common stock acquired by ESOP

Dividends paid

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash
~ Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of year
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Year Ended September 30,

2004 2003 2002
$2203 $2,739  $2,726
(2,369) -~ (3,543)  (3,508)
637 396 384
(1,390)  (241) 44
(37 26 (22)
675. . 709 (1,453)"
(159) 165 145
(440) __ 251  (1,684)
(578) - = - (3,870)
500 1,100 . -
3339 _1591 4956 .
3261 2691 _1,086
- 8248
- -~ (3,290)
- - (815)
(1,339)  (2,986) (1,013)
2,579) - -
(843).  (798)  (734)
566 _373 __275
4,195 (341D _2671
1,374y  ~ (469) 2,073
1800 _2269 __196

$ 426 $1800 $2260



FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data).
19. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Unaudited quarterly financial data for the years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003 is as follows:

2004 2003
lst v znd 3!37 4th lst znd 3!‘{ 4lb
QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR

Interest income $6,636. 36,439 $6,505 $6,563  $7,217 $6,973 $6,615 $6,407
Interest expense 3740 3666 3586 3.720 4,136 _3.991 3993 _3.882
Net interest income 2,806 . 2,773 . 2919 2,843 3,081 2,982 2,622 2,525
Provision for loan losses 75 75 75 75 195 195 195 - 130
Net income after ‘

provision for loan losses 2,821 2,698 2,844 2,768 2,886 2,787 2,427 2,395
Non-interest income - 1,064 2,169 575 91 624 551 1,008 1,102
Non-interest expense 2.933 4.094 2,646 _2.827 2,510 _2.507 2,622 2,770
Income before income taxes . 952 773 773 32 1,000 831 813 727
Income tax expense (benefit) 209 146 146 (175) 219 138 148 127
Net income $. 743 8§ 627 $ 627 $207 3781 $693 $665 §.600
Per Share:

‘Earnings per share - basic $ 40 $ 34 $ 34 $ .12 $ 41 % 36 $ .35 $.32
Eamings per share - diluted  $ .37 $ 32 '$ 32 $ .1 $ 39 $ 34 § 33 $.29

Dividend per ishare $.11 .11 8 11§ .11 $ .10 $.10 $ .10 § 10

Certain reclassifications have been made to the quarters presented to conform with the presentation. Such
reclassifications had no impact on the reported net income.

*dkk
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial 'Disclo‘sﬁre.

Not applicable.
Item 9-A. Controls and Procedurés.'

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including its chief executive

~ officer and chief financial officer, the Company has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its

disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of September
30, 2004. Based on such evaluation, the Company'’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer have concluded
that these controls and procedures are designed to ensure that the information required to be disclosed by the Company in
reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed surnmarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and regulations and are operating in an effective manner. - '

No change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d- 15(H)
under the Exchange' Act) occurred during the fourth fiscal quarter of fiscal 2004 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. .

Item 9-B. Other Information.
There is no information to be reported on Form 8-K that has not already been repdrted phrsuant thereto.

PART II1

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information required herein with respect to directors and executive officers of the Company is incorporated by
reference from the information contained in the sections captioned “Information with Respect to Nominees for Director,
Directors Whose Terms Continue and Executive Officers” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on January
26, 2005 (the “Proxy Statement”), a copy of which w1ll be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the end of the
Company s fiscal year. ‘

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics that applies to its priricipal executive officer and

* principal financial officer, as well as other officers and employees of the Company and the Bank. A copy of the Code of

Ethics, included as Exhibit 99. 1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2003 ﬁled with
the SEC.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required herein is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the section
captioned “Executive Compensation” in of the Registrant's Proxy Statement. The reports of the Audit Committee and the
Compensation Committee included in the Registrant’s Proxy Statement should not be deemed filed or incorporated into .
this filing or any other filing by the Company under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act of 1933 except to the extent
the Company specifically incorporates said reports herein or therein by reference thereto.
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Item 12. Secuf-itx Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockhclder

Matters.

The information required herein is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the section
captioned “Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock by Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Registrant’s
Proxy Statement.

Equity Compensation Plan Information. The following table sets forth certain information for all equity
compensation plans and individual compensation arrangements (whether with employees or non-employees such as
directors) in effect as of September 30, 2004,

Number of Shares to be Issued Upon ~ Weighted Average =~ Number of Shares Remaining Available

) the Exercise of Outstanding Options, Exercise Price of for Future Issuance (Excluding Shares
Plan Category Warrants and Rights QOutstanding Options Reflected in the First Column)
Equity Compensation Plans
Approved by Security Holders 192,863 $10:17 26,468
Equity Compensation Plans Not
Approved by Security Holders -- —_ —_—
Total ‘ 192.863 81017 26468

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

‘The mformatmn required herein is incorporated by reference from the mformanon contained in the section
captioned “Transactions with Certain Related Persons™ in the Registrant's Proxy Statement. A

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The 1nformat10n required herein is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the secuon
capnoned “Ratification of Appomtment of Auditors” in the Registrant's Proxy Statement.

PARTIV.
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K.
(@) Documents filed as part of this Report.

(1)  The following documents are filed as part of this i'eport and are incorporated herein by reference
from the Registrant's Annual Report. :

- Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition at September 30, 2004 and 2003,
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002,

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the Years Ended -
September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002.’ '

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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31

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the SEC are
omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Form 10-K, and this list includes the Exhibit Index.

No
3.2

4 .
10.1
102
103
104
105
10.6

10.8

109

10.10
10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
11

21

23

Description _

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of First Keystone Financial, Inc. 1

Amended and Restated Bylaws of First Keystone Financial, Inc. 1

Specimen Stock Certificate of First Keystone Financial, Inc. 1

Employee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust of First Keystone Financial, Inc. 1, *

401(K)/ Profit-sharing Plan of First Keystone Federal Savings Bank. 1 *

Employment Agreement between First Keystone Financial, Inc. and

Donald S. Guthrie dated December 1, 2004. 5,*

Employment Agreement between First Keystone Financial, Inc. and

Stephen J. Henderson dated December 1, 2004. 2 -

Employment Agreement between First Keystone Financial, Inc and

Thomas M. Kelly dated December 1, 2004. 5,*

Severance Agreement between First Keystone Financial, Inc. and

Elizabeth M. Mulcahy dated December 1, 2004. 5,* '

Severance Agreement between First Keystone Financial, Inc. and

Carol Walsh dated December 1, 2004. 5,*

1995 Stock Option Plan.3, *

1995 Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust Agreement 3,*

1998 Stock Option Plan.4, *

Employment Agreement between First Keystone Bank and Donald S. Guthne

dated December 1, 2004. 5, *

Employment Agreement between First Keystone Federal Savmgs Barnk and
Stephen J. Henderson dated December 1, 2004.2. .

Employment Agreement between First Keystone Bank and Thomas M Kelly

dated December 1, 2004. 5, *.

Severance Agreement between First Keystone Bank and Ehzabeth M. Mulcahy dated

December 1, 2004. 5, *

‘Severance Agreement between First Keystone Bank and Carol Walsh

dated December 1, 2004. 5, *

First Keystone Bank Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. 7,*

Consulting Agreement between First Keystone Bank and Edmund Jones. *
Statement re: computation of per share eamnings. See Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 hereof.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant - Reference is made to Item 1 "Business," for the reqmred
information. -

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.



Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley

' Incdrporated by reference from the Registration Statement Form S-1 (Registration
No. 33-84824) filed by the Registrant with the SEC on October 6, 1994, as

Incorporated by reference from the Form 10-K filed by the Registrant with the SEC

on December 29, 1999 (File No. 000-25328).

Incorporated by reference from the Form 10-K filed by the Registrant with SEC on
December 29, 1995 (File No. 000-25328).

Incorporated from Appendix A of the Registrant's definitive proxy statemem dated
December 24, 1998 (File No. 000-25328).

Incorporated by reference from the Form 8-K filed by the Regxstrant with the SEC on
December 7, 2004 (File No. 000-25328).

Incorporated by reference from the Form 10-K filed by the Reglstrant w1th the SEC .

Incorporated by reference from the Form 10-K filed by the Registrant with the SEC

31.1
31.2
32.1
Act of 2002
322
Act of 2002
99.1 Codes of Ethics 6
n
amended.
V)]
3
@
-
©)
on December 23, 2003.
™
on May 17, 2004.
™

Consists of a management contract or compensatory pian

(b) Exhibits. See the list set forth above under subsection (a) (3)>

(c) Financial Statement Schedules.

Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authonzed

First Keystone Financial, Inc.
By:_/s/ Donald S. Guthrie

Donald S. Guthrie
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report had been sngned below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

{s/ Donald S. Guthrie December 29, 2004
Donald S. Guthrie ‘

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Thomas M. Kelly December 29, 2004
Thomas M. Kelly
President and Chief Operating Officer

s/ Edward Calderoni | December 29, 1004
Edward Calderoni
Directpr

/s/ Edmund Jones December 29, 2004 .
Edmund Jones
Director

/s/ Donald G. Hosier, Jr. December 29, 2004
Donald G. Hosier, Jr.
Director

/s/ Marshall J. Soss December 29, 2004
‘Marshall J. Soss
Director

s/ William J. O'Donnell December 29, 2004
William J. O'Donnell
Director

/s/ Bruce C. Hendrixson December 29, 2004
Bruce C. Hendrixson .
Director

/s/ Jerry A. Naessens December 29, 2004
Jerry A. Naessens :
Director

/s/ Rose M. DiMarco December 29, 2004
Rose M. DiMarco

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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